
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 4
III-1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Health Care Facilities
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Larksfield Place. (District II)

Agenda Report No III-1 12
Supporting Documents 14
Ordinance No. 49-514 18

IV-1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds,
Bombardier Learjet. (Districts IV and V)

Agenda Report No. IV-1 22
Ordinance No. 49-520 24

IV-2. Designation of WSU Special Tax Levy to Payment of
Sedgwick County Public Building Commission Bonds.  (District
I)

Agenda Report No. IV-2 29
Ordinance No. 49-521 31

IV-3. Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.010 Relating to the
Unlawful Possession of Weapons.

Agenda Report No. IV-3 39
Delineated Ordinance 40
Ordinance No. 49-522 49

IV-4.Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.020 Relating to the
Discharge of a Firearm.

Agenda Report No. IV-4 57
Delineated Ordinance 58
Ordinance No. 49-523 61

IV-5. Resolution exempting Certain Public Buildings and
Facilities from the Provisions of Senate Substitute for House Bill
2052 (2013).

Agenda Report No. IV-5 63
Resolution No. 13-108 65

IV-6. Ordinances amending Sections 1.06.010 and 1.06.060
regarding Domestic Violence Offenses and passing a Charter
Ordinance amending Charter Ordinances 164, 168, 202, and
218 regarding Municipal Court Procedures.

Agenda Report No. IV-6 67
Ordinance No. 49-526 69
Delineated Ordinance 73
Charter Ordinance No. 220 77
Delineated Ordinance 84

IV-7. Chisholm Creek Park South. (District I)
Agenda Report No. IV-7 92
Resolution No. 13-105 93
Declaration of Intent 2011 Chisholm Creek Park South 94

IV-8. Chisholm Creek Park South Federal Lands Access
Program (FLAP) Grant. (District I)

1



Agenda Report No. IV-8 95
IV-9. HUD Consolidated Plan/Fifth Program Year Action Plan,
2013-2014, Amended.

Agenda Report No. IV-9 96
Support Document-2013-2014 Annual Plan Amended 100
Allocation Spreadsheet 104

II-1. Report of Board of Bids and Contracts dated June 17,
2013.

Agenda Report No. II-1 108
II-4. Preliminary Estimates.

Agenda Report No. II-4 116
II-5a. Amendment to Agreement for Kellogg, 151st Street West
to Mid-Continent. (District IV)

Agenda Report No. II-5a 117
II-5b. Contract for Floating Stage on Arkansas River. (District I)

Agenda Report No. II-5b 120
Contract 121

II-6a. Agreement for Design Services for NewMarket Office V
Addition. (District V)

Agenda Report No. II-6a and Agreement 154
II-6b. Agreement for Design Services for an Area Being Platted
as Southfork Commercial Addition. (District III)

Agenda Report No. II-6b  and Agreement 163
II-7a. Partial Acquisition of 2812 and 2816 North Amidon for the
Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th Street North Improvement
Project.   (District VI)

Agenda Report No. II-7a 174
Supporting Documents 175

II-7b. Acquisition of 1732 West 29th Street for the Amidon, 21st
Street North to 29th Street North Improvement Project. (District
VI)

Agenda Report No. II-7b 181
Supporting Documents 182

II-9. Partial Redemption of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Greater
Wichita YMCA. (District VI)

Agenda Report No.  II-9 187
Resolution No. 13-106 188

II-10. General Obligation Temporary Note Sale.
Agenda Report No. II-10 190
Resolution No. 13-107 192
Notice of Sale 196
Excerpt of Minutes and Certificate 203

II-11. Application for Street Resurfacing Project for Kellogg,
Between 111th and 119th Streets West. (District IV)

Agenda Report No. II-11 205
Map and Application 206

II-12. Improvements to West Kellogg from 111th to 143rd
Streets West. (District IV)

2



Agenda Report No. II-12 212
Agreement 1 213
Agreement 2 218

II-13. Creation of Chapter 18.14 of the Code of the City of
Wichita, Relating to Parking Lot Striping Standards and
Enforcement.

Agenda Report No. II-13 223
Ordinance No. 49-524 225

II-14. Second Reading Ordinances.
Agenda Report No. II-14 233

II-15. *DED2013-00011 Dedication of Utility Easement,
DED2013-00012 Dedication of Street Right-of-way and
DED2013-00013 Dedication of Drainage Easement located
north of 21st Street North, west of Seneca (extended).  (District
VI)

Agenda Report No. II-15 235
Supporting Documents 236

II-16. *DED2013-00015 Dedication of Utility Easement Located
South of 13th Street, West of Maize Road.  (District V)

Agenda Report No. II-16 239
Supporting Documents 240

II-17. *SUB2012-00042 -- Plat of Presbyterian Manor Addition
Located on the Northwest Corner of 13th Street North and Zoo
Boulevard.   (District VI)

Agenda Report No. II-17 242
Supporting Documents 244
Ordinance No. 49-525 252

II-18. *SUB2013-00009 -- Plat of Maki Addition Located on the
Southeast Corner of 53rd Street North and 143rd Street East.
(County)

Agenda Report No. II-18 253
Supporting Documents 255

3



C I T Y  C O U N C I L 
 

C I T Y  O F  W I C H I T A 
K A N S A S 

 
City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 
09:00 a.m. June 18, 2013 455 North Main 

 
OPENING OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
-- Call to Order 
 
-- Invocation 
 
-- Pledge of Allegiance 
 
-- Approve the minutes of the regular meeting on June 11, 2013 
 
 
 

 
AWARDS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 
-- Proclamation: 

 
Olympic Day  

 
 
 

I.  PUBLIC AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: No action will be taken relative to items on this agenda other than referral for information.  Requests to appear will be placed on a “first-

come, first-served” basis.  This portion of the meeting is limited to thirty minutes and shall be subject to a limitation of five minutes for 
each presentation with no extension of time permitted.  No speaker shall be allowed to appear more frequently than once every fourth 
meeting.  Members of the public desiring to present matters to the Council on the public agenda must submit a request in writing to the 
office of the city manager prior to twelve noon on the Tuesday preceding the council meeting.  Matter pertaining to personnel, litigation 
and violations of laws and ordinances are excluded from the agenda.  Rules of decorum as provided in this code will be observed. 

 
1. Richard Stephenson - The need for a Citizen's Review Board. 

 
 
 
 
 

II. CONSENT AGENDAS (ITEMS 1 THROUGH 18) 
 
NOTICE: Items listed under the “Consent Agendas” will be enacted by one motion with no separate discussion.  If discussion on an item is desired, 

the item will be removed from the “Consent Agendas” and considered separately 
 
(The Council will be considering the City Council Consent Agenda as well as the Planning, Housing, and Airport Consent 
Agendas.  Please see “ATTACHMENT 1 – CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS” for a listing of all Consent Agenda Items.) 
 
 

4



City Council Meeting  Page 2 
June 18, 2013 
 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 

III. UNFINISHED COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Health Care Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds, Larksfield Place. (District II) 
(Deferred June 11, 2013)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing and place on first reading the ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds to Larksfield Place, in an 
amount not-to-exceed $30,000,000, and authorize the necessary signatures. 

 
 

IV.  NEW COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Bombardier Learjet. (Districts IV and V) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing and place on first reading the Bond Ordinance 
authorizing the execution and delivery of documents for the issuance of 
Industrial Revenue Bonds for Learjet, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed 
$1,573,912.57, release and convey the 2002 bond-financed property, and 
authorize necessary signatures. 

2. Designation of WSU Special Tax Levy to Payment of Sedgwick County Public Building Commission Bonds.  
(District I) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve first reading of the Ordinance designating a portion of the WSU Special 
Tax Levy to guarantee lease payments by the Wichita State University Board of 
Trustees to the Sedgwick County Public Building Commission, and authorize the 
necessary signatures. 

3. Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.010 Relating to the Unlawful Possession of Weapons. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the ordinance and place on first reading. 

4. Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.020 Relating to the Discharge of a Firearm. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the ordinance and place on first reading. 

5. Resolution exempting Certain Public Buildings and Facilities from the Provisions of Senate Substitute for House 
Bill 2052 (2013). 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Pass the resolution and that notice be sent by the Mayor to the Kansas Attorney 
General requesting exemption from the provisions of Senate Substitute for House 
Bill No. 2052 and that staff be directed to develop security plans for buildings 
where continued exemption of the Bill's provisions is sought. 

 

5



City Council Meeting  Page 3 
June 18, 2013 
 

6. Ordinances amending Sections 1.06.010 and 1.06.060 regarding Domestic Violence Offenses and passing a 
Charter Ordinance amending Charter Ordinances 164, 168, 202, and 218 regarding Municipal Court Procedures. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Place the ordinances on first reading. 

7. Chisholm Creek Park South. (District I) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the project, adopt the Bonding Resolution, and authorize signatures as 
required. 

8. Chisholm Creek Park South Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Grant. (District I) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize staff to submit the FLAP grant application and authorize the necessary 
signatures. 

9. HUD Consolidated Plan/Fifth Program Year Action Plan, 2013-2014, Amended. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Close the public hearing and authorize submission of the amended 2013-2014 
Fifth Program Year Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant, 
HOME Investment Partnerships, and Emergency Solutions Grant Funds to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and authorize 
necessary signatures, agreements and contracts. 

 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS SUBMITTED BY CITY AUTHORITIES 
 
PLANNING AGENDA 

 
NOTICE: Public hearing on planning items is conducted by the MAPC under provisions of State law.  Adopted policy is that additional hearing on 

zoning applications will not be conducted by the City Council unless a statement alleging (1) unfair hearing before the MAPC, or (2) 
alleging new facts or evidence has been filed with the City Clerk by 5p.m. on the Wednesday preceding this meeting.  The Council will 
determine from the written statement whether to return the matter to the MAPC for rehearing. 

 
V.  NON-CONSENT PLANNING AGENDA 

 None 
 
 
 

 
HOUSING AGENDA 

 
NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Housing Authority for consideration and action on the items on this Agenda, 

pursuant to State law, HUD, and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion. 

Fern Griffith, Housing Member is also seated with the City Council. 
 

VI. NON-CONSENT HOUSING AGENDA 
 
 None 

6



City Council Meeting  Page 4 
June 18, 2013 
 
 
AIRPORT AGENDA 
 
NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Airport Authority for consideration and action on items on this Agenda, 

pursuant to State law and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion.   

 
VII. NON-CONSENT AIRPORT AGENDA 

 
 None 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL AGENDA 

 
VIII. COUNCIL MEMBER AGENDA 

 
1. Approval of travel for Council Member Lavonta Williams and Council Member Janet Miller to attend the Urban 

Sustainability Accelerator in Portland, Oregon, July 23-30, 2013.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the expenditures. 

 

IX. COUNCIL MEMBER APPOINTMENTS 
 

1. Board Appointments.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Appointments. 

 
 
 
Adjournment 

7



City Council Meeting  Page 5 
June 18, 2013 
 

 
(ATTACHMENT 1 – CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 THROUGH 18) 

 
 

II. CITY COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. Report of Board of Bids and Contracts dated June 17, 2013. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file report; approve Contracts;  
authorize necessary signatures.  

2. Applications for Licenses: 
 
Renewal   2013 Address 
Amber Villa  Vanities LLC  304 South Laura  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the licenses.  
 
 

3. Applications for Licenses to Retail Cereal Malt Beverages: 
 
Renewal 2013  (Consumption off Premises) 
Kevin Schemm Dillons #272***  10304 West 13th 
Amy Thrasher Wal-Mart #5855***  10550 West Central 
 
***Retailer (Grocery stores, convenience stores, etc.) 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve licenses subject to Staff review and approval. 
 
 

4. Preliminary Estimates: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file. 

5. Agreements/Contracts: 
a. Amendment to Agreement for Kellogg, 151st Street West to Mid-Continent. (District IV) 
b.  Contract for Floating Stage on Arkansas River. (District I)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Agreements/Contracts; authorize the necessary signatures. 

6. Design Services Agreements: 
a. Agreement for Design Services for NewMarket Office V Addition. (District V)  
b. Agreement for Design Services for an Area Being Platted as Southfork Commercial Addition.       

(District III) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Agreements/Contracts; authorize the necessary signatures. 

 

8



City Council Meeting  Page 6 
June 18, 2013 
 

7. Property Acquisitions:  
a. Partial Acquisition of 2812 and 2816 North Amidon for the Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th Street 

North Improvement Project.   (District VI)  
b. Acquisition of 1732 West 29th Street for the Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th Street North Improvement 

Project. (District VI)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve budgets and Contracts; authorize necessary signatures. 

8. Minutes of Advisory Boards/Commissions 
 
Board of Building Code Standards and Appeals, May 6, 2013 
Wichita Airport Advisory Board, May 6, 2013 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive and file. 
 

9. Partial Redemption of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Greater Wichita YMCA. (District VI)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Resolution authorizing an early redemption of a portion of the Series 
2011 Bonds. 

10. General Obligation Temporary Note Sale.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the resolution 1) authorizing the general obligation renewal temporary 
note sale; 2) approving the distribution to prospective bidders of the Preliminary 
Official Statement, subject to such minor revisions as may be determined 
necessary by the Mayor or the Director of Finance; 3) finding that such 
Preliminary Official Statement is in a form “deemed final” for the purpose of the 
Securities Exchange Commission’s Rule 15c2-12(b)(l), subject to revision, 
amendment and completion in the final Official Statement; 4) authorizing 
distribution of the Notice of Sale; and 5) authorizing City staff, in consultation 
with Bond Counsel to take such further action reasonably required to implement 
this Resolution.    

11. Application for Street Resurfacing Project for Kellogg, Between 111th and 119th Streets West. (District IV)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the application and authorize the necessary signatures. 

12. Improvements to West Kellogg from 111th to 143rd Streets West. (District IV)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the agreements and authorize the necessary signatures. 

13. Creation of Chapter 18.14 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Relating to Parking Lot Striping Standards and 
Enforcement.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve creation of new chapter 18.14 of the City Code and place the ordinance 
on first reading. 

 

9



City Council Meeting  Page 7 
June 18, 2013 
 

14. Second Reading Ordinances: (First Read June 11, 2013) 
a. Second Reading Ordinances.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the Ordinances. 

 
 

II. CONSENT PLANNING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

NOTICE: Public hearing on planning items is conducted by the MAPC under provisions of State law.  Adopted policy is that additional hearing on 
zoning applications will not be conducted by the City Council unless a statement alleging (1) unfair hearing before the MAPC, or (2) 
alleging new facts or evidence has been filed with the City Clerk by 5p.m. on the Wednesday preceding this meeting.  The Council will 
determine from the written statement whether to return the matter to the MAPC for rehearing. 

 
15. *DED2013-00011 Dedication of Utility Easement, DED2013-00012 Dedication of Street Right-of-way and 

DED2013-00013 Dedication of Drainage Easement located north of 21st Street North, west of Seneca (extended).  
(District VI) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Dedications. 

16. *DED2013-00015 Dedication of Utility Easement Located South of 13th Street, West of Maize Road.       
(District V) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Dedication. 

17. *SUB2012-00042 -- Plat of Presbyterian Manor Addition Located on the Northwest Corner of 13th Street North 
and Zoo Boulevard.   (District VI) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the documents and plat, authorize the necessary signatures for approval 
and ownership of the plat and place the Ordinance on first reading. 

18. *SUB2013-00009 -- Plat of Maki Addition Located on the Southeast Corner of 53rd Street North and 143rd Street 
East. (County) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the document and plat, and authorize the necessary signatures. 

 
 

II. CONSENT HOUSING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Housing Authority for consideration and action on the items on this Agenda, 
pursuant to State law, HUD, and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and 
adjourned at the conclusion. 

Fern Griffith, Housing Member is also seated with the City Council. 
 
 None 
 
 
 

10



City Council Meeting  Page 8 
June 18, 2013 
 

 
II. CONSENT AIRPORT AGENDA ITEMS 

 
NOTICE: The City Council is meeting as the governing body of the Airport Authority for consideration and action on items on this Agenda, pursuant 

to State law and City ordinance.  The meeting of the Authority is deemed called to order at the start of this Agenda and adjourned at the 
conclusion.   

 

 None 

11



   
   Agenda Item No. III-1 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Issuance of Health Care Facilities Improvement Revenue 

Bonds (Larksfield Place) (District II) 
 
INITIATED BY: Office of Urban Development  
 
AGENDA: Unfinished  Business 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Close the public hearing and place Ordinance on first reading. 
 
Background:  On April 2, 2013, the Wichita City Council approved a six-month letter of intent for 
Larksfield Place (“Larksfield”) for the issuance of Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds in an amount 
not to exceed $30 million.  Bond proceeds will be used to refund the 1999 and 2007 bonds and to finance 
construction and renovation of approximately 10,000 square feet of Larksfield’s facilities located at 2828 
N. Governeour.  Larksfield Place is requesting issuance of the bonds at this time. 
 
Analysis:  Larksfield Place is a not-for-profit comprehensive retirement and nursing facility that has 
operated in Wichita for over 24 years.  Larksfield provides continuum of care retirement services 
including independent living, assisted living, home health care, dementia care and other ancillary services 
for the elderly.  Bond proceeds will refund the 1999 and 2007 bonds to achieve interest cost savings.  In 
addition, approximately $3,000,000 of bond proceeds will be used to finance the construction of a 7,000 
square foot addition to the existing skilled nursing facility and renovate 3,000 square feet of the existing 
facility including nursing and administrative office space, employee training rooms, employee break 
room, resident activity and dining space and resident bathing facilities. The project also includes 
replacement and reconfiguation of the heating, cooling and emergency power systems. 
 
As a not-for-profit 501 (c)(3) corporation, Larksfield Place is eligible to use tax-exempt revenue bonds 
under the federal tax code, so long as a municipal issuer agrees to issue the bonds.  The bonds will be 
underwriten by the brokerage firm HJ Sims Company and reoffered to public investors.  The City’s bond 
counsel firm, Gilmore & Bell, PC is serving as Bond Counsel in the transaction. 
 
The project estimates are as follows: 

Estimated Sources of Funds 
 Bond Proceeds  $28,695,000 
 Series 2007 Debt Service Reserve 912,400 
 Series 1999 Debt Service Reserve 1,402,213 
 Total Sources  $31,009,613 

 
Estimated Uses of Funds 

  Refunding Escrow Deposits  $25,110,000 
  Project Fund Deposits  3,000,000 
  Debt Service Reserve Fund Deposits  2,359,698 
  Underwriter’s Discount  373,200 
  Cost of Issuance  166,715 
   Total Uses  $31,009,613 
 

12



Larksfield Place IRB – First Reading 
June 18, 2013 
Page 2 
 
Larksfield Place currently has an approved EEO/AA Plan on file with the City and agrees to comply with 
standard letter of intent conditions, with the exception noted in Legal Considerations below. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Larksfield Place agrees to pay all costs of issuing the bonds and agrees to 
pay the City's $2,500 annual Industrial Revenue Bond (IRB) administrative fee for the term of the bonds.  
Larksfield Place is generally exempt from ad valorem property taxes pursuant to Kansas law.  Therefore 
no tax exemption is requested in connection with the issuance of Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds. 
 
Legal Considerations:  Bond documents needed for the issuance of the bonds have been prepared by 
Bond Counsel.  The City’s Law Department will review and approve the final form of bond documents 
prior to the issuance of any bonds.  The public hearing held in conjunction with this item is in compliance 
with the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (“TEFRA”) hearing requirement in the federal tax code 
for tax-exempt bonds. 
 
Larksfield Place has requested a waiver of the current IRB letter of intent condition regarding the form of 
tenant’s counsel opinion letter required to be submitted to the underwriter and City prior to the closing of 
an underwritten bond issue, known as an SEC Rule 10b-5 letter.  The City’s bond counsel firm, Gilmore 
& Bell, PC, has researched this matter and recommends that the City allow the more common “negative 
assurance” 10b-5 opinion.  The Law Department concurs with Bond Counsel’s recommendation.  This 
waiver was approved by the City Council in its action on April 2, 2013. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing and place 
on first reading the ordinance authorizing the issuance of Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds to 
Larksfield Place, in an amount not-to-exceed $30,000,000, and authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Bond Ordinance 
 

13



EVENT NOTICE PURSUANT TO SEC RULE 15c2-12(b)(5)(C)

TO: The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board via the Electronic Municipal Market Access system
for municipal securities disclosures (www.ernma.msrb.org)

Issuer/Obligated Person: Larksfield Place Retirement Communities, Inc.
(formerly Wesley Retirement Communities, Inc.)
(the “Obligated Person”)

Issue(s) to which this Report
Relates and CUSIP Base
Numbers for said Issues:

Base
Description Series Dated Date Maturities CUSIP No.

City of Wichita, Kansas Health I, 1999 03/15/1999 05/15/2016 to 967249
Care Facilities Refunding and 05/15/2027
Improvement Revenue Bonds

(Larksfield_Place)
City of Wichita, Kansas Health IV, 2007 09/25/2007 05/15/2014 to 967249

Care Facilities Improvement 05/1 5/203 7
Revenue Bonds (Larksfield Place)

Event Reported: Redemption of above-referenced Bonds on June 27, 2013; see attached
Exhibit A-i and A-2.

The information contained in this Notice has been submitted by the Obligated Person
pursuant to contractual undertakings the Obligated Person made in accordance with SEC Rule
15c2-12. Nothing contained in the undertaking or this Notice is, or should be construed as, a
representation by the Obligated Person that the information included in this Notice constitutes all
of the information that may be material to a decision to invest in, hold or dispose of any of the
securities listed above, or any other securities of the Obligated Person.

For additional information, contact:

Commerce Bank
922 Walnut Street, 10th Floor
Mail Stop TBMZ-5
Kansas City, Missouri 64106
Attn: Corporation Trust Department
Phone: (816) 234-2096

14



LARKSFIELD PLACE RETIREMENT
COMMUNITIES, INC.

Date Submitted: May 28, 2013

Commercek._i
Kansas Cit , souri, as Trustee

Enclosures
cc: Karen Sublett, City Clerk, City of Wichita, Kansas

B.C. Ziegler & Company, Chicago, Illinois

15



Exhibit A-i

NOTICE OF FULL REDEMPTION TO THE HOLDERS OF

City of Wichita, Kansas
Health Care Facifities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds

Series I, 1999
(Larksfield Place)

Dated March 15, 1999

NOTICE IS hEREBY GIVEN, that there have been called for full redemption on June 27, 2013 all outstanding
Bonds of City of Wichita, Kansas Health Care Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds Series I, 1999
(Larksfield Place) Dated March 15, 1999, totaling $13,060,000 in principal amount as listed below:

*CUSIP Maturity Rate Amount Price
967249GG2 05/15/2016 5.75% $1,985,000 100%
967249GH0 05/15/2024 6.00% $7,325,000 100%
967249GJ6 05/15/2027 5.875% $3,750,000 100%

The redemption and payment of the Bonds on the Redemption Date is subject to the availability of funds on deposit
with the Trustee from the proceeds of refunding bonds to be issued by the Issuer.

The Bonds are being called pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of the governing documents at the price
listed above plus accrued interest to June 27, 2013 on which date all interest on the Bonds will cease to accrue. Holders of
the Bonds are requested to present their Bonds by mail or overnight delivery at the following address:

Commerce Trust Company
922 Walnut Street, 10th Floor

Mail Stop TBMZ-5
Kansas City, MO 64106

1-816-234-2096

The Commerce Trust Company
f A dvkr 0f Commerce Book

By:

as Trustee

Dated: May 28, 2013

NOTICE
Federal law requires the payor to withhold at the current rate of withholding from the payment if a certified

taxpayer (social security) number is not provided. Please furnish a properly completed Form W-9 or exemption certificate
or equivalent when presenting your securities.

*The Issuer and Trustee shall not be responsible for the use of the CUSIP number(s) selected, nor is any
representation made as to their correctness indicated in the notice or as printed on any Bond. They are included solely for
the convenience of the holders.

16



Exhibit A—2

NOTICE OF FULL REDEMPTION TO THE HOLDERS OF

City of Wichita, Kansas

Health Care Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds Series IV, 2007 (Larksfield Place)
Dated September 25, 2007

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that there have been called for full redemption on June 27, 2013 all outstanding Bonds
of City of Wichita, Kansas, Health Care Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds Series IV 2007 (Larksfield Place) Dated
September 25, 2007, totaling $12,050,000 in principal amount as listed below:

*CUSIP Maturity Amount
967249KL6 05/15/2014 4.65% $265,000 100.00%
967249KM4 05/15/2015 4.70% $280,000 100.00%
967249KN2 05/15/2016 4.75% $290,000 100.00%
967249KP7 05/15/2017 4.80% $305,000 100.00%
967249KQ5 05/15/2022 5.125% $1,770,000 100.00%
967249KR3 05/15/2027 5.375% $2,280,000 100.00%
967249KS1 05/15/2037 5.50% $6,860,000 100.00%

The redemption and payment of the Bonds on the Redemption Date is subject to the availability of funds on
deposit with the Trustee from the proceeds of refunding bonds to be issued by the Issuer.

The Bonds are being called pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of the governing documents at the price list
ed above plus accrued interest to June 27, 2013 on which date all interest on the Bonds will cease to accrue. Holders of the
Bonds are requested to present their Bonds, at the following addresses:

If by Mail: If bv Overnieht Mail:
Commerce Trust Company Commerce Trust Company
P.O. Box 64107 Corporate Trust Services
St. Paul, MN 55 164-0107 60 Livingston Avenue

St. Paul, MN 55107

1-866-837-0498

d’I3 The Commerce Trust Company
AdhCm,c,k

By:

as Trustee

Dated: May 28, 2013

NOTICE
Federal law requires the payor to withhold at the current rate of withholding from the payment if a certified taxpayer

(social security) number is not provided. Please furnish a properly completed Form W-9 or exemption certificate or equiva
lent when presenting your securities.

*The Issuer and Trustee shall not be responsible for the use of the CUSIP number(s) selected, nor is any representation
made as to their correctness indicated in the notice or as printed on any Bond. They are included solely for the convenience
of the holders.

Code:451558@5/23/2013 9:45:13 AM

17



JLN\600809.058\BOND ORDINANCE (5-09-13)  
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
Draft 05/09/2013 

 
(Published in The Wichita Eagle, June 28, 2013) 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-514 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, TO ISSUE 
ITS HEALTH CARE FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING REVENUE 
BONDS, SERIES III, 2013 (LARKSFIELD PLACE), IN THE AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $30,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, REMODELING AND EQUIPPING 
IMPROVEMENTS TO AN EXISTING SENIOR LIVING FACILITY AND 
REFUNDING CERTAIN OUTSTANDING BONDS OF THE CITY; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “Issuer”), is authorized by K.S.A. 12-1740 et seq 

.and K.S.A. 10-116a, all, as amended (the “Act”), to acquire, construct, improve and equip certain 
facilities (as defined in the Act) for the promotion and advancement of physical and mental health, to 
enter into leases and lease-purchase agreements with any person, firm or corporation for such facilities, 
and to issue revenue bonds for the purpose of paying the costs of such facilities and to issue revenue 
bonds for the purpose of refunding such bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has found and does find and determine that it is desirable in order to 
promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the Issuer and the State of 
Kansas that the Issuer issue its Health Care Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 
III, 2013, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $30,000,000 (the “Series 2013 Bonds”), for 
the purpose for the purpose of providing funds, together with other available funds of Larksfield Place 
Retirement Communities, Inc., a Kansas not for profit corporation (the “Corporation”), to be used (i) to 
acquire, construct, reconstruct, improve, equip, furnish, repair, enlarge and remodel existing retirement 
and health care facilities (the “Project” and, together with certain other property described in the Bond 
Indenture herein authorized, the “Facilities”), (ii) to current refund all the Issuer’s outstanding Health 
Care Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series I, 1999 (Larksfield Place) (the 
“Series 1999 Bonds”), (iii) to current refund all of the Issuer’s outstanding Health Care Facilities 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series IV, 2007 (Larksfield Place) (the “Series 2007 Bonds”), (iv) to fund 
a debt service reserve fund for the Series 2013 Bonds, and (v) to pay costs related to the issuance of the 
Series 2013 Bonds; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Series 2013 Bonds and the interest thereon shall not be a general obligation of 

the Issuer, shall not be payable in any manner by taxation and shall be payable solely from the trust estate 
established under the Bond Indenture herein authorized, including revenues from the lease of the 
Facilities to the Corporation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Issuer has previously issued its Retirement Community Revenue Bond, 
Series III, 2010 (Larksfield Place Retirement Communities, Inc. Project) (the “Series 2010 Bonds”) for 
the purpose of providing funds to acquire, construct and equip an assisted living facility which has been 
leased by the Issuer to the Corporation pursuant to a Lease Agreement dated as of May 1, 2010 (the “2010 
Lease”); and 
 

18



 
JLN\600809.058\BOND ORDINANCE (5-09-13)  2 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer further finds and determines that it is necessary and desirable to amend 
the 2010 Lease to conform certain covenants of the Corporation contained therein to similar covenants to 
be entered into by the Corporation in connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer further finds and determines that it is necessary and desirable in 
connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds to execute and deliver the following documents 
(collectively, the “Bond Documents”): 

 
(i)  a Bond Trust Indenture (the “Bond Indenture”) with Commerce Bank, Kansas 

City, Missouri,  as trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), prescribing the terms and conditions of issuing 
and securing the Series 2013 Bonds;  

 
(ii) a Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) with the Corporation in consideration of 

payments of Base Rental Payments (as defined in the Bond Indenture) and other payments 
provided for therein; 

 
(iii) a Bond Purchase Agreement among the Issuer, the Corporation and Herbert J. 

Sims and Co., Inc., Bloomington, Minnesota, as purchaser of the Series 2013 Bonds;  
 
(iv) a Tax Compliance Agreement among the Issuer, the Corporation and the Bond 

Trustee; and 
 
(v) a Supplemental Lease Agreement with the Corporation amending and 

supplementing the 2010 Lease. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Authority to Cause the Project to be Constructed and Acquired.  The 
Governing Body of the Issuer hereby declares that the Project, if in being, would promote the welfare of 
the City of Wichita, Kansas, and the Issuer is hereby authorized to cause the Project to be constructed and 
acquired all in the manner and as more particularly described in the Bond Indenture and the Lease. 

 
Section 2. Authority to Cause Outstanding Bonds to be Redeemed.  The Issuer is hereby 

authorized to cause the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds and Series 2007 Bonds (collectively, the 
“Refunded Bonds”) to be redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the optional redemption 
provisions of the Trust Indenture dated as of March 15, 1999, as supplemented and amended by the First 
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2007, all between the City of Wichita, Kansas and 
Commerce Bank, as Trustee, authorizing and securing the Refunded Bonds and hereby ratifies, if 
applicable, the notice of such redemption given to the owners of the Refunded Bonds. 
 

Section 3. Authorization of and Security for the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Issuer is hereby 
authorized and directed to issue the Series 2013 Bonds, to be designated “City of Wichita, Kansas, Health 
Care Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series III, 2013 (Larksfield Place),” in the 
aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $30,000,000.  The Series 2013 Bonds shall be dated and bear 
interest, shall be in such aggregate principal amount, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be 
in such forms, shall be subject to redemption and payment prior to the maturity thereof, and shall be 
issued in the manner prescribed and subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in the 
Bond Indenture.  The Series 2013 Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely 
from the trust estate established under the Bond Indenture, including revenues from the lease of the 

19



 
JLN\600809.058\BOND ORDINANCE (5-09-13)  3 

Facilities.  The Series 2013 Bonds shall not be general obligations of the Issuer, nor constitute a pledge of 
the full faith and credit of the Issuer and shall not be payable in any manner by taxation. 
 

Section 4. Lease of the Facilities.  The Issuer shall cause the Facilities to be leased to the 
Corporation pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Lease in the form approved herein. 
 

Section 5. Execution of Series 2013 Bonds and Bond Documents.  The Mayor of the 
Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Series 2013 Bonds and deliver them to the Trustee 
for authentication on behalf of, and as the act and deed of the Issuer in the manner provided in the 
Indenture.  The Mayor is further authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Bond Documents on 
behalf of, and as the act and deed of the Issuer in substantially the forms presented for review prior to 
final passage of this Ordinance, with such minor corrections or amendments thereto as the Mayor may 
approve, which approval shall be evidenced by his execution thereof, and such other documents, 
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the purposes 
and intent of this Ordinance and the Bond Documents.  The City Clerk or any Deputy City Clerk of the 
Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to attest the execution of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Bond 
Documents and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to 
carry out the intent of this Ordinance under the Issuer’s official seal. 
 

Section 6. Pledge of the Project and Net Revenues.  The Issuer hereby pledges the 
Facilities and the net revenues generated under the Lease to the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds in 
accordance with K.S.A. 12-1744.  The lien created by such pledge shall be discharged when all of the 
Series 2013 Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of the Bond Indenture. 
 
 Section 7. Further Authority.  The officers, agents and employees of the Issuer are hereby 
authorized and directed to take such action and execute such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this Ordinance and to carry out 
and perform the duties of the Issuer with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds and the Bond Documents as 
necessary to give effect to the transactions contemplated in this Ordinance and in the Bond Documents. 
 

Section 8. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect from and after its final passage 
by the Governing Body of the Issuer, signature by the Mayor and publication once in the official 
newspaper of the Issuer. 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left bank] 
 

20



 
JLN\600809.058\BOND ORDINANCE  
 
 (Signature Page to Bond Ordinance) 

PASSED by the Governing Body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on June 25, 2013. 
 

CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
(Seal) 

By___________________________________ 
Carl Brewer, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
By______________________________ 

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By______________________________ 

Gary E. Rebenstorf, City Attorney 

21



   Agenda Item No. IV-1 
       

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
    
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds (Bombardier Learjet) 

(Districts IV and V) 
 
INITIATED BY: Office of Urban Development 
 
AGENDA:  New Business 
 
 
Recommendation:  Close the public hearing and place the ordinance on first reading. 
 
Background:  On November 6, 2007, the City Council approved a five year Letter of Intent (“LOI”) for 
Industrial Revenue Bonds (“IRBs”) in an amount not-to-exceed $79,188,000 for Bombardier Learjet 
(“Learjet”) to finance expansion and modernization of its aircraft manufacturing plant located at Mid-
Continent Airport for a five year term.  The City Council also approved a 100% five-plus-five year 
property tax abatement on bond-financed property.  On April 16, 2013, the City Council reinstated and 
extended the LOI through the end of 2013.  Learjet has an unused balance of approximately 
$33,672,992.98 from the 2007 LOI.   
 
The City Council has approved a number of annual IRB issues for Learjet going back to 1961.  In 2009, 
Learjet began requesting semiannual issues.  At this time, Learjet is requesting issuance of IRBs in the 
amount not-to-exceed $1,573,912.57 to finance its capital investments for the first half of 2013. 
 
Analysis:  Learjet is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bombardier, Inc. (“Bombardier”), a Canadian 
corporation headquartered in Montreal, Quebec.  Bombardier is engaged in the design, development, 
manufacturing and marketing of transportation equipment, aerospace and defense products.  Learjet is a 
member of the Bombardier Aerospace Group, and is engaged in the manufacturing and sales of business 
jet aircraft including the Learjet 40, the Learjet 60, the Learjet 45, and the newest models, the Learjet 70, 
75 and 85.  Learjet’s principal manufacturing facilities, corporate and marketing offices and the 
Bombardier Flight Test Center are located at One Learjet Way on Mid-Continent Airport.   
 
On November 15, 2011, the City Council approved an Economic Development Grant Agreement in an 
amount of $1,000,000 (matched by Sedgwick County) for the purpose of incentivizing Learjet to invest 
nearly $53 million to build and create Centers of Excellence in engineering and information technology, 
as well as to build a new Bombardier Flight Test Center and the creation of 450 new jobs.   
 
Proceeds from the bonds will be used to finance capital investments made by Learjet in the first half of 
2013 to expand and equip manufacturing facilities.  Investments include building improvements and 
additions to existing aviation manufacturing and flight testing facilities, as well as the acquisition of 
machinery and equipment. 
 
The law firm of Gilmore & Bell, PC serves as bond counsel in the transaction.  Learjet Inc. will purchase 
the bonds; bonds will not be offered to the public.  Learjet has complied with the Standard Conditions 
contained in the City’s IRB Policy.   
 
Financial Considerations:  Bombardier Learjet agrees to pay all costs of issuing the bonds and agrees to 
pay the City's $2,500 annual IRB administrative fee for the term of the bonds.  The City Council has 
approved a 100% abatement of ad valorem property taxes on the expansion project for five years plus a 

22



Public Hearing and Issuance of IRBs - Learjet  
June 18, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
second five years subject to review and approval by the City Council.  Bond-financed purchases are also 
exempt from state and local sales tax.  Based on the 2012 mill levy, the estimated tax value of exempted 
real property for the first full year is approximately $47,455.  This is based on estimated real property 
improvements of approximately $1,573,912.57.   
 
 
The value of a 100% real property tax exemption as applicable to taxing jurisdictions, based on 2012 mill 
levies, is as follows: 
   

City   $ 12,777    State   $      590     
County  $ 11,587   USD 259  $ 22,501 

 
A cost/benefit analysis (“CBA”) was conducted by Wichita State University’s Center for Economic 
Development and Business Research in 2011, in conjunction with the approval of the $1,000,000 
economic development grant for Learjet’s current expansion.  This CBA reflects the fiscal impact of IRB 
property tax abatements on new facilities as well as the grant.  The CBA calculated the following 
benefit/cost ratios: 
 
 City overall 1.60 to one 
   General Fund 1.26 to one  
   Debt Service               2.49 to one  
 County 1.23 to one  
 USD 259  19.29 to one 
    State                          46.79 to one 
 
Learjet has paid the 2002 IRBs in full and desires to exercise its option to purchase that portion of the 
Project financed with the 2002 Bonds. 
 
Legal Considerations:  Bond documents required for the issuance of the bonds will be prepared by bond 
counsel.  The form of bond documents will be subject to review and approval by the Law Department 
prior to the issuance of any bonds.   
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing and place 
on first reading the Bond Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of documents for the issuance 
of Industrial Revenue Bonds for Learjet, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed $1,573,912.57, release and 
convey the 2002 bond-financed property, and authorize necessary signatures.  
 
Attachments:  Bond Ordinance 

23



 
JLN\600809.070\BOND ORDINANCE (5-20-13) 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
Draft 05/20/2013 

 
(Published in the Wichita Eagle on June 28, 2013) 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-520 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, TO ISSUE 
ITS TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS IN THE ORIGINAL 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,573,912.57 FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO FINANCE THE INSTALLATION OF 
IMPROVEMENTS TO CERTAIN EXISTING AVIATION MANUFACTURING AND 
FLIGHT TESTING FACILITIES AS WELL AS TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION 
OF CERTAIN MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT FOR SUCH FACILITIES 
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A TWENTY-THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL 
TRUST INDENTURE BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE BANK OF NEW 
YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI (THE 
"TRUSTEE"), AS TRUSTEE WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE 
FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TWENTY-THIRD 
SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE BY AND BETWEEN LEARJET INC. AND THE CITY 
APPROVING THE FORM OF A GUARANTY AGREEMENT; AND AUTHORIZIN 
THE EXECUTION OF BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY AND LEARJET INC., AS PURCHASER OF THE BONDS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Wichita, Kansas (the "Issuer") is authorized by K.S.A. 12-1740 to 12-

1749d, inclusive, as amended (the "Act"), to acquire, purchase, construct, install and equip certain 
improvements and additions (as defined in the Act) for commercial, industrial and manufacturing 
purposes, and to enter into leases and lease-purchase agreements with any persons, firm or corporation for 
said facilities, and to issue revenue bonds for the purpose of paying the cost of any such facilities and to 
refund such revenue bonds previously issued; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Issuer's Governing Body has heretofore: (1) expressed its 

intent to issue Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Learjet Inc.), in the original aggregate principal amount 
not to exceed $86,000,000, pursuant to a Letter of Intent dated September 10, 1996; and (2) expressed its 
intent to issue Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Learjet Inc.), in the original aggregate principal amount 
not to exceed an additional $79,188,000, pursuant to a Letter of Intent dated November 16,2007 
(collectively, the "Letter of Intent"); all for the purpose of paying the cost of constructing, installing and 
equipping an expansion and improvements to existing aviation manufacturing and flight testing facilities 
(the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to various ordinances of the Issuer, the Issuer has heretofore authorized the 

issuance of twenty-two series of such taxable industrial revenue bonds, in the original aggregate principal 
amount of $122,158,427.38 (the "Outstanding Bonds"), for the purpose of constructing, equipping and 
installing portions of the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Outstanding Bonds, the Issuer has heretofore 

authorized (i) the execution and delivery of a Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996, as 
supplemented and amended from time to time in accordance with the provisions thereof and together with 

24



JLN\600809.070\BOND ORDINANCE (5-20-13) 
 

2 

the herein authorized and defined Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture (collectively, the "Indenture") 
with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., St. Louis, Missouri (as successor to 
INTRUST Bank, N.A., Wichita, Kansas), as trustee (the "Trustee"), for the purpose of issuing and 
securing the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds (as defined therein), and (ii) the execution and 
delivery of a Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 1996, as supplemented and amended from time to 
time in accordance with the provisions thereof and together with the herein authorized and defined 
Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease (collectively, the "Lease"), by an between the Issuer, as lessor, and 
Learjet Inc., a Kansas corporation (the "Tenant"), as lessee, under which the proceeds of the Outstanding 
Bonds were used to pay a portion of the costs of the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer has heretofore and does hereby find and determine that it is desirable in 

order to promote, stimulate and develop the general economic welfare and prosperity of the Issuer and the 
State of Kansas that the Issuer issue a twenty-third series of its taxable industrial revenue bonds to be 
designated "City of Wichita, Kansas, Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds, Series [NO], 2013 (Learjet 
Inc.)" in the original aggregate principal amount not to exceed $1,573,912.57 (the "Series [NO], 2013 
Bonds"), for the purpose of installing the improvements to certain existing aviation manufacturing and 
flight testing facilities, as well as to acquire certain machinery and equipment for the Project (the "Series 
[NO], 2013 Additions"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds are more fully described in the Twenty-Third 

Supplemental Indenture and the Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease hereinafter authorized; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds and the interest thereon shall not constitute an 

indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of any constitutional provision or statutory limitation, shall 
not constitute nor give rise to a pecuniary liability of the Issuer, nor shall any Series [NO], 2013 Bond or 
the interest thereon be a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the Issuer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds are not general obligations of the Issuer and are 

payable solely from certain fees, rentals, revenues and other amounts derived by the Issuer pursuant to the 
Lease, as the same may be further amended and supplemented and, under certain circumstances, from the 
proceeds of the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds and insurance and condemnation awards; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer further finds and determines that it is necessary and desirable in 

connection with the issuance of the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds (i) to execute and deliver a Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Trust Indenture (the "Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture"), for the purpose of issuing 
and securing the Series [MO], 2013 Bonds as provided therein; and (ii) to enter into a Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Lease (the "Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease"), pursuant to which the Issuer shall cause 
the Series [NO], 2013 Additions to be leased to the Tenant in consideration of payments 'of Series [NO], 
2013 Supplemental Basic Rent, Series [NO], 2013 Supplemental Additional Rent and other charges 
provided for therein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured and on a parity 

with the Outstanding Bonds and any Additional Bonds (collectively referred to hereinafter as the 
"Bonds") subject to any partial redemption or release of pledged property permitted by the Lease or 
Indenture; 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer has heretofore issued its Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds Series VII, 

2002 ("the Series 2002 Bonds") pursuant to a Sixth Supplemental Indenture and Sixth Supplemental 
Lease each dated as of December 1, 2002; and 

 

25



JLN\600809.070\BOND ORDINANCE (5-20-13) 
 

3 

WHEREAS, the Trustee has certified that the Series 2002 Bonds have been paid in full and no 
Series 2001 Bonds remain Outstanding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company desires to exercise its option to purchase that portion of the Project 

financed with the Series 2002 Bonds (the “2002 Addition”), exclusive of the Issuer's interest in the 
Premises; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City hereby waives the notice provisions of the Sixth Supplemental Lease with 

respect to the Company's exercise of its option to purchase the 2002 Additions and finds and determines it 
necessary and desirable to execute a Bill of Sale conveying the 2002 Additions to the Company and to 
release the 2002 Additions from the Lease and from the pledge of the Indenture; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  Definition of Terms.  All terms and phrases not otherwise defined herein shall have 

the respective meanings set forth in the Indenture and Lease. 
 
Section 2.  Authority to Cause the Series [NO], 2013 Additions to be Constructed, Installed 

and Equipped.  The governing body of the Issuer hereby declares that the Series [NO], 2013 Additions, 
if in being, would promote the welfare of the City of Wichita, Kansas, and the Issuer is hereby authorized 
to cause the Series [NO], 2013 Additions to be constructed, installed and equipped all in the manner and 
as more particularly described in the Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture and in the Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Lease hereinafter authorized. 

 
Section 3.  Authorization of and Security for the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds.  There is hereby 

authorized and directed to be issued a series of the Issuer's taxable industrial revenue bonds in an original 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $1,573,912.57 for the purpose of installing the improvements to 
certain existing aviation manufacturing and flight testing facilities and additions, as well as acquiring 
certain machinery and equipment to the existing facilities located in the City of Wichita, Kansas, such 
series of such taxable industrial revenue bonds to be designated "City of Wichita, Kansas, Taxable 
Industrial Revenue Bonds, Series [NO], 2013 (Learjet Inc.)." The Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall be dated 
and bear· interest, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be in such forms, shall be subject to 
redemption and payment prior to the maturity thereof, and shall be issued in the manner prescribed and 
subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in the Indenture.  The Series [NO], 2013 
Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured and on a parity with the Outstanding Bonds and any 
Additional Bonds, subject to any partial redemption or release of pledged property permitted by the Lease 
or Indenture.  The Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall be special limited obligations of the Issuer payable 
solely from the revenues derived by the Issuer pursuant to the Lease, or otherwise in connection with the 
Project.  The Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall not be general obligations of or constitute a pledge of the 
faith and credit of the Issuer within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision and shall not 
be payable in any manner from tax revenues.  The Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall be secured under the 
provisions of the Indenture and are authorized hereby. 

 
Section 4.  Authorization of Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture.  The Issuer is hereby 

authorized to enter into the Twenty-Third Supplemental Trust Indenture (the "Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Indenture"), by and between the Issuer and the Trustee, under which the Issuer shall pledge 
and assign to the Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, the Trust Estate referenced herein, 
all upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture. 

 

26



JLN\600809.070\BOND ORDINANCE (5-20-13) 
 

4 

Section 5.  Lease of the Series [NO], 2013 Additions.  The Issuer shall cause the Series [NO], 
2013 Additions to be leased by the Issuer to the Tenant pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease (the Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease"), by and between the 
Issuer and the Tenant. 

 
Section 6.  Authorization of Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall 

be sold and delivered to Learjet Inc., upon the terms and subject to the provisions of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement herein authorized (the "Bond Purchase Agreement"), by and between the Issuer and Learjet 
Inc., as purchaser. 

 
Section 7.  Approval of Guaranty Agreement.  The form of Guaranty Agreement pursuant to 

which the Tenant guarantees to the Trustee, for the benefit of the Owners of the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds, 
the full and prompt payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Series 
[NO], 2013 Bonds, is hereby approved. 

 
Section 8.  Authorization of Bill of Sale.  The City is hereby authorized to deliver a Bill of Sale 

conveying the 2002 Additions from the City to the Tenant. 
 
Section 9.  Execution of Series [NO], 2013 Bonds and Agreements.  The Mayor of the Issuer is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds and deliver the same to the 
Trustee for authentication for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the Issuer in the manner 
provided in the Indenture.  The Mayor or Vice Mayor is hereby further authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver the Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture, the Twenty-Third Supplemental Lease and the 
Bond Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the Issuer with such minor 
corrections or amendments thereto as the Mayor or Vice Mayor shall approve (which approval shall be 
evidenced by his execution thereof) and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be 
necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the purposes and intent of this Ordinance.  The City 
Clerk and any Deputy City Clerk of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to attest the execution 
of the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds, the Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture, the Twenty-Third 
Supplemental Lease and the Bond Purchase Agreement and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 10.  Pledge of the Project.  The Issuer hereby pledges the Series [NO], 20132 Additions 

and the net revenues therefrom to the payment of the Outstanding Bonds in accordance with K.S.A. 12-
1744.  The lien created by such pledge shall be discharged when all of the Series [NO], 2013 Bonds shall 
be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of the Indenture, as the same may be amended. 

 
Section 11.  Further Authority.  The Issuer shall, and the officers, agents and employees of the 

Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action and execute such other documents, 
certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the provisions 
of this Ordinance and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the Issuer with respect to the 
Series [NO], 2013 Bonds, the Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture, the Twenty-Third Supplemental 
Lease and the Bond Purchase Agreement all as necessary to carry out and give effect to the transaction 
contemplated hereby and thereby. 

 
Section 12.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

its passage by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas and publication once in the official 
newspaper of the Issuer. 
 
 

Remainder of the Page Intentionally Left Blank 

27



 

JLN\600809.070\BOND ORDINANCE (5-20-13) 
 

(Signature page to Bond Ordinance) 

PASSED by the Governing Body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on June 25, 2013. 
 

CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
(Seal) 

By___________________________________ 
 Carl Brewer, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
By______________________________ 
 Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By______________________________ 
 Gary E. Rebenstorf, City Attorney 
 

28



   
   Agenda Item No. IV-2 
 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Designation of WSU Special Tax Levy to payment of Sedgwick County Public 

Building Commission Bonds  (District I) 
 
INITIATED BY: Office of Urban Development  
 
AGENDA: New Business 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Approve first reading of the Ordinance designating a portion of the WSU Special 
Tax Levy to guarantee lease payments by Wichita State University to the Sedgwick County Public 
Building Commission. 
 
Background:  On November 1, 2001, the Wichita Public Building Commision (“PBC”) issued 
improvement and refunding revenue bonds for Wichita State University (“WSU”) in the amount of 
$17,295,000 (Series L, 2001) to refund bonds issued in 1992 and 1997, and provide additional funds for 
renovation and new construction.  The Series L, 2001 PBC Bonds are secured by a pledge of the 
countywide 1.5-mill Special Tax Levy for WSU (the “WSU Special Tax Levy”), authorized by both the 
Wichita City Council and the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners. 
 
City and County staff have received a request from the Wichita State University Board of Trustees (the 
“Trustees”) to refinance the Series L, 2001 bonds in order to achieve interest cost savings and to release 
certain property from the pledge of the Series 2001 Bonds.  After consulting with City and County staff, 
the Trustees have requested that the Sedgwick County Public Building Commission (the “County PBC”) 
issue revenue bonds in an amount estimated at $6.1 million to refund the outstanding Series, L, 2001 
Wichita PBC bonds. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners of Sedgwick County (the “County”) adopted a resolution on June 5, 
2013 requesting the County PBC issue revenue bonds as aforementioned, declaring an intent to enter into 
a lease with the County PBC to secure such revenue bonds and a sublease with the Trustees to provide for 
payment of the revenue bonds from a portion of the WSU Special Mill Levy, and pledging the County’s 
portion of the WSU Special Tax Levy to the repayment of the County PBC revenue bonds.  The County 
PBC adopted, on June 5, 2013, a resolution of intent to issue the revenue bonds for such purposes. 
 
Analysis:  The WSU Trustees have requested that the County PBC issue the revenue bonds which will 
redeem all outstanding Wichita PBC bonds issued on behalf of the Trustees.  Once the Series L, 2001 
Bonds are redeemed, the only remaining outstanding Wichita PBC bonds will be the Series N, 2003 
Bonds issued for the State Office Building in downtown Wichita, which will mature in September 2014.  
With no prospects for future financings, the Wichita PBC could be decommissioned at that time.   
 
The County PBC bond proceeds will be used primarily to acquire existing WSU facilities by redeeming 
currently existing debt, and to pay costs of issuance.  The County PBC bonds will be secured by a lease 
agreement between the County PBC and the County and a sublease between the County and the Trustees 
covering primarily the Woodman Alumni Center.  The term of the County PBC revenue bonds will match 

29



Designation of WSU Special Tax Levy 
June 18, 2013 
Page 2 
 
that of the Series L, 2001 Wichita PBC bonds, which are scheduled to mature in 2017.  To further secure 
the payment of the revenue bonds, the City and County are required to take official action designating 
sufficient monies from the WSU Special Tax Levy for this purpose.  The WSU Special Tax Levy was 
approved by Charter Ordinance No. 8 in 1966. 
 
The City’s authority to designate the use of the WSU Special Tax Levy is based in part on an interlocal 
cooperation agreement between the City and Sedgwick County, dated as of June 23, 1987, which gives 
the two jurisdictions joint authority to approve the use of the tax proceeds.  The interlocal agreement 
provides for possibility of termination annually upon notice, but not earlier than the payment of all 
outstanding revenue bonds secured by the City and County pledge of the WSU Special Mill Levy (2017).   
 
Financial Considerations:   The debt service payments for the proposed County PBC bonds will come 
from the WSU Special Tax Levy and will be paid directly to the County PBC (by the County Treasurer) 
as the tax revenues are received.  
  
Legal Considerations:   The firm of Gilmore & Bell, PC will serve as bond counsel in the County PBC 
transaction.  Bond Counsel has prepared the attached Ordinance, which designates the WSU Special Tax 
Levy revenue for payment of the debt service on the proposed PBC bonds.  The City’s Law Department 
has approved the Ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve first reading of the 
Ordinance designating a portion of the WSU Special Tax Levy to guarantee lease payments by the 
Wichita State University Board of Trustees to the Sedgwick County Public Building Commission, and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

30



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE (05-31-13) 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
05/31/2013 

 
EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 

HELD ON JUNE 18, 2013 
 
 The governing body (the “Governing Body”) of the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) met in 
regular session at the usual meeting place in the City at 9:00 A.M.  The Mayor CARL BREWER presided 
and the following members of the Governing Body were present: 
 

 
 
 Absent:   
 
 The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
(Other Proceedings) 

 
 Thereupon, there was presented for first reading an Ordinance entitled: 
 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE USE OF A PORTION OF THE SPECIAL 
AD VALOREM TAX LEVY MADE PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 
K.S.A. 76-3A07 AND CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 8 OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS, AND AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED BY K.S.A. 12-1757 
ET SEQ., AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED BY CHARTER ORDINANCE 
NOS. 107, 149 AND 162 OF THE CITY. 

 
 Thereupon, Councilmember __________________ moved that said Ordinance be approved on 
first reading.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember __________________.  Said Ordinance was 
duly read and considered, and upon being put, the motion for approval was carried by the vote of the 
governing body, the vote being as follows: 
 
 Aye:           . 
 
 Nay:           . 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
(Other Proceedings) 

 
[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

31



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE 
(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the Governing Body, held on the date stated therein, and that the official minutes of such 
proceedings are on file in my office. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
 

32



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE (05-31-13) 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
05/31/2013 

 
EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 

HELD ON JUNE 25, 2013 
 
 The governing body (the “Governing Body”) of the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) met in 
regular session at the usual meeting place in the City at 9:00 A.M.  The Mayor CARL BREWER presided 
and the following members of the Governing Body were present: 
 

 
 
 Absent:   
 
 The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
(Other Proceedings) 

 
 Thereupon, there was presented an Ordinance entitled: 
 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE USE OF A PORTION OF THE SPECIAL 
AD VALOREM TAX LEVY MADE PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 
K.S.A. 76-3A07 AND CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 8 OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS, AND AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED BY K.S.A. 12-1757 
ET SEQ., AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED BY CHARTER ORDINANCE 
NOS. 107, 149 AND 162 OF THE CITY. 

 
 Thereupon, Councilmember ____________________ moved that said Ordinance be passed.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember ____________________.  Said Ordinance, having been 
approved by a first reading on June 18, 2013, was duly read and considered, and upon being put, the 
motion for the passage of said Ordinance was carried by the vote of the governing body, the vote being as 
follows: 
 
 Aye:           . 
 
 Nay:           . 
 
 Thereupon, the Mayor declared said Ordinance duly passed and the Ordinance was then duly 
numbered Ordinance No. ______, was signed and approved by the Mayor and attested by the Clerk and 
the Ordinance or a summary thereof was directed to be published one time in the official newspaper of the 
City. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
(Other Proceedings) 

 
[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

33



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE 
(Signature Page to Excerpt of Minutes) 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the Governing Body, held on the date stated therein, and that the official minutes of such 
proceedings are on file in my office. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 

34



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE (05-31-13) 
 

(PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON JUNE 28, 2013) 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-521 
 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE USE OF A PORTION OF THE SPECIAL 
AD VALOREM TAX LEVY MADE PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 
K.S.A. 76-3A07 AND CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 8 OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS, AND AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED BY K.S.A. 12-1757 
ET SEQ., AS AMENDED AND SUPPLEMENTED BY CHARTER ORDINANCE 
NOS. 107, 149 AND 162 OF THE CITY. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the governing body (the “Governing Body”) of the City of Wichita, Kansas (the 
“City”) has heretofore created the Wichita Public Building Commission, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Kansas (the “PBC”), under the authority of K.S.A. 12-1757 et seq., as amended by Charter 
Ordinance Nos. 107, 149 and 162 of the City (collectively the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the PBC is authorized to issue revenue bonds to finance the 
acquisition of a site or sites for constructing, reconstructing, equipping and furnishing a building or 
buildings or other facilities of a revenue producing character, including parking facilities, or for 
purchasing or otherwise acquiring such site or sites, building or buildings or facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the PBC has heretofore issued its Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series L, 2001 
(Wichita State University Projects), in the original principal amount of $17,295,000 (the “Series 2001 
Bonds”) to refinance certain prior bonds of the PBC which provided financing to acquire, construct and 
renovate various facilities located on or adjacent to the campus of Wichita State University; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body has the authority pursuant to the Act and K.S.A. 76-3a07, as 
amended by Charter Ordinance No. 8 of the City, to designate the proceeds of a one and one-half mill 
special ad valorem tax levy (the “Special Tax Levy”) made pursuant thereto for the purpose of 
guaranteeing lease payments made by the Board of Trustees of Wichita State University (the “Trustees”) 
to the PBC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body has passed Ordinance No. 45-125, which designated from the 
Special Tax Levy sufficient monies (which are not to exceed available proceeds from the Special Tax 
Levy) to guarantee the rentals under the lease entered into contemporaneously with the issuance of the 
Series 2001 Bonds until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2001 Bonds is paid 
and they are no longer deemed outstanding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sedgwick County, Kansas (the “County”), 
has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 158-2001, which designated from its Special Tax Levy sufficient 
monies (which are not to exceed available proceeds from the Special Tax Levy) to guarantee the rentals 
under the lease entered into contemporaneously with the issuance of the Series 2001 Bonds until the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2001 Bonds is paid and they are no longer 
deemed outstanding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Trustees, the PBC and the County have requested that the Sedgwick County 
Public Building Commission issue its revenue bonds (the “Series 2013-1 Bonds”) for the purpose of 
acquiring the Woodman Alumni Center (the “Project”), a public building owned by the Trustees that was 
financed by the Series 2001 Bonds, at an estimated cost of $6,100,000; and 
 

35



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE (05-31-13) 
2 

 WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the sale of the Series 2013-1 Bonds, the Governing Body 
hereby deems it advisable to designate a portion of the Special Tax Levy to guarantee the rentals to be 
made by the Trustees pursuant to a sublease of the Project entered into contemporaneously with the 
issuance of the Series 2013-1 Bonds (the “Sublease”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Special Tax Levy Designation.  There is hereby designated by the Governing 
Body, pursuant to the authority granted in the Act and K.S.A. 76-3a07, as amended by Charter Ordinance 
No. 8 of the City, from the Special Tax Levy authorized therein, sufficient monies for the Trustees to 
guarantee the rental under the Sublease entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Series 2013-1 
Bonds.  This designation shall not be construed as a guarantee beyond the proceeds of such Special Tax 
Levy, provided further that this designation shall continue only so long as the Series 2013-1 Bonds and 
any interest thereon shall remain outstanding. 
 
 Section 2. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage by the governing body of the City and publication in the official City newspaper. 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

36



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE 
(Signature Page to Ordinance) 

 PASSED by the Governing Body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on June 25, 2013 and signed by 
the Mayor. 
 
 
 
 
(Seal)              

Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       

Gary E. Rebenstrof, Director of Law 
 
 

37



 

JLN\600616.011\CITY SPECIAL TAX LEVY DESIGNATION ORDINANCE 
(Certificate to Ordinance) 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the original ordinance; that said 
Ordinance was passed on June 25, 2013; that the record of the final vote on its passage is found on page 
____ of journal ____; and that the Ordinance or a summary thereof was published in THE WICHITA 
EAGLE on June 28, 2013. 
 
 DATED:  June 28, 2013. 
 
              

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 

38



           Agenda Report No. IV-3 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT:   Ordinance amending Section 5.88.010 relating to the Unlawful 

Possession of Weapons 
       
INITIATED BY:    Law Department 
 
AGENDA:    New Business  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the ordinance and place on first reading.  
 
Background:  During the recent legislative session, House Bill 2033 was passed by the Kansas 
Legislature.  The Bill made revisions to state laws regarding the possession of knives.  Amendments to 
the City Code regarding possession of knives are required to comply with the state statute.   
 
Analysis:  The Bill prohibits cities from enacting any ordinance, resolution or rule relating to the 
possession, sale or transfer of a knife or knife making components.  The Bill requires the City to repeal 
existing ordinances which make it a crime to carry, with the intent to use unlawfully against another, a 
knife or knife making components.  
 
The proposed amendments repeal existing prohibitions of carrying knives over a certain length or any 
other knife-type weapon on one’s person.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None  
 
Legal Considerations:  The ordinance amendments have been drafted and approved as to form by the 
Law Department.  
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council  adopt the ordinance and place it 
on first reading.  
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 
 

39



First Published in The Wichita Eagle on ______________ 
 
 
DELINEATED         05/12/2013 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.88.010 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO WEAPONS AND 
REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF SAID SECTION.  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 5.88.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

"Unlawful use of weapons. (1) Unlawful use of a weapon is 

knowingly: 

(a) Selling, manufacturing, purchasing, possessing or carrying 

any bludgeon, sandclub, night stick, metal knuckles or throwing star, or 

any knife, commonly referred to as a switch-blade, which has a blade that 

opens automatically by hand pressure applied to a button, spring or other 

device in the handle of the knife, or any knife having a blade that opens or 

falls or is ejected into position by the force of gravity or by an outward, 

downward or centrifugal thrust or movement. This subsection shall not 

prohibit an ordinary pocket knife which has a spring, detent or other 

device which creates a bias towards closure of the blade and which 

requires hand pressure applied to such spring, detent or device through the 

40

javascript:void(0)


- 2     - 
 

blade of the knife to overcome the bias towards closure to assist in the 

opening of the knife;  

(b) Carrying concealed on one's person, or pPossessing with 

intent to use the same unlawfully against another,  any bludgeon, 

sandclub, a dagger, dirk, billy, blackjack, slingshot, nightstick, nun-

chucks, sap gloves, tomahawk, dangerous knife, straight-edged razor, 

stiletto or any other dangerous or deadly instrument of like character; 

except that an ordinary pocket knife with no blade more than four inches 

in length shall not be construed to be a dangerous knife or a dangerous or 

deadly weapon or instrument;  

(c) Carrying unconcealed on one's person or in any vehicle 

under one's immediate control, with intent to use the same unlawfully 

against another, any bludgeon, sandbclub, a dagger, dirk, billy, blackjack, 

slingshot, nightstick, nunchucks, sap gloves, tomahawk, dangerous knife, 

straight-edged razor, stiletto or any other dangerous or deadly instrument 

of like character; except that an ordinary pocket knife with no blade more 

than four inches in length shall not be construed to be a dangerous knife or 

a dangerous or deadly weapon or instrument;  

(c)  Setting a spring gun;  

(d)  Carrying any pistol, revolver or other firearm concealed on 

one's person, while on property open to the public, except when on one's 

land or in one's abode or fixed place of business;  

41



- 3     - 
 

(e) Carrying on one's person any unconcealed, loaded firearm, 

while on property open to the public, except when on one's land or in one's 

abode or fixed place of business, unless the firearm is carried in a holster 

with its safety in place and such weapon remains within the immediate 

control of the person at all times;  

(f) Carrying in any vehicle a loaded firearm which is under 

one's immediate control, while on property open to the public, except 

when on one's land or in one's abode or fixed place of business;  

(g) Carrying in any air, land or water vehicle an unloaded 

firearm that is not encased in a container which completely encloses the 

firearm;  

(h) Carrying a loaded or unloaded firearm in a courtroom or 

within City Hall, provided such building has “adequate security measures” 

as defined by K.S.A. 75-7c10 and amendments thereto ; 

(i) Drawing a pistol, revolver, knife or any other deadly 

weapon upon any person; 

(j) As used in this section, "throwing star" means any 

instrument, without handles, consisting of a metal plate having three or 

more radiating points with one or more sharp edges and designed in the 

shape of a polygon, trefoil, cross, star, diamond or other geometric shape, 

manufactured for use as a weapon for throwing.  

(k) As used in this section, ‘under one’s immediate control’ 

shall mean within reaching distance of the person.   

42



- 4     - 
 

(2) Subsections (1)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) and (g), (h), and (i) of this 

subsection shall not apply to or affect any of the following:  

(a) Law enforcement officers, or any person summoned by any 

such officers to assist in making arrests or preserving the peace while 

actually engaged in assisting such officer;  

(b) Wardens, superintendents, directors, security personnel and 

keepers of prisons, penitentiaries, jails and other institutions for the 

detention of persons accused or convicted of a crime, while acting within 

the scope of their authority;  

(c) Members of the Armed Services or Reserve Forces of the 

United States or the Kansas National Guard while in the performance of 

their official duty; or  

(d) Manufacture of, transportation to, or sale of weapons to a 

person authorized under (a) through (c) of this subsection to possess such 

weapons.  

(e) Qualified law enforcement officers or qualified retired law 

enforcement officers pursuant to the Law Enforcement Officers Safety 

Act, 18 U.S.C. 926B and 18 U.S.C. 926C and amendments thereto.  

(f) Individuals employed as security officers by the City of 

Wichita, who are authorized by the chief of police, with the approval of 

the city manager, to carry firearms, while acting within the scope of their 

authority as a security officer for the City of Wichita.  

43



- 5     - 
 

(3) Subsection (1)(d), (e) and (f) of this section shall not apply to or 

affect the following: 

(a) Private security officers who have been issued and are in 

possession of both a valid permit as required by Section 3.72.040 of this 

Code, and any amendments thereto, and a valid firearm permit issued by 

the Chief of Police pursuant to Section 3.72.210 of this code, and any 

amendments thereto, and are actually engaged in the performance of the 

duties of their employment; 

(b) Private detectives licensed by the state to carry the firearm 

involved while actually engaged in the duties of their employment; 

(c) Detectives or special agents regularly employed by railroad 

companies or other corporations to perform full-time security or 

investigative service, while actually engaged in the duties of their 

employment;  

(d) The State Fire Marshal, the State Fire Marshal's deputies or 

any member of a fire department authorized to carry a firearm pursuant to 

K.S.A. 31-157 and amendments thereto, while engaged in an investigation 

in which such fire marshal, deputy or member is authorized to carry a 

firearm pursuant to K.S.A. 31-157 and amendments thereto.  

(e) Special deputy sheriffs described in K.S.A. 19-827, and 

amendments thereto, who have satisfactorily completed the basic course of 

instruction required for permanent appointment as a part-time law 

enforcement officer under K.S.A. 74-5607a and amendments thereto.  

44



- 6     - 
 

(f) Persons who are employed by a licensed armored car 

service and whose duties include providing secured transportation, 

protecting and safeguarding valuable cargo from one place to another and 

providing cash services for automated teller machines, all by means of 

bullet-resistant armored vehicles.   

(4) Subsection (1)(i) of this section shall not apply to or affect 

historical re-enactors and actors when engaged in performances and 

demonstrations. Provided, however, this subsection shall only apply to those 

performances and demonstrations which have been approved in advance in 

writing by the city manager or his designee.  

(5) Subsection (1)(d), (e), (f), and (g) shall not apply to any person 

who sells, purchases, possesses or carries a firearm, device or attachment which 

has been rendered unserviceable by steel weld in the chamber and marriage weld 

of the barrel to the receiver and which has been registered in the national firearms 

registration and transfer record in compliance with 26 U.S.C. 5841 et seq., in the 

name of such person and, if such person transfers such firearm, device or 

attachment to another person, has been so registered in the transferee's name by 

the transferor.  

(6) Subsections 1(d), 1(f), and 1(g) shall not apply to: 

(a) Any person carrying a concealed weapon as authorized by 

K.S.A. 75-7c01 through K.S.A. 75-7c17, and amendments thereto.  

(b) The United States Attorney for the District of Kansas, the 

attorney general, or any district attorney or county attorney, while actually 

45



- 7     - 
 

engaged in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to 

such duties; any Assistant United States Attorney if authorized by the 

United States Attorney for the District of Kansas and while actually 

engaged in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to 

such duties; any assistant attorney general if authorized by the attorney 

general and while actually engaged in the duties of their employment or 

any activities incidental to such duties; or any assistant district attorney or 

assistant county attorney if authorized by the district attorney or county 

attorney by whom such assistant is employed and while actually engaged 

in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to such 

duties. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to any person not 

in compliance with 75-7c01, et seq. and amendments thereto.  

(7) Subsection 1(d) shall not apply to licensed hunters or fishermen, 

while engaged in hunting or fishing; 

(8) Subsection 1(h) shall not apply to individuals employed as security 

officers by the City of Wichita, who are authorized by the chief of police, with the 

approval of the city manager, to carry firearms, while acting within the scope of 

their authority as a security officer for the City of Wichita.  

 (9) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this section within 

the corporate limits of the city shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon 

conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $2,500.00 or by 

imprisonment for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  

46



- 8     - 
 

(10) In addition to the penalty for violation of any of the provisions of 

this section, it shall be the duty of the municipal court judge:  

(a) To order any weapon seized in connection with such 

violation which is not a firearm to be forfeited to the city and the same 

shall be destroyed or caused to be destroyed by the chief of police 

whenever the weapon is no longer needed for evidence;  

(b) To order any weapon seized in connection with such 

violation when no longer needed for evidentiary purposes, shall, in the 

discretion of the trial court, be:  

(i) Destroyed; 

(ii) Forfeited to the Wichita Police Department for use 

within the police department, for sale to a properly licensed federal 

firearms dealer or for trading to a properly licensed federal 

firearms dealer by the police department for other new or used 

firearms or accessories for the police department's use; or  

(iii) Forfeited to the Kansas Bureau of Investigation for 

law enforcement, testing, comparison or destruction by the Kansas 

Bureau of Investigation Forensic Laboratory.  

If weapons are sold as authorized above, the proceeds from any such sale 

shall be credited to the asset seizure and forfeiture fund of the Wichita Police 

Department. All transactions involving weapons disposed of under this subsection 

must have the prior approval of the city manager. All sales of weapons are subject 

to review by the city council.  

47



- 9     - 
 

(c) Any stolen weapon confiscated in connection with any 

violation of this section other than subdivision (a) of this subsection shall 

be returned to the person entitled to possession, if known, when the same 

is no longer needed for evidence. All other weapons shall be disposed of 

as provided in subsection (10)(a) and (b) of this section.  

 SECTION 2.  The original of Section 5.88.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this ________ day of 

_________________, 2013. 

 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law  
 

48



First Published in The Wichita Eagle on June 28, 2013 
 
 
CLEAN          06/03/2013 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-522 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.88.010 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO WEAPONS AND 
REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF SAID SECTION.  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 5.88.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

"Unlawful use of weapons. (1) Unlawful use of a weapon is 

knowingly: 

(a) Selling, manufacturing, purchasing, possessing or carrying 

any bludgeon, sandclub, night stick, metal knuckles or throwing star;  

(b) Possessing with intent to use the same unlawfully against 

another, any bludgeon, sandclub, billy, blackjack, slingshot, nightstick, 

nun-chucks, sap gloves, tomahawk or any other dangerous or deadly 

instrument of like character;  

(c) Setting a spring gun;  

(d)  Carrying any pistol, revolver or other firearm concealed on 

one's person, while on property open to the public, except when on one's 

land or in one's abode or fixed place of business;  

49

javascript:void(0)


- 2     - 
 

(e) Carrying on one's person any unconcealed, loaded firearm, 

while on property open to the public, except when on one's land or in one's 

abode or fixed place of business, unless the firearm is carried in a holster 

with its safety in place and such weapon remains within the immediate 

control of the person at all times;  

(f) Carrying in any vehicle a loaded firearm which is under 

one's immediate control, while on property open to the public, except 

when on one's land or in one's abode or fixed place of business;  

(g) Carrying in any air, land or water vehicle an unloaded 

firearm that is not encased in a container which completely encloses the 

firearm;  

(h) Carrying a loaded or unloaded firearm in a courtroom or 

within City Hall, provided such building has “adequate security measures” 

as defined by K.S.A. 75-7c10 and amendments thereto; 

(i) Drawing a pistol, revolver or any other deadly weapon 

upon any person; 

(j) As used in this section, "throwing star" means any 

instrument, without handles, consisting of a metal plate having three or 

more radiating points with one or more sharp edges and designed in the 

shape of a polygon, trefoil, cross, star, diamond or other geometric shape, 

manufactured for use as a weapon for throwing.  

(k) As used in this section, ‘under one’s immediate control’ 

shall mean within reaching distance of the person.   

50



- 3     - 
 

(2) Subsections (1)(a), (b), (d), (e), (f) and (g), (h), and (i) of this 

subsection shall not apply to or affect any of the following:  

(a) Law enforcement officers, or any person summoned by any 

such officers to assist in making arrests or preserving the peace while 

actually engaged in assisting such officer;  

(b) Wardens, superintendents, directors, security personnel and 

keepers of prisons, penitentiaries, jails and other institutions for the 

detention of persons accused or convicted of a crime, while acting within 

the scope of their authority;  

(c) Members of the Armed Services or Reserve Forces of the 

United States or the Kansas National Guard while in the performance of 

their official duty; or  

(d) Manufacture of, transportation to, or sale of weapons to a 

person authorized under (a) through (c) of this subsection to possess such 

weapons.  

(e) Qualified law enforcement officers or qualified retired law 

enforcement officers pursuant to the Law Enforcement Officers Safety 

Act, 18 U.S.C. 926B and 18 U.S.C. 926C and amendments thereto.  

(f) Individuals employed as security officers by the City of 

Wichita, who are authorized by the chief of police, with the approval of 

the city manager, to carry firearms, while acting within the scope of their 

authority as a security officer for the City of Wichita.  

51



- 4     - 
 

(3) Subsection (1)(d), (e) and (f) of this section shall not apply to or 

affect the following: 

(a) Private security officers who have been issued and are in 

possession of both a valid permit as required by Section 3.72.040 of this 

Code, and any amendments thereto, and a valid firearm permit issued by 

the Chief of Police pursuant to Section 3.72.210 of this code, and any 

amendments thereto, and are actually engaged in the performance of the 

duties of their employment; 

(b) Private detectives licensed by the state to carry the firearm 

involved while actually engaged in the duties of their employment; 

(c) Detectives or special agents regularly employed by railroad 

companies or other corporations to perform full-time security or 

investigative service, while actually engaged in the duties of their 

employment;  

(d) The State Fire Marshal, the State Fire Marshal's deputies or 

any member of a fire department authorized to carry a firearm pursuant to 

K.S.A. 31-157 and amendments thereto, while engaged in an investigation 

in which such fire marshal, deputy or member is authorized to carry a 

firearm pursuant to K.S.A. 31-157 and amendments thereto.  

(e) Special deputy sheriffs described in K.S.A. 19-827, and 

amendments thereto, who have satisfactorily completed the basic course of 

instruction required for permanent appointment as a part-time law 

enforcement officer under K.S.A. 74-5607a and amendments thereto.  

52



- 5     - 
 

(f) Persons who are employed by a licensed armored car 

service and whose duties include providing secured transportation, 

protecting and safeguarding valuable cargo from one place to another and 

providing cash services for automated teller machines, all by means of 

bullet-resistant armored vehicles.   

(4) Subsection (1)(i) of this section shall not apply to or affect 

historical re-enactors and actors when engaged in performances and 

demonstrations. Provided, however, this subsection shall only apply to those 

performances and demonstrations which have been approved in advance in 

writing by the city manager or his designee.  

(5) Subsection (1)(d), (e), (f), and (g) shall not apply to any person 

who sells, purchases, possesses or carries a firearm, device or attachment which 

has been rendered unserviceable by steel weld in the chamber and marriage weld 

of the barrel to the receiver and which has been registered in the national firearms 

registration and transfer record in compliance with 26 U.S.C. 5841 et seq., in the 

name of such person and, if such person transfers such firearm, device or 

attachment to another person, has been so registered in the transferee's name by 

the transferor.  

(6) Subsections 1(d), 1(f), and 1(g) shall not apply to: 

(a) Any person carrying a concealed weapon as authorized by 

K.S.A. 75-7c01 through K.S.A. 75-7c17, and amendments thereto.  

(b) The United States Attorney for the District of Kansas, the 

attorney general, or any district attorney or county attorney, while actually 

53



- 6     - 
 

engaged in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to 

such duties; any Assistant United States Attorney if authorized by the 

United States Attorney for the District of Kansas and while actually 

engaged in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to 

such duties; any assistant attorney general if authorized by the attorney 

general and while actually engaged in the duties of their employment or 

any activities incidental to such duties; or any assistant district attorney or 

assistant county attorney if authorized by the district attorney or county 

attorney by whom such assistant is employed and while actually engaged 

in the duties of their employment or any activities incidental to such 

duties. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to any person not 

in compliance with 75-7c01, et seq. and amendments thereto.  

(7) Subsection 1(d) shall not apply to licensed hunters or fishermen, 

while engaged in hunting or fishing; 

(8) Subsection 1(h) shall not apply to individuals employed as security 

officers by the City of Wichita, who are authorized by the chief of police, with the 

approval of the city manager, to carry firearms, while acting within the scope of 

their authority as a security officer for the City of Wichita.  

 (9) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this section within 

the corporate limits of the city shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon 

conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $2,500.00 or by 

imprisonment for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  

54



- 7     - 
 

(10) In addition to the penalty for violation of any of the provisions of 

this section, it shall be the duty of the municipal court judge:  

(a) To order any weapon seized in connection with such 

violation which is not a firearm to be forfeited to the city and the same 

shall be destroyed or caused to be destroyed by the chief of police 

whenever the weapon is no longer needed for evidence;  

(b) To order any weapon seized in connection with such 

violation when no longer needed for evidentiary purposes, shall, in the 

discretion of the trial court, be:  

(i) Destroyed; 

(ii) Forfeited to the Wichita Police Department for use 

within the police department, for sale to a properly licensed federal 

firearms dealer or for trading to a properly licensed federal 

firearms dealer by the police department for other new or used 

firearms or accessories for the police department's use; or  

(iii) Forfeited to the Kansas Bureau of Investigation for 

law enforcement, testing, comparison or destruction by the Kansas 

Bureau of Investigation Forensic Laboratory.  

If weapons are sold as authorized above, the proceeds from any such sale 

shall be credited to the asset seizure and forfeiture fund of the Wichita Police 

Department. All transactions involving weapons disposed of under this subsection 

must have the prior approval of the city manager. All sales of weapons are subject 

to review by the city council.  

55



- 8     - 
 

(c) Any stolen weapon confiscated in connection with any 

violation of this section other than subdivision (a) of this subsection shall 

be returned to the person entitled to possession, if known, when the same 

is no longer needed for evidence. All other weapons shall be disposed of 

as provided in subsection (10)(a) and (b) of this section.  

 SECTION 2.  The original of Section 5.88.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this 25th day of June, 

2013. 

 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law  
 

56



         Agenda Report No. IV-4 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT:   Ordinance amending Section 5.88.020 relating to the Discharge of a 

Firearm 
       
INITIATED BY:    Law Department 
 
AGENDA:    New Business  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: Adopt ordinance and place on first reading.  
 
Background:  During the recent legislative session, Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2052 was 
passed by the Kansas Legislature.  The bill made revisions to state law regarding the discharge of a 
firearm.  Amendments to the City Code regarding discharge of a firearm are required to comply with the 
state statute.  
 
Analysis:  Ordinance amendments are required to comply with the provisions of the state statute.  The 
amendments: 
 

• Prohibit the reckless discharge of a firearm. 
• Allow the discharge of firearms by law enforcement, animal control and wildlife officials. 
• Allow the discharge of a firearm for the self defense of an individual or his/her property. 
• Allow the discharge of a firearm using blanks. 
• Allow the discharge of a firearm at shooting ranges approved by the Chief of Police. 
• Allow the discharge of a firearm in self-defense of an animal attack. 

 
Financial Considerations:  None  
 
Legal Considerations:  The ordinance amendments have been drafted and approved as to form by the 
Law Department.  
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt the ordinance and place it on 
first reading.  
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

57



First Published in The Wichita Eagle on ______________ 
 
 
DELINEATED         06/04/2013 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.88.020 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE 
OF A FIREARM, AIR RIFLES, PELLET GUNS AND BB GUNS AND 
REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF SAID SECTION.  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 5.88.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

(1) It is unlawful for any person to recklessly discharge or fire any gun, pistol, air 

rifle, pellet gun, BB gun or any other firearm within the corporate limits of the 

city except at any properly licensed shooting gallery or upon a pistol range or at a 

gun club, either of which shall be approved by the chief of police.  

(2) This section shall not apply to the discharge of any firearm if:   

(a) The firearm is discharged at a private or public shooting range which has been 

approved by the chief of police;  

(b) The firearm is discharged in the lawful defense of one’s  person, another 

person or one’s property;  

(c) The firearm is discharged to by authorized law enforcement officers, animal 

control officers or a  person who has a wildlife control permit issued by the 

Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism; 

58



2 
 

(d) The firearm is discharged using blanks; or 

(e) The firearm is discharged in lawful self-defense or defense of another person 

against an animal attack.  

(a) lLaw enforcement officers while actually engaged in the performance of such 

officer's duty. 

(3) This section shall not apply to health officers while actually engaged in the 

performance of such officers duty. 

(4) This section shall not apply to historical reenactors and actors when engaged in 

performances and demonstrations when the powder charge does not exceed thirty grains 

for pistols, sixty-five grains for long guns and one-quarter pound for cannon, and the gun 

contains no projectile other than the minimum amount of wadding necessary to hold the 

powder charge in place. Provided, however, this subsection shall only apply to those 

performances and demonstrations which have been approved in advance in writing by the 

city manager or the city managers designee.  

(5) (3) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this section is guilty of a 

misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not to exceed five 

hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than one year, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment.  

(6) (4) In addition to the penalty for the violation of this section, it shall be the duty of 

the municipal court judge to order any weapon seized in connection with such violation 

to be forfeited to the city and the same shall be disposed of by the chief of police  

SECTION 2.  The original of Section 5.88.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, is hereby repealed. 

59



3 
 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this ________ day of 

_________________, 2013. 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 
 

______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law  

 

 

60



First Published in The Wichita Eagle on June 28, 2013 
 
 
CLEAN          06/04/2013 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO.49-523 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.88.020 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE 
OF A FIREARM, AIR RIFLES, PELLET GUNS AND BB GUNS AND 
REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF SAID SECTION.  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 5.88.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

(1) It is unlawful for any person to recklessly discharge or fire any gun, pistol, air 

rifle, pellet gun, BB gun or any other firearm within the corporate limits of the 

city.  

(2) This section shall not apply to the discharge of any firearm if:   

(a) The firearm is discharged at a private or public shooting range which has been 

approved by the chief of police;  

(b) The firearm is discharged in the lawful defense of one’s  person, another 

person or one’s property;  

(c) The firearm is discharged by authorized law enforcement officers, animal 

control officers or a  person who has a wildlife control permit issued by the 

Kansas department of wildlife, parks and tourism; 

(d) The firearm is discharged using blanks; or 

61



(e) The firearm is discharged in lawful self-defense or defense of another person 

against an animal attack.  

(3) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this section is guilty of a 

misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not to exceed five 

hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than one year, or by both such fine and 

imprisonment.  

(4) In addition to the penalty for the violation of this section, it shall be the duty of 

the municipal court judge to order any weapon seized in connection with such violation 

to be forfeited to the city and the same shall be disposed of by the chief of police  

SECTION 2.  The original of Section 5.88.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, is hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this 25th day of June, 

2013. 

 

      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      Approved as to Form: 

 

______________________________  _________________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk    Gary E. Rebenstorf 
       Director of Law 

 

 

62



Revised June 17, 2013     Agenda Item No.  IV-5 
 
 

CITY OF WICHITA 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution exempting Certain Public Buildings and Facilities from the Provisions 

of Senate Substitute for House Bill 2052 (2013)  
 
INITIATED BY:  Law Department 
 
AGENDA:    New Business 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution.   
 
Background:  The Kansas Legislature recently passed Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2052 
allowing carry concealed permit holders to carry handguns in municipal buildings and facilities, unless 
such facilities are properly posted to prohibit such actions and have “adequate security measures”. 
Adequate security measures is defined by the bill to require facilities to have electronic equipment and 
personnel at public entrances to detect and restict the carrying of weapons into public buildings. 
Currently, the only city building with these measures in place is City Hall.  The bill allows municipalities 
to request exemption from the provisions of the bill until January 1, 2014, to allow governmnental 
agencies to provide security plans for these facilities.  A request for an exemption must be made to the 
Kansas Attorney General no later than July 1, 2013.  
 
After a request is made for an exemption, an additional exemption may be requested by municipalities for 
a period not to exceed four years.  This exemption requires that a resolution be passed listing the legal 
description of such building, listing the reasons for such exemption and including a statement that a 
security plan has been developed for the building being exempted.  
 
In February 2012, staff made recommendations to the City Council regarding certain public buildings 
where permit holders could carry firearems. (Exhibit A) At that time, one hundred seven (107) 
buildings were designated to allow carry concealed weapons. Currently, there are two hundred 
eighty six facilities where carry concealed weapons are prohibited.   
 
The list of buildings where concealed carry was prohibited was based on a number of criteria including, 
but not limited to: 
 
1. Courthouse or facility where court proceedings are conducted 
2. Building utilized by City Council for meetings or public hearings 
3.  Police substations 
4. Buildings which serve as polling places 
5. Buildings where youth activities or athletic events are held 
6. Buildings where alcohol or cereal malt beverage is allowed to be served or consumed 
7. Facilities which are leased to 3rd parties on a full time basis, which the City does not 

have control of the premises  

63



8. Detention facilities, warrant offices or booking facilities 
9. Buildings which serve as licensed child care facilities 
10. Buildings which are used as community health facilities or provide mental health 

Services 
11. Libraries 
12. Concealed carry restricted or banned by federal law OR buildings which house 

facilities heavily regulated by the federal government. 
13. Building/contents are critical infrastructure, water treatment facilities, etc. 
14. Facilities which are governed by other advisory boards or authorities: Airport,   Park,    Transit 

and Library boards 
15. Building is neither owned by nor leased by the City or no longer exists – should not be on list. 
 
Specific security plans were not reviewed or developed by staff in 2012. Legislative committee comments 
would suggest that the City’s analysis of the buildings is a sufficient review of the buildings to support a 
request for exemption. However, given that the bill requires that security plans be maintained on file, it is 
staff’s legal opinion that the review conducted in 2012, would not comply with the required terms of the 
new legislation. In order to exempt buildings from the legislation until 2017, security plans must be 
developed for any building sought for exemption. 
 
Analysis:  There are two options available to the City Council: 
 

1) Allow weapons in all city buildings and facilities, with the exemption of City Hall, which 
currently has the adequate security measures required by the Bill; 
 

2) Request exemption from the Bill’s provisions until January 1, 2014 and direct staff to 
complete a security plan for each building currently prohibiting concealed carry permit 
holders from carrying handguns in public buildings and facilities.  

 
WPD staff estimate that it will cost approximately one million dollars for equipment 
necessary for  “adequate security measures”  to exist for each building listed in Exhibit A.  
Additional security personnel costs, if all buildings were to prohibit concealed weapons, 
would be approximately $14.5 million dollars per year. Additional costs, which cannot be 
estimated at this time, would include any required re-construction of buildings for necessary 
security equipment and any necessary security consultanting fees for buildings, such as 
Century II, which could require design and security experience beyond that of current police 
department staff.  

 
Financial Considerations:  None at this time. If the council determines to initiate steps to place adequate 
security measures at all city buildings, the estimated cost would be approximately 1 million dollars for 
equipment and a yearly expense of 14.5 million dollars in personnel costs.  
 
Legal Considerations:  The resolution has been prepared and approved as to form by the Law 
Department. 
 
Recommendations/Actions: It is recommended that the City Council pass the resolution and that 
notice be sent by the mayor to the Kansas Attorney General requesting exemption from the provisions of 
Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2052 and that staff be directed to develop security plans for 
buildings where continued exemption of the bills provisions is sought.  
 
Attachment: Resolution and Exhibit A of buildings sought to be exempted.  
 

64



RESOLUTION NO. 13-108 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING EXEMPTION FROM THE APPLICABILITY 
OF THE KANSAS PERSONAL AND FAMILY PROTECTION ACT TO CITY-
OWNED BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES AS AUTHORIZED BY SENATE 
SUBSTITUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 2052 (2013) 
 

 WHEREAS, the State of Kansas has enacted the Personal and Family Protection Act, 

K.S.A. 75-7c01, et seq.; and  

 WHEREAS, the Act restricts carrying concealed handguns on certain premises which are 

conspicuously posted in accordance with the provisions of the Act and rules and regulations 

adopted by the Kansas Attorney General ; and  

 WHEREAS, the Act permits persons licensed pursuant to the Act to carry a concealed 

handgun within a building or buildings of municipalities whenever such building or facility is not 

posted according to the provisions of the Act and in buildings which do not have adequate 

security measures, as required by Senate Substitute for House Bill 2052 (2013).   

 WHEREAS, in 2012, City staff reviewed City-owned buildings and facilities and made 

recommendations regarding certain public buildings and facilities in which persons could carry a 

handgun if properly licensed.   

 WHEREAS, on February 14, 2012, the City Council designated buildings that were not 

to be posted with signs as provided by K.S.A. 75-7c01(f) and persons properly licensed under the 

Act were permitted to carry a concealed handgun into any such building.   

 WHEREAS, the Kansas Legislature passed Senate Substitute for House Bill 2052 (2013), 

which becomes effective on July 1, 2013, which precludes cities from prohibiting persons from 

carrying a concealed handgun into a state or municipal building unless the building has 

“adequate security measures” as defined by the Act.  The bill allows a municipality to request 

65



- 2     - 
 

that municipal buildings be exempt from the provisions of the bill, until January 1, 2014, to 

allow the municipality to adopt security plans for buildings sought to be exempted. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF WICHITA THAT:   

 SECTION 1. The Mayor is directed to notify the Kansas Attorney General, Wichita 

Chief of Police and the Sedgwick County Sheriff that the City of Wichita requests exemption 

from the provisions of Senate Substitute for House Bill 2052 (2013) until January 1, 2014, for 

the buildings listed in Exhibit A, which were designated by the City Council on February 14, 

2012, as buildings which prohibited concealed carry permit holders from bringing weapons into 

public buildings and facilities;   

 SECTION 2.  Staff is directed to review all buildings listed in Exhibit A, prior to January 

1, 2014, to make recommendations regarding whether concealed carry weapons should remain 

prohibited in such buildings and facilities, to list reasons for exemption of these buildings and to 

develop a security plan for such facilities.  

 SECTION 3. This resolution shall become effective upon its approval and passage by 

the governing body of the City of Wichita.   

      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk  
 
Approved as to Form:   
 
_________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf  
City Attorney  

66



            Agenda Item No. IV-6 
 
 

CITY OF WICHITA 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 

 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinances amending Sections 1.06.010 and 1.06.060 regarding Domestic 

Violence Offenses and passing a Charter Ordinance amending Charter 
Ordinances 164, 168, 202, and 218 regarding Muncipal Court Procedures.  

 
INITIATED BY: Law Department 
 
AGENDA:   New Business 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the ordinances and place on first reading.    
 
Background:  During the 2012 legislative session, Senate Bill 304 was passed which required municipal 
courts, beginning July 1, 2013, to order mandatory treatment and counseling for offenders convicted of a  
Domestic Violence Offense. The statute requires that treatment providers and evaluators be certified by 
the Kansas Attorney General’s Office as “certified batterer programs” in order to provide court 
assessments and treatment. The legislation also dictates requirements for offender assessments and 
mandates assessment providers to recommend treatment for domestic violence offenders of at least 
twenty-four (24) weeks. Currently, treatment ordered by municipal court judges ranges from a one day 
informational class to twenty-six (26) weeks of Anger Management, depending upon the facts and 
circumstances of the case. 
 
Additionally, the statute requires the offender to pay for the assessment and any recommended court 
ordered treatment. There are no provisions in the statute to waive the assessment fee or treatment costs if 
a defendant is indigent.  
 
During the legislative session, Municipal Court Judge William Kehr presented testimony in opposition to 
the Bill. Judge Kehr testified that the Bill took away the court’s judicial discretion in determining the 
appropriate sentence and level and extent of treatment to be imposed on offenders. Testimony was also 
presented regarding the Bill’s negative impact on jail fees assessed against the City. The City of Wichita 
prosecutes more domestic violence cases than any Kansas municipality.  
 
In 2012, approximately 3,600 domestic cases were filed in the Wichita Municipal Court. The types of 
charges filed in the Municipal Court include:  Domestic Battery, Disorderly Conduct, Interference with 
Telephone Service, Violation of PFA/Bond Restrictions, Criminal Damage to Property, Theft, 
Intimidation of a Witness, Assault, Trespassing and Unlawful Restraint. 
 
 Of these cases, 1400 defendants were convicted of a domestic violence offense and 375 were placed on a 
deferred judgment (diversion) program. The majority of these offenders were placed on probation and 
treatment ordered. Court data reflects that  964 motions were filed for the defendant’s failure to comply 
with the terms and conditions of probation. Data does not allow staff to determine what cases had 
multiple motions filed or the basis for these motions. In some of these cases, probation was revoked, and 
the defendant was ordered to serve the jail sentence imposed by the court. In cases where the defendant is 
placed in custody, the City is assessed jail fees equaling approximately $55 per day. 
 

67



2 
 

Analysis:  Section 1.06.010 is amended to bring the City’s definitions related to domestic violence 
offenses into compliance with state law. Section 1.06.060 regarding deferred judgment programs for 
domestic violence offenders, is amended to allow the City Attorney to offer a deferred judgment to 
offenders who have had a previous domestic violence offense which is more than five years old. 
Currently, offenders are only offered a deferral of the charges one time. 
 
Charter Ordinance 218 is amended to require the court, if it determines that the offender has committed a 
domestic violence offense, to order the mandated assessment and the appropriate treatment as 
recommended by the certified evaluator. The ordinance does allow the court, in certain limited cases, to 
make a determination on the record that the offense is not a “domestic violence offense” and the court is 
not required to order an assessment before imposing sentence.  
 
Additionally, Charter Ordinance numbers 164, 168, 202 and 218 are amended to correct codification 
issues of prior amendments to charter ordinances setting forth the applicable municipal court procedures. 
The amendments will consolidate most procedures applicable to the court into one charter ordinance.  
 
Financial Considerations:  It is anticipated that the ordinances will cause an increase in jail fees paid by 
the City of Wichita for defendants held in the Sedgwick County jail.  It is difficult to accurately estimate 
this additional cost, since it is dependent on the number of defendants and the length of treatment  that 
would be required of each defendant, based on the assessment required by the new State law. Staff 
estimates that DV defendants currently account for 20% of the current City jail fees, or $460,000 from 
the General Fund annually. Assuming the days of required incarceration for DV defendants increased 
approximately 50%, the impact of this legislation would be to increase General Fund expenditures by an 
estimated $230,000 annually.    
 
Legal Considerations:  The ordinances have been prepared and approved as to form by the Law 
Department. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council place the ordinances on first 
reading. 
 
Attachment:  Ordinances 
 
 

68



OCA # 050013 
First Published in The Wichita Eagle on June 28, 2013 

 
 
CLEAN          06/05/2013 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-526 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 1.06.010 AND 1.06.060 OF THE 
CODE OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OFFENSES AND REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF 
SAID SECTIONS.  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 1.06.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

"Definitions.  The following terms as used in this chapter shall have the 

following meanings:  

‘City attorney’ means the City Attorney of the City of Wichita, Kansas, or 

any of his or her authorized assistants.  

‘Complaint’ means complaint, citation or notice to appear in municipal 

court.  

‘Dating Relationship’ means a social relationship of a romantic nature.  In 

addition to any other factors the court deems relevant, the trier of fact may 

consider the following when making a determination of whether a relationship 

exists or existed.  Nature of the relationship, length of time the relationship 

69

javascript:void(0)


- 2     - 
 

existed, frequency of interaction between the parties and time since termination of 

the relationship, if applicable.   

‘Deferred judgment’ means referral of a defendant in a criminal case other 

than that charging an alcohol related offense to a supervised program after the 

defendant has entered a plea of guilty, but prior to the court entering judgment 

and imposing sentencing on that plea.  

‘Deferred judgment agreement’ means the specification of formal terms 

and conditions which defendant must fulfill in order to have his or her guilty plea 

set aside and the charges against such person dismissed.  

‘Domestic violence’ means an act of violence against a person with whom 

the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship, or an act of 

violence against a family or household member by a family or household 

member. Domestic violence also includes any other crime committed against a 

person or against property or any municipal ordinance violation against a person 

or against property, when directed against a person with whom the offender is 

involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or when directed against a 

family or household member by a family or household member. 

‘Domestic violence offense’ means any crime committed whereby the 

underlying factual basis includes an act of domestic violence. 

‘Family or household members’ means persons eighteen years of age or 

older who are spouses, former spouses, parents or stepparents and children or 

stepchildren, and persons who are presently residing together or who have resided 

together in the past, and persons who have child in common regardless of whether 

70



- 3     - 
 

they have been married or who have lived together at any time. Family or 

household member also includes a man and woman if the woman is pregnant and 

the man is alleged to be the father, regardless of whether they have been married 

or have lived together at any time.”  

 SECTION 2. Section 1.06.060 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

The city attorney shall not enter into a deferred judgment agreement on a 

complaint alleging a violation of an ordinance of the City of Wichita if the 

defendant has previously participated in a deferred judgment or diversion program 

in any jurisdiction for any prior case involving the same type of offense within 

five years of the date of the ordinance violation. 

 SECTION 3.  The originals of Section 1.06.010 and 1.06.060 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, are hereby repealed 

   SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this _________ day of 

________________, 2013. 

 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



- 4     - 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law 
 

72



OCA#050013 
First Published in The Wichita Eagle on ______________ 

 
 
DELINEATED         06/05/2013 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 1.06.010 AND 1.06.060 OF THE 
CODE OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OFFENSES AND REPEALING THE ORIGINAL OF 
SAID SECTIONS.  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 

KANSAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 1.06.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

"Definitions.  The following terms as used in this chapter shall have the 

following meanings:  

‘City attorney’ means the City Attorney of the City of Wichita, Kansas, or 

any of his or her authorized assistants.  

‘Complaint’ means complaint, citation or notice to appear in municipal 

court.  

‘Crimes involving domestic violence’ means crimes involving any 

harmful physical contact or the threat thereof between family or household 

members or domestic partners, including the destruction of property or the threat 

thereof as a method of coercion, control, revenge or punishment.   

73

javascript:void(0)


- 2     - 
 

‘Dating Relationship’ means a social relationship of a romantic nature.  In 

addition to any other factors the court deems relevant, the trier of fact may 

consider the following when making a determination of whether a relationship 

exists or existed.  Nature of the relationship, length of time the relationship 

existed, frequency of interaction between the parties and time since termination of 

the relationship, if applicable.   

‘Deferred judgment’ means referral of a defendant in a criminal case other 

than that charging an alcohol related offense to a supervised program after the 

defendant has entered a plea of guilty, but prior to the court entering judgment 

and imposing sentencing on that plea.  

‘Deferred judgment agreement’ means the specification of formal terms 

and conditions which defendant must fulfill in order to have his or her guilty plea 

set aside and the charges against such person dismissed.  

‘Domestic violence’ means an act of violence against a person with whom 

the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating relationship, or an act of 

violence against a family or household member by a family or household 

member. Domestic violence also includes any other crime committed against a 

person or against property or any municipal ordinance violation against a person 

or against property, when directed against a person with whom the offender is 

involved or has been involved in a dating relationship or when directed against a 

family or household member by a family or household member. 

‘Domestic violence offense’ means any crime committed whereby the 

underlying factual basis includes an act of domestic violence. 

74



- 3     - 
 

‘Family or household members’ means persons eighteen years of age or 

older who are spouses, former spouses, parents or stepparents and children or 

stepchildren, and persons who are presently residing together or who have resided 

together in the past, and persons who have child in common regardless of whether 

they have been married or who have lived together at any time. Family or 

household member also includes a man and woman if the woman is pregnant and 

the man is alleged to be the father, regardless of whether they have been married 

or have lived together at any time.”  

 SECTION 2.   Section 1.06.060 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

The city attorney shall not enter into a deferred judgment agreement on a 

complaint alleging a violation of an ordinance of the City of Wichita if the 

defendant has previously participated in a deferred judgment or diversion program 

in any jurisdiction for any prior case involving the same type of offense and the 

prior offense occurred on or after March 1, 1990. within five years of the date of 

the ordinance violation. 

 SECTION 4.  The originals of Sections 1.06.010 and 1.06.060 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, are hereby repealed. 

   SECTION 5.  This ordinance shall be included in the Code of the City of Wichita, 

Kansas, and shall be effective upon its passage and publication once in the official city paper.  

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this _________ day of 

________________, 2013. 

 
 

75



- 4     - 
 

      __________________________________________ 
      Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law 
 

76



OCA # 050013 

PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON June 28, 2013 and July 5, 2013 
 

CLEAN          06/05/2013 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO 220 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE 
NO. 164, AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE 218, 
AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO 202, RELATING 
TO MUNCIPAL COURT PROCEDURES, AND REPEALING THE ORIGINAL 
OF SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 164,  REPEALING 
CHARTER ORDINANCE 218 IN ITS ENTIRETY, REPEALING SECTIONS  
1, 4, 5, 6, and 7 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 168, AND REPEALING 
SECTIONS 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 202   
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS:  
 
SECTION 1.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 164 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, is hereby amended to read as follows:   

 The City of Wichita, Kansas, City of the first class, by the power vested in 

it by Article 12, Section 5, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, hereby 

elects to exempt itself from, and makes inapplicable to it, the provisions of K.S.A. 

12-4509 and 12-4511, and to provide substitute and additional provisions as 

hereinafter set forth in this ordinance. Such referenced provisions are either 

enactments or a part thereof which are applicable to this city, but not applicable 

uniformly to all cities. 

SECTION 2.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 218 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“(a) Whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an 

ordinance, the municipal judge may, unless otherwise required by law to impose a 

77



- 2     - 
 

mandatory, minimum sentence or fine, imprisonment, or both; (1) release the 

person without imposition of sentence;  (2) release the person on probation after 

the imposition of sentence, without imprisonment or the payment of a fine or a 

portion thereof, subject to conditions imposed by the court;  (3) impose a sentence 

of house arrest as provided for in K.S.A. 21-6609 and amendments thereto; or (4) 

impose such sentence of fine, imprisonment or both, as may be authorized for the 

ordinance violation.  

(b) Whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an ordinance 

and there is evidence that the act constituting the violation of the ordinance was 

substantially related to the possession, use or ingestion of a cereal malt beverage 

or an alcoholic beverage by such person, the judge may, in addition to the 

disposition authorized by subsection (a), order such person to attend and 

satisfactorily complete an alcohol or drug education or training program certified 

by the Administrative Judge or licensed by the Secretary of Social and 

Rehabilitation Services.  

(c) Except as provided in subsection (d), in addition to or in lieu of 

any other sentence authorized by law, whenever a person is convicted of having 

violated, while under 21 years of age, Section 4.04.017, 4.04.040, 11.38.158 or 

Chapter 5.26 of the Code of the City of Wichita, and amendments thereto, the 

municipal judge shall order such person to submit to and complete an alcohol and 

drug evaluation by a community-based alcohol and drug safety action program 

certified pursuant to K.S.A. 8-1008, and amendments thereto, and to pay a fee not 

78



- 3     - 
 

to exceed the fee established by that statute for such evaluation.  If the judge finds 

that the person is indigent, the fee may be waived.   

(d) If the person is 18 or more years of age,  but less than 21 years of 

age and is convicted of a violation of Section 4.04.017, and amendments thereto, 

involving cereal malt beverage, the provisions of subsection (c) are permissive 

and not mandatory;  

(e) In addition to any other sentence authorized by law, whenever a 

person is convicted of any criminal offense, the municipal judge shall determine 

whether the defendant committed a domestic violence offense, as defined by 

Section 1.06.010. If the judge determines that the defendant has committed a 

domestic violence offense, the court shall place a domestic violence designation 

on the criminal case and shall sentence the defendant, in addition to any 

conditions set forth in paragraph (f) below, to undergo a domestic violence 

offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and 

follow all recommendations made by such program unless otherwise ordered by 

the court. The court may order a domestic violence offender assessment prior to 

sentencing if the assessment or evaluation would assist the court in determining 

an appropriate sentence. The entity completing the assessment or evaluation shall 

provide the assessment or evaluation and recommendations to the court and the 

court shall provide the domestic violence offender assessment to any entity 

responsible for supervising such defendant. A defendant ordered to undergo a 

domestic violence offender assessment shall be required to pay for the assessment 

79



- 4     - 
 

and, unless otherwise ordered by the court, for completion of all 

recommendations. 

The court shall not place a domestic violence designation on the criminal 

case and the defendant shall not be subject to the provisions of this section only if 

the court finds on the record that: 

(1) the defendant has not previously committed a domestic 

violence offense or participated in a diversion upon a 

complaint alleging a domestic violence offense and 

(2) the domestic violence offense was not used to coerce, control, 

punish, intimidate or take revenge against a person with whom 

the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating 

relationship or against a family or household member.  

(f) The court may impose any conditions of probation or suspension 

of sentence that the court deems proper, including, but not limited to, requiring 

that the defendant:  

(1) Avoid such injurious and vicious habits, as directed by the 

court or the probation officer;  

(2) avoid such persons or places of disreputable or harmful 

character, as directed by the court or the probation officer;  

(3) report to the probation office as directed;  

(4) permit the probation officer to visit the defendant at home 

or elsewhere;  

(5) work faithfully at suitable employment insofar as possible;  

80



- 5     - 
 

(6) remain within the state unless the court grants permission 

to leave;  

(7) pay a fine or costs, applicable to the ordinance violation, in 

one or several sums and in the manner as directed by the court;  

(8) support the defendant's dependents;  

(9) reside in a residential facility located in the community and 

participate in educational counseling, work and other correctional or 

rehabilitative programs;  

(10) perform community or public service work for local 

governmental agencies, private corporations organized not for profit, or 

charitable or social service organizations performing services for the 

community;  

(11) perform services under a system of day fines whereby the 

defendant is required to satisfy fines, costs or reparation or restitution 

obligations by performing services for a period of days determined by the 

court on the basis of ability to pay, standard of living, support obligations 

and other factors;  

(12) make reparation or restitution to the aggrieved party for the 

damage or loss caused by the defendant's crime, in an amount and manner 

determined by the court and to the person specified by the court; or  

(13) reimburse the city, in accordance with any order made 

under subsection (d), for all or part of the reasonable expenditures by the 

city to provide counsel and other defense services to the defendant.  

81



- 6     - 
 

(g) In addition to or in lieu of any other sentence authorized by law, 

whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an ordinance the judge may 

order such person to reimburse the city for all or a part of the reasonable 

expenditures by the city to provide counsel and other defense services to the 

defendant. In determining the amount and method of payment of such sum, the 

court shall take account of the services provided, the financial resources of the 

defendant and the nature of the burden that payment of such sum will impose. A 

defendant who has been required to pay such sum and who is not willfully in 

default in the payment thereof may at any time petition the court which sentenced 

the defendant to waive payment of such sum or any unpaid portion thereof. If it 

appears to the satisfaction of the court that payment of the amount due will 

impose manifest hardship on the defendant or the defendant's immediate family, 

the court may waive payment of all or part of the amount due or modify the 

method of payment.”  

 SECTION 3.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 202 is hereby amended to read 

as follows: 

 The provisions of the following Kansas Statutes, as presently enacted and as may 

be hereinafter amended, are incorporated herein by reference as if the same had been set 

out in full: K.S.A. 12-4106,  12-4113, 12-4204, 12-4209, 12-4301, 12-4302, 12-4303, 12-

4402, 12-4407, 12-4409, 12-4501, 12-4502, 12-4503, 12-4504, 12-4508, 12-4510, 12-

4512, and 12-4513.  

SECTION 4.  The original of Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 164 of the Code of the 

City of Wichita, Kansas, are hereby repealed.  

82



- 7     - 
 

SECTION 5.  The original of Charter Ordinance 218 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

SECTION 6.  The original of Sections 1, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of Charter Ordinance No. 168 are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 7.  The original of Sections 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of Charter Ordinance No. 202 are 

hereby repealed.  

SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks 

in the official city newspaper.  

SECTION 9.  This is a Charter Ordinance and shall take effect sixty-one (61) days after 

final publication unless a sufficient petition for a referendum is filed and a referendum held on 

the ordinance as provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subdivision (c)(3) of the Constitution of the 

State of Kansas, in which case the ordinance shall become effective if approved by a majority of 

the electors voting thereon.  

PASSED BY THE GOVERNING BODY, not less than two-thirds of the members elect 

voting in favor thereof, this 18th day of June, 2013. 

 
 
       __________________________________________
      Carl Brewer, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk  
 
 
Approved as to Form:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf  
City Attorney  

83



OCA # 050013 

PUBLISHED IN THE WICHITA EAGLE ON _______________________ 
 

DELINEATED         06/05/2013 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO ______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE 
NO. 164, AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE 218, 
AMENDING SECTION 1 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO 202, RELATING 
TO MUNCIPAL COURT PROCEDURES, AND REPEALING THE ORIGINAL 
OF SECTION 1  OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 164,  REPEALING 
CHARTER ORDINANCE 218 IN ITS ENTIRETY, REPEALING SECTIONS  
1, 4, 5, 6, and 7 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 168, AND REPEALING 
SECTIONS 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 OF CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 202   
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
WICHITA, KANSAS:  
 
SECTION 1.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 164 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, is hereby amended to read as follows:   

 The City of Wichita, Kansas, City of the first class, by the power vested in 

it by Article 12, Section 5, of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, hereby 

elects to exempt itself from, and makes inapplicable to it, the provisions of K.S.A. 

12-4509, as amended by Chapter 194, Section 1, of the 1996 Kansas Session 

Laws, and 12-4511, and to provide substitute and additional provisions as 

hereinafter set forth in this ordinance. Such referenced provisions are either 

enactments or a part thereof which are applicable to this city, but not applicable 

uniformly to all cities. 

SECTION 2.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 218 of the Code of the City of 

Wichita, Kansas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

84



- 2     - 
 

“(a) Whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an 

ordinance, the municipal judge may, unless otherwise required by law to impose a 

mandatory, minimum sentence or fine, imprisonment, or both; (1) release the 

person without imposition of sentence;  (2) release the person on probation after 

the imposition of sentence, without imprisonment or the payment of a fine or a 

portion thereof, subject to conditions imposed by the court;  (3) impose a sentence 

of house arrest as provided for in Section 249 of chapter 136 of the 2010 Session 

Laws of Kansas  K.S.A. 21-6609 and amendments thereto; or (4) impose such 

sentence of fine, imprisonment or both, as may be authorized for the ordinance 

violation.  

(b) Whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an ordinance 

and there is evidence that the act constituting the violation of the ordinance was 

substantially related to the possession, use or ingestion of a cereal malt beverage 

or an alcoholic beverage by such person, the judge may, in addition to the 

disposition authorized by subsection (a), order such person to attend and 

satisfactorily complete an alcohol or drug education or training program certified 

by the Administrative Judge or licensed by the Secretary of Social and 

Rehabilitation Services.  

(c) Except as provided in subsection (d), in addition to or in lieu of 

any other sentence authorized by law, whenever a person is convicted of having 

violated, while under 21 years of age, Section 4.04.017, 4.04.040, 11.38.158 or 

Chapter 5.26 of the Code of the City of Wichita, and amendments thereto, the 

municipal judge shall order such person to submit to and complete an alcohol and 

85



- 3     - 
 

drug evaluation by a community-based alcohol and drug safety action program 

certified pursuant to K.S.A. 8-1008, and amendments thereto, and to pay a fee not 

to exceed the fee established by that statute for such evaluation.  If the judge finds 

that the person is indigent, the fee may be waived.   

(d) If the person is 18 or more years of age,  but less than 21 years of 

age and is convicted of a violation of Section 4.04.017, and amendments thereto, 

involving cereal malt beverage, the provisions of subsection (c) are permissive 

and not mandatory;  

(e) In addition to any other sentence authorized by law, whenever a 

person is convicted of any criminal offense, the municipal judge shall determine 

whether the defendant committed a domestic violence offense, as defined by 

Section 1.06.010. If the judge determines that the defendant has committed a 

domestic violence offense, the court shall place a domestic violence designation 

on the criminal case and shall sentence the defendant, in addition to any 

conditions set forth in paragraph (f) below, to undergo a domestic violence 

offender assessment conducted by a certified batterer intervention program and 

follow all recommendations made by such program unless otherwise ordered by 

the court. The court may order a domestic violence offender assessment prior to 

sentencing if the assessment or evaluation would assist the court in determining 

an appropriate sentence. The entity completing the assessment or evaluation shall 

provide the assessment or evaluation and recommendations to the court and the 

court shall provide the domestic violence offender assessment to any entity 

responsible for supervising such defendant. A defendant ordered to undergo a 

86



- 4     - 
 

domestic violence offender assessment shall be required to pay for the assessment 

and, unless otherwise ordered by the court, for completion of all 

recommendations. 

The court shall not place a domestic violence designation on the criminal 

case and the defendant shall not be subject to the provisions of this section only if 

the court finds on the record that: 

(1) the defendant has not previously committed a domestic 

violence offense or participated in a diversion upon a 

complaint alleging a domestic violence offense and 

(2) the domestic violence offense was not used to coerce, control, 

punish, intimidate or take revenge against a person with whom 

the offender is involved or has been involved in a dating 

relationship or against a family or household member.  

(e) (f)  The court may impose any conditions of probation or suspension of 

sentence that the court deems proper, including, but not limited to, requiring that 

the defendant:  

(1) Avoid such injurious and vicious habits, as directed by the 

court or the probation officer;  

(2) avoid such persons or places of disreputable or harmful 

character, as directed by the court or the probation officer;  

(3) report to the probation office as directed;  

(4) permit the probation officer to visit the defendant at home 

or elsewhere;  

87



- 5     - 
 

(5) work faithfully at suitable employment insofar as possible;  

(6) remain within the state unless the court grants permission 

to leave;  

(7) pay a fine or costs, applicable to the ordinance violation, in 

one or several sums and in the manner as directed by the court;  

(8) support the defendant's dependents;  

(9) reside in a residential facility located in the community and 

participate in educational counseling, work and other correctional or 

rehabilitative programs;  

(10) perform community or public service work for local 

governmental agencies, private corporations organized not for profit, or 

charitable or social service organizations performing services for the 

community;  

(11) perform services under a system of day fines whereby the 

defendant is required to satisfy fines, costs or reparation or restitution 

obligations by performing services for a period of days determined by the 

court on the basis of ability to pay, standard of living, support obligations 

and other factors;  

(12) make reparation or restitution to the aggrieved party for the 

damage or loss caused by the defendant's crime, in an amount and manner 

determined by the court and to the person specified by the court; or  

88



- 6     - 
 

(13) reimburse the city, in accordance with any order made 

under subsection (d), for all or part of the reasonable expenditures by the 

city to provide counsel and other defense services to the defendant.  

(f) (g) In addition to or in lieu of any other sentence authorized by law, 

whenever a person is found guilty of the violation of an ordinance the judge may 

order such person to reimburse the city for all or a part of the reasonable 

expenditures by the city to provide counsel and other defense services to the 

defendant. In determining the amount and method of payment of such sum, the 

court shall take account of the services provided, the financial resources of the 

defendant and the nature of the burden that payment of such sum will impose. A 

defendant who has been required to pay such sum and who is not willfully in 

default in the payment thereof may at any time petition the court which sentenced 

the defendant to waive payment of such sum or any unpaid portion thereof. If it 

appears to the satisfaction of the court that payment of the amount due will 

impose manifest hardship on the defendant or the defendant's immediate family, 

the court may waive payment of all or part of the amount due or modify the 

method of payment.”  

 SECTION  3.  Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 202 is hereby amended to read 

as follows: 

 The provisions of the following Kansas Statutes, as presently enacted and as may 

be hereinafter amended, are incorporated herein by reference as if the same had been set 

out in full: K.S.A. 12-4106,  12-4113, 12-4204, 12-4209, 12-4301, 12-4302, 12-4303, 12-

89



- 7     - 
 

4402, 12-4407, 12-4409, 12-4501, 12-4502, 12-4503, 12-4504, 12-4508, 12-4510, 12-

4512, and 12-4513.  

SECTION  4.  The original of Section 1 of Charter Ordinance No. 164 of the Code of the 

City of Wichita, Kansas, are hereby repealed.  

SECTION 5.  The original of Charter Ordinance 218 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

SECTION 6.  The original of Sections 1, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of Charter Ordinance No. 168 are 

hereby repealed. 

SECTION 7.  The original of Sections 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of Charter Ordinance No. 202 are 

hereby repealed.  

SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks 

in the official city newspaper.  

SECTION 9.  This is a Charter Ordinance and shall take effect sixty-one (61) days after 

final publication unless a sufficient petition for a referendum is filed and a referendum held on 

the ordinance as provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subdivision (c)(3) of the Constitution of the 

State of Kansas, in which case the ordinance shall become effective if approved by a majority of 

the electors voting thereon.  

PASSED BY THE GOVERNING BODY, not less than two-thirds of the members elect 

voting in favor thereof, this 18th day of June, 2013. 

 
 
       __________________________________________
      Carl Brewer, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk  

90



- 8     - 
 

 
 
Approved as to Form:   
 
 
_______________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf  
City Attorney  
 
 
 

91



Agenda Item No. IV-7 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 June 18, 2013 
 

 
TO:     Mayor and City Council Members    
    
SUBJECT:   Chisholm Creek Park South. (District I) 
  
INITIATED BY:  Department of Park and Recreation 
 
AGENDA:   New Business 
 
 
Recommendations: Approve the project and adopt the Bonding Resolution. 
 
Background: The 2011-2020 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) adopted by the City Council includes a 
project to improve Chisholm Creek Park (South), located at 29th Street North and Woodlawn.  A vacant 
house and barn located on park property at the west end of the pathway system have deteriorated to the point 
of becoming a potential hazard to park users. The asphalt pathway adjacent to these structures is cracked and 
uneven, and needs to be replaced. 
 
Analysis:  The vacant home and barn have been identified for demolition and removal based upon existing 
conditions.  Removal of these structures would eliminate the potential hazards and improve the western 
entrance to the park.  The asphalt pathway is proposed to be removed and replaced with concrete. 
 
Chisholm Creek Park has been designed and maintained to preserve its natural habitat.  Great Plains Nature 
Center (GPNC) is located within this site and runs many of its programs throughout the park.  Apart from the 
Nature Center, residents are encouraged to utilize the walking and bicycling paths within the 282 acre park.  
This project provides for building demolition, the renovation of the pathway system, updating the asphalt 
pathways to concrete, eliminating hazardous conditions, sign repairs and updating non-compliant ADA 
walks for future boardwalks.  
 
An estimated $125,000 of the $250,000 budgeted is anticipated to fund the demolition and site restoration of 
the structures.  The Park Department is preparing a Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) grant application 
to renovate the pathway system.  If the grant is awarded, the remaining estimated $125,000 will be used 
towards the 20% match, creating a $625,000 budget which will allow for total renovation of the asphalt path 
system and connectivity improvements to GPNC. Any remaining funds after this 20% match will be utilized 
for pathway renovations, sign repairs, and updating non-compliant ADA walk or boardwalk systems. 
 
If the City is unsuccessful in securing the FLAP grant, the pathway system will be renovated as the estimated 
$125,000 remaining funding allows.  
 
Financial Considerations: The 2011 CIP budget is $250,000 for this project. The funding source is General 
Obligation Bonds.    
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has approved the authorizing Resolution as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the project, adopt the Bonding 
Resolution and authorize signatures as required.  
 
Attachments:  Resolution and Declaration of Official Intent Certificate.  

92



  
                                                                                    
 
 

First Published in the Wichita Eagle on June 21, 2013 
                                                 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-105 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS BY THE 
CITY OF WICHITA AT LARGE FOR THE IMPROVEMENT AND RENOVATION 
OF PARK AMENITIES IN CHISHOLM CREEK PARK SOUTH. 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS; 
 
 SECTION  1:  That the City of Wichita finds it necessary to make certain related improvements 
as follows: 
 

Labor, material, and equipment for the demolition, removal and site restoration of existing 
structures; pathway system renovation; pathway hazard elimination; sign repairs and ADA walk 
improvements in Chisholm Creek Park South.  
 

 SECTION  2:  That the cost of said public improvements shall be paid by the issuance and sale 
of general obligation bonds by the City of Wichita at large, in the manner provided by law and under the 
authority of City of Wichita Charter Ordinance No. 156.  The total cost is estimated not to exceed 
$250,000 exclusive of the costs of interest on borrowed money. 
 
 SECTION  3:  That the advisability of said improvements is established as authorized by City of 
Wichita Charter Ordinance No. 156. 
 
 SECTION  4:  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 
publication once in the official city paper. 
 
 ADOPTED at Wichita, Kansas, this ______ day of ____________, 2013. 
 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  CARL BREWER, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
KAREN SUBLETT, CITY CLERK 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
GARY REBENSTORF, DIRECTOR OF LAW 

93



 
          

DECLARATION OF OFFICIAL INTENT CERTIFICATE 
 
Comes now Shawn Henning, Director of Finance for the City of Wichita, Kansas (the "City") and certifies to the 
following: 
 

1. She is the duly appointed Finance Director for the City.   
 

2. The Governing Body of the City, by resolutions adopted the 12th day of March, 1992 and the 11th day of July, 1995 
(the "Resolutions"), designated and appointed the Director of Finance to act on behalf of the City in declaring the City's 
official intent to reimburse capital expenditures by issuance of bonds, the purpose of said designation and appointment 
being to ensure compliance with regulations promulgated by the United States Department of Treasury, Internal 
Revenue Service under authority of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Regulations"). 
 

3. The City reasonably expects to reimburse expenditures for capital improvement projects made after the date this 
certificate is executed that are identified and set forth herein with the proceeds of bonds to be issued hereafter. 
 

4. This certificate is a declaration of official intent by the City under the Regulations to reimburse expenditures for capital 
improvement projects identified herein with proceeds from bonds to be issued hereafter. 
 

5. The expenditures that will be made hereafter that the City intends to reimburse under authority of this certificate pertain 
to a capital improvement project that is described as follows: 

 
Labor, material, and equipment for the demolition, removal and site restoration of existing structures; pathway 
system renovation; pathway hazard elimination; sign repairs and ADA walk improvements in Chisholm Creek 
Park South.  
   

6. The maximum principal amount of debt the City expects to issue for reimbursement of expenditures made in 
connection with the capital improvement project described herein is 250,000 dollars, exclusive of the cost of interest on 
borrowed money. 
 

7. This certificate shall upon execution be filed with the City Clerk's office and shall thereafter be kept on file in that 
office and shall be available for public inspection. 
 

8. This certificate being signed and executed under oath by the  Director of Finance of the City on 
 
        the _________day of  ____________________________________________. 
                               (month, year) 

    CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
    ___________________________________ 
    Shawn Henning, Director of Finance 
STATE OF KANSAS ) 
   ) ss: 
COUNTY OF SEDGWICK ) 
 
 
   On this ________ day of _______________________________________, Shawn Henning 
appeared before me, whom I know personally to be the signer of the above and she acknowledged that she signed it. 
 
      
 
My appointment expires: 
    _______________________________ 
______________________  Notary Public 
 
 

94



 
         Agenda Item No. IV-8 
      

 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  Chisholm Creek Park Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Grant. (District I)    
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Park & Recreation 
 
AGENDA:  New Business  
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) grant application. 

Background:  The FLAP Program is a new Federal Grant Program for states, counties, tribes and local 
governments.  The program provides funds for transportation projects that provide access to, are adjacent to, or 
are within federal lands with emphasis placed on those that access high use recreation sites and are federal 
economic generators.  The facility must be owned or maintained by the state, tribe or local government.  Eligible 
projects include construction and reconstruction of provisions for pedestrians and bicycles.   

Great Plains Nature Center (GPNC) sits on a federally-owned parcel of land in Chisholm Creek Park.  The 
asphalt bike path through the park is in disrepair.  Removing the asphalt, replacing it with a concrete pathway, 
improving signage to and connectivity with GPNC is considered an eligible project for FLAP submittal.  The 
application form for Kansas will be finalized over the next few weeks.  It is to be submitted by July, with 
selections occurring in October.      

Analysis:  A total of $3.8 - $5.4 million is anticipated to be available to Kansas for this multi-year program, 
with an estimated $900,000 to be awarded in 2013.  A 20% match would be required from the City if the 
application is approved.   

Financial Considerations:  Initial estimates for the bike/pedestrian trail improvements are $625,000.  The 20% 
match ($125,000) will be funded from the Chisholm Creek Park South Capital Improvement project included in 
the 2011-2020 adopted CIP ($250,000 total).  The funding source is General Obligation Bonds.  

Legal Considerations:  The grant application has been approved as to form by the Law Department. 

Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council authorize staff to submit the FLAP grant 
application and authorize the necessary signatures. 

 

 
 

95



1 
 

Agenda Item No.  IV-9 
Revised 06-13-2013      

 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  HUD Consolidated Plan/Fifth Program Year Action Plan, 2013-2014, Amended 
 
INITIATED BY: Housing and Community Services Department 
 
AGENDA:  New Business  
 
 
Recommendation:  Close the public hearing and authorize submission of the amended 2013-2014 Fifth 
Program Year Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant, HOME Investment Partnerships, 
and Emergency Solutions Grant Funds to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD), and authorize necessary signatures, agreements and contracts. 

Background:  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides annual funding 
for programs that serve or benefit low to moderate-income persons. The annual funding plan is part of the 
HUD Consolidated Plan process in which the City outlines specific activities to be funded through the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME), and 
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) programs.  The City submits an annual plan for each of the five years 
which are covered in the Five Year Consolidated Plan.    

Based on guidance received from HUD, staff estimated a five percent reduction in all three funding 
categories and presented for City Council approval on May 14, 2013, an annual plan for FY 2013-2014 
using those estimates.  On May 30, 2013, HUD published final allocations and the City of Wichita 
received increases over the estimates in CDBG and HOME, and a decrease from the estimate for ESG.  
The final allocations are:   CDBG - $2,780,875 (an increase of $339,612); HOME - $1,227,906 (an 
increase of $63,895); and ESG $187,471 (a decrease of $24,748). 

Analysis:   Using these projections, staff amended the original recommended allocation.   

Community Development Block Grant 
 
The following adjustments have been made in the Capital Projects and Housing categories.   
Category 2012-2013 

Allocation 
2013 Preliminary 

Allocation 
2013-14 Final 

Allocation 
Demolition and Clearance of 
Dangerous and Unsafe 
Buildings 

$100,000 $0 $90,000 

Sidewalks $75,000 $0 $0 
Neighborhood Clean-ups $50,000 $19,420 $19,420 
Housing Projects $915,313 $915,313 $1,128,075 
TOTAL $1,140,313 $934,733 $1,237,495 

 
Based on original estimates, no funds were recommended for demolition and clearance.  The final HUD 
allocation increased the estimates and this activity is now recommended to receive $90,000.  The housing 
projects funding increase will go exclusively to home repair, resulting in services to 40 additional homes, 
from the waiting list which has over 340 names.   

96



2 
 

 
Community Development Block Grant (cont’d) 

 
The following adjustments have been made in the Public Services category. 
Category 2012-2013 

Allocation 
2013 Preliminary 

Allocation 
2013-14 Final 

Allocation 
Neighborhood Services $331,757 $393,431 $428,626 
Housing and Community 
Services 

$118,593 $163,788 $78,593 

Summer Youth Employment $139,095 $171,650 $221,650 $188,177 
Women’s Services $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 
Youth Crime 
Prevention/Enrichment 

$125,000 $125,000 $125,000 

TOTAL $989,445 $1,128,869 $1,128,869 $1,095,396 
 
This recommendation will pay for neighborhood assistants in Districts I, III, IV, and VI; the increase will 
cover costs from July through December, 2013, for clerical support at the Neighborhood City Halls which 
were previously CSBG-funded.  The increase in funding for Housing First program staff reflects actual 
costs of the program, without which there would have been a shortfall.  Funds for job training for youth 
have been eliminated based on the new program model for the Career Development Office.  These funds 
have been re-allocated to summer youth employment to increase the number of youth who can be hired in 
June, 2014, and to fund the clerical positions at the Neighborhood City Halls.  Job training for youth will 
be administered through a CSBG-funded contract with a community provider. There were no changes to 
Women’s Services and Youth Crime Prevention/Enrichment. 
 
Note: The 2013 Summer Youth Employment program total includes $146,950 from the HUD final 
allocation and $75,000 from unallocated funds which was approved by the City Council on May 14, 
2013.  On May 14, 2013 the City Council approved the 2013 Summer Youth Employment program 
total budget of $221,650 which included $146,950 from the HUD final allocation and $75,000 from 
unallocated funds.  A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued for community agencies to 
propose summer youth employment programs for July and August, 2013 utilizing the 
unallocated funds.  Proposals were received from the YMCA and The Salvation Army.   
The Grants Review Committee reviewed them on June 11, 2013 and recommended funding 
the YMCA for $41,527 which will enable them to pay wages for 52 youth.  The other 
proposal was not recommended for funding because the program focused on training and 
only provided two youth employment positions.   The balance of the unallocated funds 
($33,473) will be reprogrammed at a later date. 
  
The following adjustments have been made in the Program Administration category. 
Category 2012-2013 

Allocation 
2013 Preliminary 

Allocation 
2013-14 Final 

Allocation 
Program Management $355,000 $370,418 $400,000 
Indirect Costs $54,993 $52,243 $59,511 
Fair Housing Initiatives $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 
Mandated Consolidated Plan 
Activities 

$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 

TOTAL $439,993 $452,661 $489,511 
 
Program management funding was increased to cover anticipated costs.  Without this increase the 
program would have experienced a shortfall.  The indirect cost allocation formula was applied to the new 
(increased) allocation.  There were no changes to Fair Housing and Mandated Consolidated Plan 
activities.  Shortfalls in staffing would have been resolved through furloughs. 

97



3 
 

HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
 

The increase of $63,895 will be allocated to program administration, indirect costs and the deferred loan 
program, as indicated below: 
 
Category 2012-13 

Allocation 
2013-14 
Preliminary 
Allocation 

2013-14 Revised 
Allocation 

Program Administration  
(10% of allocation) 

$107,518 $99,290 $104,740 

Indirect Costs $15,010 $17,111 $18,050 
Deferred Loan Program $0 $100,000 $157,506 
Operating Funds for CHDOs $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 
HOME 80 $429,286 $383,014 $383,014 
Boarded Up House $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Housing Development Loan Program $235,000 $147,637 $147,637 
CHDO Set-Aside $288,461 $266,959 $266,959 
TOTAL $1,225,275 $1,164,011 $1,227,906 

 
The increase in program administration is consistent with the regulation which allows 10% of the 
allocation to be designated for this purpose and brings the budget closer to cost recovery.  The increase in 
indirect costs is based applying the percentage to an increased allocation.  Funds for the deferred loan 
program will result in four and possibly five homes receiving this resource.  No other HOME funded 
categories were changed. 
 

Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Funds 
 
The ESG program prioritizes permanent housing solutions for the homeless or for persons at serious, 
imminent risk of becoming homeless, with a reduced focus on emergency shelter and street outreach.  The 
legislation which created this program caps expenditures for shelter and outreach activities at 60% of the 
annual allocation.  Based on this requirement, staff developed a budget with allocations by categories.   
 
The final HUD allocation reduced the total amount available for the ESG program.  The following table 
has been adjusted from the original allocation to reflect the reduction of $24,748 from staff estimates. 
 
Category 2012-2013 

Allocation 
2013-2014 

Preliminary 
Allocation 

2013-2014 Revised 
Allocation 

Emergency Shelter and Outreach $133,159 $127,331 $112,483 
Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-
Housing and Homeless Management 
Information System 

$73,475 
 

$68,972 $60,928 

Indirect Costs $5,585 $5,305 $4,687 
Administration $11,169 $10,611 $9,373 
TOTAL $223,388 $212,219 $187,471 
 
Homeless assistance activities, prevention and re-housing activities will be implemented by an external 
provider identified through a Request for Proposal, and/or in conjunction with Housing First program 
activities. 
 
Financial Considerations: HOME funds require a 25% non-federal match, which the Housing and 
Community Services meets through creative partnerships with community agencies and therefore General 
Fund match support has not been required.    

 

98



4 
 

Legal Considerations: The Law Department has approved the documents associated with this action as 
to form. 

Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council close the public hearing and 
authorize submission of the Amended 2013-2014 Fifth Program Year Action Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant, HOME Investment Partnerships, and Emergency Solutions Grant Funds to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and authorize necessary signatures, 
agreements and contracts. 

Attachments:   

2013-14 Fifth Program Year Allocation Spreadsheet-Revised 
Action Plan Narrative-Revised 
SF 424 and Certifications-Revised 

99



Page 1
6/13/2013

CDBG - CAPITAL

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Capital Projects/Demolition RECOMMENDATION
Public Works & Utilities
Street or Sidewalk Repair
Metropolitan Area Building & Construction Department
Demolition and Clearance of Dangerous and Unsafe Buildings

Total - Capital Projects $150,000 $175,000 $0 $0 $90,000

CDBG - HOUSING

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Housing Activities RECOMMENDATION
Neighborhood Clean-ups $50,000 $50,000 $19,420 $19,420 $19,420
Housing and Community Services

$425,908 $369,091 $369,091 $369,091 $369,091

Amount from Annual Allocation $346,908
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $79,000

   - Home Repair $664,467 $546,222 $546,222 $546,222 $758,984
   - Rental Housing Loan Program $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total - Housing Projects $1,140,375 $965,313 $934,733 $934,733 $1,147,495

CDBG - NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Neighborhood Stabilization RECOMMENDATION
Funds Available for Reallocation $321,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

$321,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

ALLOCATION

$150,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $90,000

APPROVAL 5-14-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

Total - Neighborhood Initiatives

   - Staff and Administration: Responsible for the application process, 
eligibility determination, inspections, preparation of specifications, 
document preparation, accounts payable functions, internal cost 
estimates, and lead-based paint clearance inspections for all CDBG-
funded Home Repair Program activities, as well as site inspections for 
HOME-funded and ESG-funded housing activities.  Administers existing 
revolving loan programs, including the Historic Revolving Loan 
Program, the Historic Deferred Loan Program, the Home Improvement 
Loan Program, and the Rental Rehabilitation Program. including the 
servicing functions related to over 5,000 loans in the existing loan 
portfolio. 

ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION

$0

ALLOCATION

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$0 $0$0 $75,000

RECOMMENDATION

100



Page 2
6/13/2013

CDBG - PUBLIC SERVICES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Public Services - CAP is $1,163,310 RECOMMENDATION
City Manager's Office Total Allocation
   - Neighborhood Assistance Program 

Amount from Annual Allocation $305,000 $331,757 $393,431 $393,431 $428,626
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $28,132 $0 $0 $0 $0

Neighborhood Services Supervisor $28,132 $0 $0 $0 $0
Atwater $71,837 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Colvin $82,488 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Evergreen $78,071 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Stanley $72,604 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Housing and Community Services $50,000 $118,593 $163,788 $163,788 $78,593
   - Housing First Project Coordinator $50,000 $68,593 $68,593 $68,593 $78,593
   - Job Training $0 $50,000 $95,195 $95,195 $0

RFP Women's Services  $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000
   - Catholic Charities, Inc. - Harbor House $125,125 $110,000 $105,036 $105,036 $105,036
   - StepStone, Inc. Counseling and Support Groups $0 $26,000 $26,000 $26,000 $26,000
   - YWCA of Wichita - Women's Crisis Center/Safehouse $149,875 $139,000 $143,964 $143,964 $143,964

RFP Youth Crime Prevention and Enrichment $174,220 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000
   -YMCA - Middle School After School $104,253 $104,000 $101,907 $101,907 $101,907
   - BBBS Leaders, Achievers, and Winners (LAW) Camp $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Boys & Girls Clubs $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Hope Street $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Rainbows United $38,472 $21,000 $23,093 $23,093 $23,093
   - Urban League $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Wichita Dream Center $6,495 $0 $0 $0 $0
Summer Youth Employment $199,364 ** $139,095 **** $96,650 $171,650 $221,650

Amount from Annual Allocation $100,000 $139,095 $0 $96,650 $146,650
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $99,364 $0 $0 $75,000 $75,000

   - Saint Mark United Methodist - Life in Action $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - YMCA - Job Prep $199,364 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total - Public Services $1,031,716 *** $989,445 **** $1,053,869 $1,128,869 $1,128,869

CDBG - PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED
RECOMMENDATION

Housing and Community Services $446,480 $414,993 $427,661 $427,661 $464,511
   - CDBG Indirect Costs $118,660 $54,993 $52,243 $52,243 $59,511
   - CDBG Program Management Total Allocation $322,820 $355,000 $370,418 $370,418 $400,000
   - Fair Housing Initiatives $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Planning Department
   - Mandated Consolidated Plan Activities

Total - Planning and Admin. $471,480 $439,993 $452,661 $452,661 $489,511

UNALLOCATED TOTAL $527,496 $0 $0 75,000 75,000
ANNUAL ALLOCATION - CDBG $2,579,615 $2,569,751 $2,441,263 $2,441,263 $2,780,875

GRAND TOTAL - CDBG $3,114,571 $2,569,751 $2,441,263 $2,516,263 $2,855,875

$25,000

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$428,626$333,132 $331,757 $393,431

$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

$393,431

Program Administration - CAP is $488,252 ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

ALLOCATION

*

2011-2012 
COUNCIL
ALLOCATION

* This amount includes $28,132 from prior year unallocated funds
** This amount includes $99,364 from prior year unallocated funds
***This amount includes a total of $127,496 from prior year unallocated funds
****This amount includes a total of $42,445 from unexpended 12-13PY Indirect funds

101



Page 3
6/13/2013

HOME PROJECTS

2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

HOME Activities RECOMMENDATION
HOME Investment Partnerships Administration $148,563 $107,518 $99,290 $99,290 $104,740
HOME Indirect Costs $11,959 $15,010 $17,111 $17,111 $18,050
HOME Operating Funds for CHDO's $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Operating Funds-Power CDC
Operating Funds-MHRS

HOMEownership 80 Program $647,001 $429,286 $383,014 $383,014 $383,014
Boarded-up House Program $200,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
Housing Development Loan Program $247,706 $235,000 $147,637 $147,637 $147,637
Deferred Loan Program $0 $0 $100,000 $100,000 $157,506

Total HOME Projects $1,305,229 $936,814 $897,052 $897,052 $960,947

2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 REVISED 2013-14 REVISED

CHDO Set Aside Projects RECOMMENDATION
CHDO Set Aside - Total Allocation $339,049 * $288,461 $266,959 $266,959 $266,959

Amount from Annual Allocation $300,000 $288,461
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $39,049 $0

Mennonite Housing Rehab Services (MHRS)
  - Single Family Home Development
Power CDC
  - Single Family Home Development
Universal Design $0 $8,461 $0 $0 $0
Unallocated CHDO Set Aside Funding $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total CHDO Set Aside Projects $339,049 * $288,461 $266,959 $266,959 $266,959
Subtotal -  HOME & CHDO Set Aside Projects

*This amount includes $39,049.22 re-allocated from prior year unspent CHDO funds
 

UNALLOCATED TOTAL $39,049 * $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL ALLOCATION - HOME $1,605,229 $1,225,275 $1,164,011 $1,164,011 $1,227,906

GRAND TOTAL - HOME $1,644,278 $1,225,275 $1,164,011 $1,164,011 $1,227,906

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM

RECOMMENDATION
HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$149,270 $175,000

$130,730 $91,959 $91,959 $91,959

$175,000 $175,000

ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION

$162,905

$176,144

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

102



Page 4
6/13/2013

ESG PROJECTS

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT 2010-2011 COUNCIL 2011-2012 COUNCIL 2012-13 2013-14 REVISED 2013-14 REVISED
ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

Emergency Shelter Grant - Final Allocation $125,133 * $124,982 $0 $0 $0
RFP $37,540 $32,286 $0 $0 $0

   - Catholic Charities - Anthony Family Shelter $6,238 $6,277 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $0 $869 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Safe Haven $1,046 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Salvation Army - Emergency Lodge $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - United Methodist Open Door $30,256 $25,140 $0 $0 $0

RFP Maintenance and Operations $81,463 $66,591 $0 $0 $0
   - Catholic Charities - Anthony Family Shelter $23,530 $18,457 $0 $0 $0
   - Catholic Charities - Harbor House $10,678 $8,870 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $23,410 $19,451 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Safe Haven $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Salvation Army - Emergency Lodge $19,552 $16,246 $0 $0 $0
   - YWCA - Women's Crisis Center $4,293 $3,567 $0 $0 $0

RFP $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0
   - Center of Hope - Rent Assistance $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0
Administration - Maximum Allocation (5%) $6,130 $6,105 $0 $0 $0
   - Housing & Community Services Department - ESG Administration $6,130 $4,730 $0 $0 $0
   - City Indirect Cost $0 $1,375 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT $125,133 * $124,982 $0 $0 $0
*Includes $29 unspent prior year funds

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT 2010-2011 COUNCIL 2012-2013 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED 2013-14 REVISED
ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

Emergency Solutions Grant - Final Allocation $0 $70,331 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471
$0 $20,126 $133,159 $127,331 $112,483

RFP Emergency Shelter TBD TBD
Catholic Charities - Harbor House $0 $15,125 $15,000 $0 $0
Catholic Charities - St. Anthony Family Shelter $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0
Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $0 $0 $21,500 $0 $0
The Salvation Army - Homeless Services $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0
United Methodist Open Door - Homeless Resource Center $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0
YWCA Women's Crisis Center $0 $5,001 $11,659 $0 $0

Homeless Prevention & Rapid Re-Housing $41,029 $71,975 $68,972 $60,928
Homelessness Prevention $0 $24,629 $43,535 TBD TBD

Center of Hope - Rent Assistance $0 $24,629 $43,535
$0 $16,400 $28,440 TBD TBD

City of Wichita - Housing and Community Services $0 $16,400 $28,440
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) $0 $635 $1,500 TBD TBD

United Way of the Plains $0 $635 $1,500
Administration - Maximum Allocation (7.5% of total Award) $0 $8,541 $16,754 $15,916 $14,060
   - Housing & Community Services Department - ESG Administration $5,026 $11,169 $0 $9,373
   - City Indirect Cost $3,515 $5,585 $0 $4,687

TOTAL EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT $0 $70,331 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471

GRAND TOTAL $125,133 $195,313 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471

RECOMMENDATIONALLOCATIONALLOCATION
2011-2012 COUNCIL

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

RECOMMENDATION* RECOMMENDATION

Essential Services - Maximum Allocation (30%)

Homeless Prevention - Maximum Allocation (30%)

Rapid Re-Housing

ALLOCATION

Homeless Assistance Maximum Allocation (60%)

103



Page 1
6/17/2013

CDBG - CAPITAL

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Capital Projects/Demolition RECOMMENDATION
Public Works & Utilities
Street or Sidewalk Repair
Metropolitan Area Building & Construction Department
Demolition and Clearance of Dangerous and Unsafe Buildings

Total - Capital Projects $150,000 $175,000 $0 $0 $90,000

CDBG - HOUSING

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Housing Activities RECOMMENDATION
Neighborhood Clean-ups $50,000 $50,000 $19,420 $19,420 $19,420
Housing and Community Services

$425,908 $369,091 $369,091 $369,091 $369,091

Amount from Annual Allocation $346,908
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $79,000

   - Home Repair $664,467 $546,222 $546,222 $546,222 $758,984
   - Rental Housing Loan Program $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total - Housing Projects $1,140,375 $965,313 $934,733 $934,733 $1,147,495

CDBG - NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Neighborhood Stabilization RECOMMENDATION
Funds Available for Reallocation $321,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

$321,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

ALLOCATION

$0

ALLOCATION

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$0 $0$0 $75,000

RECOMMENDATIONALLOCATION

$150,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $90,000

APPROVAL 5-14-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

Total - Neighborhood Initiatives

   - Staff and Administration: Responsible for the application process, 
eligibility determination, inspections, preparation of specifications, 
document preparation, accounts payable functions, internal cost 
estimates, and lead-based paint clearance inspections for all CDBG-
funded Home Repair Program activities, as well as site inspections for 
HOME-funded and ESG-funded housing activities.  Administers existing 
revolving loan programs, including the Historic Revolving Loan 
Program, the Historic Deferred Loan Program, the Home Improvement 
Loan Program, and the Rental Rehabilitation Program. including the 
servicing functions related to over 5,000 loans in the existing loan 
portfolio. 

ALLOCATION

104



Page 2
6/17/2013

CDBG - PUBLIC SERVICES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

Public Services - CAP is $1,163,310 RECOMMENDATION
City Manager's Office Total Allocation
   - Neighborhood Assistance Program 

Amount from Annual Allocation $305,000 $331,757 $393,431 $393,431 $428,626
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $28,132 $0 $0 $0 $0

Neighborhood Services Supervisor $28,132 $0 $0 $0 $0
Atwater $71,837 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Colvin $82,488 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Evergreen $78,071 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Stanley $72,604 $0 $0 $0 TBD
Housing and Community Services $50,000 $118,593 $163,788 $163,788 $78,593
   - Housing First Project Coordinator $50,000 $68,593 $68,593 $68,593 $78,593
   - Job Training $0 $50,000 $95,195 $95,195 $0

RFP Women's Services  $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000
   - Catholic Charities, Inc. - Harbor House $125,125 $110,000 $105,036 $105,036 $105,036
   - StepStone, Inc. Counseling and Support Groups $0 $26,000 $26,000 $26,000 $26,000
   - YWCA of Wichita - Women's Crisis Center/Safehouse $149,875 $139,000 $143,964 $143,964 $143,964

RFP Youth Crime Prevention and Enrichment $174,220 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000
   -YMCA - Middle School After School $104,253 $104,000 $101,907 $101,907 $101,907
   - BBBS Leaders, Achievers, and Winners (LAW) Camp $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Boys & Girls Clubs $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Hope Street $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Rainbows United $38,472 $21,000 $23,093 $23,093 $23,093
   - Urban League $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Wichita Dream Center $6,495 $0 $0 $0 $0
Summer Youth Employment $199,364 ** $139,095 **** $96,650 $171,650 $188,177

Amount from Annual Allocation $100,000 $139,095 $0 $96,650 $146,650
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $99,364 $0 $0 $75,000 $41,527

   - Saint Mark United Methodist - Life in Action $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - YMCA - Job Prep $199,364 $0 $0 $0 $41,527

Total - Public Services $1,031,716 *** $989,445 **** $1,053,869 $1,128,869 $1,095,396

CDBG - PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED
RECOMMENDATION

Housing and Community Services $446,480 $414,993 $427,661 $427,661 $464,511
   - CDBG Indirect Costs $118,660 $54,993 $52,243 $52,243 $59,511
   - CDBG Program Management Total Allocation $322,820 $355,000 $370,418 $370,418 $400,000
   - Fair Housing Initiatives $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Planning Department
   - Mandated Consolidated Plan Activities

Total - Planning and Admin. $471,480 $439,993 $452,661 $452,661 $489,511

UNALLOCATED TOTAL $527,496 $0 $0 75,000 41,527
ANNUAL ALLOCATION - CDBG $2,579,615 $2,569,751 $2,441,263 $2,441,263 $2,780,875

GRAND TOTAL - CDBG $3,114,571 $2,569,751 $2,441,263 $2,516,263 $2,822,402

ALLOCATION

*

2011-2012 
COUNCIL
ALLOCATION

* This amount includes $28,132 from prior year unallocated funds
** This amount includes $99,364 from prior year unallocated funds
***This amount includes a total of $127,496 from prior year unallocated funds
****This amount includes a total of $42,445 from unexpended 12-13PY Indirect funds

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

$393,431

Program Administration - CAP is $488,252 ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

$428,626$333,132 $331,757 $393,431

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13

$25,000

105



Page 3
6/17/2013

HOME PROJECTS

2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

HOME Activities RECOMMENDATION
HOME Investment Partnerships Administration $148,563 $107,518 $99,290 $99,290 $104,740
HOME Indirect Costs $11,959 $15,010 $17,111 $17,111 $18,050
HOME Operating Funds for CHDO's $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Operating Funds-Power CDC
Operating Funds-MHRS

HOMEownership 80 Program $647,001 $429,286 $383,014 $383,014 $383,014
Boarded-up House Program $200,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
Housing Development Loan Program $247,706 $235,000 $147,637 $147,637 $147,637
Deferred Loan Program $0 $0 $100,000 $100,000 $157,506

Total HOME Projects $1,305,229 $936,814 $897,052 $897,052 $960,947

2011-2012 
COUNCIL 2012-13 COUNCIL 2013-14 PRELIMINARY 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED

CHDO Set Aside Projects RECOMMENDATION
CHDO Set Aside - Total Allocation $339,049 * $288,461 $266,959 $266,959 $266,959

Amount from Annual Allocation $300,000 $288,461
Amount from Prior Year Unallocated $39,049 $0

Mennonite Housing Rehab Services (MHRS)
  - Single Family Home Development
Power CDC
  - Single Family Home Development
Universal Design $0 $8,461 $0 $0 $0
Unallocated CHDO Set Aside Funding $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total CHDO Set Aside Projects $339,049 * $288,461 $266,959 $266,959 $266,959
Subtotal -  HOME & CHDO Set Aside Projects

*This amount includes $39,049.22 re-allocated from prior year unspent CHDO funds
 

UNALLOCATED TOTAL $39,049 * $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL ALLOCATION - HOME $1,605,229 $1,225,275 $1,164,011 $1,164,011 $1,227,906

GRAND TOTAL - HOME $1,644,278 $1,225,275 $1,164,011 $1,164,011 $1,227,906

ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION

$162,905

$176,144

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

$149,270 $175,000

$130,730 $91,959 $91,959 $91,959

$175,000 $175,000

APPROVAL 5-14-13
HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL 5-14-13
HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM

106



Page 4
6/17/2013

ESG PROJECTS

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT 2010-2011 COUNCIL 2011-2012 COUNCIL 2012-13 2013-14 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED
ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

Emergency Shelter Grant - Final Allocation $125,133 * $124,982 $0 $0 $0
RFP $37,540 $32,286 $0 $0 $0

   - Catholic Charities - Anthony Family Shelter $6,238 $6,277 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $0 $869 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Safe Haven $1,046 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Salvation Army - Emergency Lodge $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - United Methodist Open Door $30,256 $25,140 $0 $0 $0

RFP Maintenance and Operations $81,463 $66,591 $0 $0 $0
   - Catholic Charities - Anthony Family Shelter $23,530 $18,457 $0 $0 $0
   - Catholic Charities - Harbor House $10,678 $8,870 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $23,410 $19,451 $0 $0 $0
   - Inter-Faith Ministries - Safe Haven $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
   - Salvation Army - Emergency Lodge $19,552 $16,246 $0 $0 $0
   - YWCA - Women's Crisis Center $4,293 $3,567 $0 $0 $0

RFP $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0
   - Center of Hope - Rent Assistance $0 $20,000 $0 $0 $0
Administration - Maximum Allocation (5%) $6,130 $6,105 $0 $0 $0
   - Housing & Community Services Department - ESG Administration $6,130 $4,730 $0 $0 $0
   - City Indirect Cost $0 $1,375 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT $125,133 * $124,982 $0 $0 $0
*Includes $29 unspent prior year funds

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT 2010-2011 COUNCIL 2012-2013 COUNCIL 2013-14 REVISED 2013-14 REVISED
ALLOCATION RECOMMENDATION

Emergency Solutions Grant - Final Allocation $0 $70,331 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471
$0 $20,126 $133,159 $127,331 $112,483

RFP Emergency Shelter TBD TBD
Catholic Charities - Harbor House $0 $15,125 $15,000 $0 $0
Catholic Charities - St. Anthony Family Shelter $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0
Inter-Faith Ministries - Inter-Faith Inn $0 $0 $21,500 $0 $0
The Salvation Army - Homeless Services $0 $0 $25,000 $0 $0
United Methodist Open Door - Homeless Resource Center $0 $0 $35,000 $0 $0
YWCA Women's Crisis Center $0 $5,001 $11,659 $0 $0

Homeless Prevention & Rapid Re-Housing $41,029 $71,975 $68,972 $60,928
Homelessness Prevention $0 $24,629 $43,535 TBD TBD

Center of Hope - Rent Assistance $0 $24,629 $43,535
$0 $16,400 $28,440 TBD TBD

City of Wichita - Housing and Community Services $0 $16,400 $28,440
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) $0 $635 $1,500 TBD TBD

United Way of the Plains $0 $635 $1,500
Administration - Maximum Allocation (7.5% of total Award) $0 $8,541 $16,754 $15,916 $14,060
   - Housing & Community Services Department - ESG Administration $5,026 $11,169 $0 $9,373
   - City Indirect Cost $3,515 $5,585 $0 $4,687

TOTAL EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT $0 $70,331 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471

GRAND TOTAL $125,133 $195,313 $223,388 $212,219 $187,471

Rapid Re-Housing

ALLOCATION

Homeless Assistance Maximum Allocation (60%)

ALLOCATIONALLOCATION
2011-2012 COUNCIL

2013-2014  CONSOLIDATED PLAN ALLOCATION COUNCIL REVISED RECOMMENDATIONS 6-18-13

RECOMMENDATION* APPROVAL 5-14-13

Essential Services - Maximum Allocation (30%)

Homeless Prevention - Maximum Allocation (30%)

RECOMMENDATION

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



THE CITY OF WICHITA Wichita, Kansas 
Department of Public Works 

 
PRELIMINARY ESTIMATES 

FOR CITY COUNCIL JUNE 18, 2013 

a. Lateral 433, Four Mile Creek Sewer to serve Frontgate Addition (south of Central, west of 127th 
Street East) (468-84879/744350/480042)  Does not affect existing traffic.  (District II) -  
$155,000.00 

b. Storm Water Drain #387 to serve Frontgate Addition (south of Central, west of 127th Street East) 
(468-84880/751517/485408)  Does not affect existing traffic.  (District II) -  $343,000.00 

c. Water Distribution System to serve Frontgate Addition (south of Central, west of 127th Street East) 
(448-90592/735488/470161)  Does not affect existing traffic.  (District II) -  $97,000.00 

116



 

Agenda Item No. II-5a. 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Agreement for Kellogg, 151st Street West to  
 Mid-Continent (District IV) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the amendment. 
 
Background:  On June 10, 1997, the City Council approved an agreement with Professional 
Engineering Consultants (PEC) to begin preliminary design work for the expansion of Kellogg to a 
freeway, from Mid-Continent Road to 151st Street West.  The City Council subsequently approved six 
supplemental agreements increasing the scope of services. 
 
Analysis:  PEC has submitted an amendment to the original agreement and all six supplemental 
agreements which adds language required by the Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT).  
Changes include designation of KDOT as a third party beneficiary, revised deadlines for plans, and the 
requirement of PEC to submit progress reports as requested by the City.  Additions provided by the 
amendment are required as KDOT is administering the state and federal funding for this project. The 
scope of work will not be changed by this amendment. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Financial considerations remain as previously approved. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the amendment as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the amendment and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment:  Amendment to Agreement. 

 

117



 

 
 
 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 
  
 

between 
 
 

THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS  
 
 

and 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.A. 
 
 

for 
 
 

WEST KELLOGG, 151ST TO MID-CONTINENT 
 
 

 
THIS AMENDMENT, made this ________________ day of ___________________________, 2013, 
by and between the CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, party of the first part, hereinafter called the 
“CITY” and PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.A., party of the second part, 
hereinafter called the “ENGINEER”. 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY amends the Agreement, dated June 10, 1997, and the subsequent Sup-

plemental Agreements No. 1 through No. 6, to include the following language as required by the Kan-
sas Department of Transportation (KDOT). 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICE  

a. The Engineer shall submit plans on or before following schedule for the north and south fron-
tage roads between 135th & 151st  (54-87 KA-2285-01 and 54-87 KA-2289-01) exclusive 
of delays beyond the Engineer’s control. 
a. Office Check- May 13, 2013 
b. Final Plans-July 8, 2013 

 
b. The Engineer shall submit progress reports as requested by the City. 

 
c.        Because of the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas’ (Secretary’s) obligation 

to administer state funds, federal funds, or both, the Secretary shall be a third party benefi-
ciary to this agreement between the City and the Engineer. This third party beneficiary 
status is for the limited purpose of seeking payment or reimbursement for damages and 
costs the Secretary or the City or both incurred or will incur because the Engineer failed to 
comply with its contract obligations under this Agreement or because of the Engineer’s 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions. Nothing in this provision precludes the City from 
seeking recovery or settling any dispute with the Engineer as long as such settlement does 
not restrict the Secretary’s right to payment or reimbursement.   

118



 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the ENGINEER have executed this agreement as of 
the date first written above. 
 
 
             BY ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

             
____________________________________ 

             Carl Brewer, City Mayor 
 
SEAL: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Gary Rebenstorf, Director of Law 
         

     PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.A. 
 
     
                

___________________________________________ 
        (Name & Title) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
 

119



            
 
     
    
 Agenda Item No. II-5b. 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Contract for Floating Stage on Arkansas River (District I) 
       
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the contract with Prairie Lake Company and authorize the necessary 
signatures. 
 
Background:   The City of Wichita has been awarded an Economic Development Initiative (EDI) grant 
by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in the amount of $247,500 for the 
construction of an amphitheater-type facility in the WaterWalk development. The area designated for 
such a facility in the WaterWalk master plan is between Gander Mountain and the Wichita Boathouse. It 
is the City’s intent to design and construct a floating stage on the Arkansas River, near the east bank, 
including a modest seating area.  On March 11, 2013, the Design Council recommended approval of the 
floating stage that meets the “Acceptable” requirements of the Design Guidelines.  A subsequent Design 
Council meeting was held on May 15, 2013, which gave approval to the material and color palette.  On 
May 21, 2013, the City Council approved the Request for Proposal (RFP), EDI Grant, proposal and 
renderings.  
 
Analysis:   To utilize the full value of the grant funding, staff recommends using the design-build concept 
for the floating stage. The proposed agreement between the City and Prairie Lake Company provides for 
the design and construction of a floating stage with access gangways from the river bank and a 200 Amp 
electrical service connection point located on the river bank. 
 
Financial Considerations: The EDI grant is the sole source of funding for the stage with a stipulation 
that all monies be expended not later than September 30, 2013. The contract is in the amount of $247,500 
which is full value of the EDI grant.   
 
Legal Considerations:  The contract has been reviewed and approved as to form by the Law Department. 
 
Recommendation/Action:   It is recommended that the City Council approve the contract and authorize 
the necessary signatures.   
 
Attachments:  Contract. 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



Agenda Item No. II-6a 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement for Design Services for NewMarket Office V Addition (District V)   
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the agreement. 
 
Background:   On August 5, 2008, the City Council approved a petition for a water distribution system 
to serve NewMarket V Addition.  On April 16, 2013, the City Council approved a revised petition with an 
increased scope of services and budget. 
 
Analysis:  The proposed agreement between the City and Professional Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
(PEC) provides for the design of the improvements.  In accordance with Administrative Regulation 1.10, 
staff recommends that PEC be hired for this work, as this firm provided the preliminary engineering 
services for the platting of the subdivision and can expedite plan preparation. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Payment to PEC will be on a lump sum basis of $18,400 and will be paid by 
special assessments. 
  
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the agreement as to form. 

Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreement and authorize 
the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Agreement. 

154



AGREEMENT 
 

for 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

between 
 

THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 

and 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.A. 
 

for 
 

NEWMARKET V ADDITION 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this ________________ day of 
_____________________________________, 2013, by and between the CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS, party of the first part, hereinafter called the “CITY” and PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 
CONSULTANTS, P.A., party of the second part, hereinafter called the “ENGINEER”. 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY intends to construct; 
 
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM NO. 448 90331 serving Lot 1, Block 1, Newmarket V 
Addition (west of Maize, south of 29th Street North) (Project No. 448-90331). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The ENGINEER shall furnish professional services as required for designing improvements in 
Newmarket V Addition and perform the PROJECT tasks outlined in Exhibit “A”. 
 

II. IN ADDITION, THE ENGINEER AGREES 
A. To provide the various technical and professional services, equipment, material and 

transportation to perform the tasks as outlined in Exhibit “A”. 
B. To attend meetings with the City and other local, state and federal agencies as necessitated by 

the SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
C. To make available during regular office hours, all calculations, sketches and drawings such as 

the CITY may wish to examine periodically during performance of this agreement. 
D. To save and hold CITY harmless against all suits, claims, damages and losses for injuries to 

persons or property arising from or caused by errors, omissions or negligent acts of 
ENGINEER, its agents, servants, employees, or subcontractors occurring in the performance 
of its services under this contract. 

E. To maintain books, documents, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to 
costs incurred by ENGINEER and, where relevant to method of payment, to make such 
material available to the CITY. 

F. To comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the 
work, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and to comply with the CITY’S 
Affirmative Action Program as set forth in Exhibit “B” which is attached hereto and adopted 
by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

G. To accept compensation for the work herein described in such amounts and at such periods as 
provided in Article IV and that such compensation shall be satisfactory and sufficient 

155



payment for all work performed, equipment or materials used and services rendered in 
connection with such work. 

H. To complete the services to be performed by ENGINEER within the time allotted for the 
PROJECT in accordance with Exhibit A; EXCEPT that the ENGINEER shall not be 
responsible or held liable for delays occasioned by the actions or inactions of the CITY or 
other agencies, or for other unavoidable delays beyond control of the ENGINEER. 

I. Covenants and represents to be responsible for the professional and technical accuracies and 
the coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, plans and/or other work or material 
furnished by the ENGINEER under this agreement.  ENGINEER further agrees, covenants 
and represents, that all designs, drawings, specifications, plans, and other work or material 
furnished by ENGINEER, its agents, employees and subcontractors, under this agreement, 
including any additions, alterations or amendments thereof, shall be free from negligent 
errors or omissions. 

J. ENGINEER shall procure and maintain such insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from 
damages resulting from the negligent acts of the ENGINEER, its agents, officers, employees 
and subcontractors in the performance of the professional services rendered under this 
agreement. Such policy of insurance shall be in an amount not less than $500,000.00 subject 
to a deductible of $10,000.00.  In addition, a Workman’s Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability Policy shall be procured and maintained.  This policy shall include an “all state” 
endorsement.   Said insurance policy shall also cover claims for injury, disease or death of 
employees arising out of and in the course of their employment, which, for any reason, may 
not fall within the provisions of the Workman’s Compensation Law.  The liability limit shall 
be not less than: 

 
Workman’s Compensation – Statutory 

Employer’s Liability - $500,000 each occurrence. 
 

Further, a comprehensive general liability policy shall be procured and maintained by the 
ENGINEER that shall be written in a comprehensive form and shall protect ENGINEER 
against all claims arising from injuries to persons (other than ENGINEER’S employees) or 
damage to property of the CITY or others arising out of any negligent act or omission of 
ENGINEER, its agents, officers, employees or subcontractors in the performance of the 
professional services under this agreement.  The liability limit shall not be less than 
$500,000.00 per occurrence for bodily injury, death and property damage.  Satisfactory 
Certificates of Insurance shall be filed with the CITY prior to the time ENGINEER starts any 
work under this agreement.  In addition, insurance policies applicable hereto shall contain a 
provision that provides that the CITY shall be given thirty (30) days written notice by the 
insurance company before such policy is substantially changed or canceled. 

K. To designate a Project Manager for the coordination of the work that this agreement requires 
to be performed.  The ENGINEER agrees to advise the CITY, in writing, of the person(s) 
designated as Project Manager not later than five (5) days following issuance of the notice to 
proceed on the work required by this agreement.  The ENGINEER shall also advise the CITY 
of any changes in the person designated Project Manager.  Written notification shall be 
provided to the CITY for any changes exceeding one week in length of time. 

 
III. THE CITY AGREES: 

A. To furnish all available data pertaining to the PROJECT now in the CITY’S files at no cost to 
the ENGINEER.  Confidential materials so furnished will be kept confidential by the 
ENGINEER. 

B. To provide standards as required for the PROJECT; however, reproduction costs are the 
responsibility of the ENGINEER, except as specified in Exhibit A. 

C. To pay the ENGINEER for his services in accordance with the requirements of this 
agreement. 

D. To provide the right-of-entry for ENGINEER’S personnel in performing field surveys and 
inspections. 

156



E. To designate a Project Manager for the coordination of the work that this agreement requires 
to be performed.  The CITY agrees to advise, the ENGINEER, in writing, of the person(s) 
designated as Project Manager with the issuance of the notice to proceed on the work 
required by this agreement.  The CITY shall also advise the ENGINEER of any changes in 
the person(s) designated Project Manager.  Written notification shall be provided to the 
ENGINEER for any changes exceeding one week in length of time. 

F. To examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other 
documents presented by ENGINEER in a timely fashion. 

 
IV. PAYMENT PROVISIONS  

A. Payment to the ENGINEER for the performance of the professional services required by this 
agreement shall be made on the basis of the lump sum fee amount specified below: 

 
                                             Project No. 448 90331       $18,400.00    

B.  When requested by the CITY, the ENGINEER will enter into a Supplemental Agreement for 
additional services related to the PROJECT such as, but not limited to: 
1. Consultant or witness for the CITY in any litigation, administrative hearing, or other legal 

proceedings related to the PROJECT. 
2. Additional design services not covered by the scope of this agreement. 
3. Construction staking, material testing, inspection and administration related to the 

PROJECT. 
4. A major change in the scope of services for the PROJECT. 
If additional work should be necessary, the ENGINEER will be given written notice by the 
CITY along with a request for an estimate of the increase necessary in the not-to-exceed fee 
for performance of such additions.  No additional work shall be performed nor shall 
additional compensation be paid except on the basis of a Supplemental Agreement duly 
entered into by the parties. 
 

V. THE PARTIES HERETO MUTUALLY AGREE: 
A. That the right is reserved to the CITY to terminate this agreement at any time, upon written 

notice, in the event the PROJECT is to be abandoned or indefinitely postponed, or because of 
the ENGINEER’S inability to proceed with the work. 

B. That the field notes and other pertinent drawings and documents pertaining to the PROJECT 
shall become the property of the CITY upon completion or termination of the ENGINEER’S 
services in accordance with this agreement; and there shall be no restriction or limitation on 
their further use by the CITY.  Provided, however, that CITY shall hold ENGINEER 
harmless from any and all claims, damages or causes of action which arise out of such further 
use when such further use is not in connection with the PROJECT. 

C. That the services to be performed by the ENGINEER under the terms of this agreement are 
personal and cannot be assigned, sublet or transferred without specific consent of the CITY. 

D. In the event of unavoidable delays in the progress of the work contemplated by this 
agreement, reasonable extensions in the time allotted for the work will be granted by the 
CITY, provided, however, that the ENGINEER shall request extensions, in writing, giving 
the reasons therefor. 

E. It is further agreed that this agreement and all contracts entered into under the provisions of 
this agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

F. Neither the CITY’S review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the work or 
services required to be performed by the ENGINEER under this agreement shall be construed 
to operate as a waiver of any right under this agreement or any cause of action arising out of 
the performance of this agreement.  

G. The rights and remedies of the CITY provided for under this agreement are in addition to any 
other rights and remedies provided by law. 

H. It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this contract, that it is not intended by 
any of the provisions of any part of this contract to create the public or any member thereof a 
third party beneficiary hereunder, or to authorize anyone not a party to this contract to 
maintain a suit for damages pursuant to the terms or provisions of this contract. 

157



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the ENGINEER have executed this agreement as of the 

date first written above. 
 

             BY ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

                      
_______________________________________ 

              Carl Brewer, Mayor        
 
SEAL: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Gary Rebenstorf, Director of Law 

 
      

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, P.A. 
 
                      ___________________________________________ 

     (Name & Title) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
                                    

158



EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Water Distribution System to serve Newmarket V Addition  
(west of Maize, south of 29th Street North)  

(Project No. 448-90331) 
 

The ENGINEER shall furnish engineering services as required for the development of plans, 
supplemental specifications and estimates of the quantities of work for the PROJECT in the format and 
detail required by the City Engineer for the City of Wichita.  Engineering plans shall be prepared per 
Attachment No. 1. 

 
In connection with the services to be provided, the ENGINEER shall: 
 

A. PHASE I – PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
When authorized by the CITY, proceed with development of Plans for the PROJECT based on the 
preliminary design concepts approved by the CITY. 
1. Field Surveys.  Provide engineering and technical personnel and equipment to obtain survey data 

as required for the engineering design.  Utility companies shall be requested to flag or otherwise 
locate their facilities within the PROJECT limits prior to the ENGINEER conducting the field 
survey for the PROJECT.  Utility information shall be clearly noted and identified on the plans. 

2. Storm Water Pollution Prevention. On projects that disturb one acre or more, the ENGINEER 
will prepare a storm water pollution prevention plan, prepare the necessary permit application(s) 
and include any provisions or requirements in the project plans and special provisions. The storm 
water pollution prevention plan shall also include submittal of a NOI prior to bidding; site-
specific erosion control plan; and standard BMP detail sheets per Attachment No. 1. 

3. Soils and Foundation Investigations.  The CITY may authorize the ENGINEER to direct an 
approved Testing Laboratory to perform subsurface borings and soils investigations for the 
PROJECT, which shall be reported in the format and detail required by the City Engineer for the 
City of Wichita.  The Testing Laboratory shall be responsible for the accuracy and competence of 
their work.  The ENGINEER’S contract with the Testing Laboratory shall provide that the 
Testing Laboratory is responsible to the City for the accuracy and competence of their work.  The 
cost of soils and boring investigations shall be passed directly to the City of Wichita.  

4. Review Preliminary Design Concepts.  Submit preliminary design concepts for review with the 
City Engineer or his designated representative prior to progressing to detail aspects of the work 
unless waived by the City Engineer. 

5. Drainage Study.  When applicable, conduct a detailed study to explore alternative design 
concepts concerning drainage for the project.  Present the findings in writing identifying 
recommendations to the CITY, including preliminary cost estimates, prior to development of final 
check plans.  Such written findings and recommendations must be in a format which is self 
explanatory and readily understood by persons with average backgrounds for the technology 
involved. 

6. Plans & Specifications. Prepare engineering plans, plan quantities and supplemental 
specifications as required.  Engineering plans will include incidental drainage where required and 
permanent traffic signing.  The PROJECT’S plans and proposed special provisions shall address 
the requirements included in the City’s Administrative Regulations 6.5, “Cleanup, Restoration or 
Replacement Following Construction.”  Also, final plans, field notes and other pertinent project 
mapping records are to be submitted per Attachment No. 1.  The files are to be AutoCAD 
drawing files or DXF/DXB files.  Layering, text fonts, etc. are to be reviewed and approved 
during the preliminary concept development phase of the design work.  Text fonts other than 
standard AutoCAD files are to be included with drawing files.  In addition to supplying the 
electronic files of the AutoCAD drawing files of the final plans, ENGINEER will also need to 
supply electronic files of the drawings in PDF format. 

7. Property Acquisition. Prepare right-of-way/easement tract maps and descriptions as required in 
clearly drawn detail and with sufficient reference to certificate of title descriptions.  ENGINEER 
will perform all necessary survey work associated with marking the additional right-of-way 

159



easements.  This shall include the setting monuments of new corners for any additional right-of-
way and a one time marking of the right-of-way for utility relocations. 

8. Utility Coordination. Identify all potential utility conflicts and provide preliminary field check 
plans showing the problem locations, posted to the City’s FTP site.  Plans will clearly identify 
specific utility company facilities by color and by name (i.e. not just “gas” or “fiber optic”). 
The ENIGNEER shall include a conflict list for each utility, also posted to the FTP site. 
Attachment No. 2 is a utility verification form that shall be completed and submitted by the 
Engineer as compiled from the utilities at each milestone date and as directed by the City. 
ENGINEER shall meet with utility company representatives to review plans and utility 
verification forms; information will be complied into a summary report, and maintained and 
updated by ENGINEER as necessary to present a cohesive and reflective status of utilities.  
ENGINEER shall coordinate resolution of utility conflicts prior to project letting or, if approved 
by the City Engineer, identify on plans conflicts to be resolved during construction.  ENGINEER 
shall meet with involved utility company/ies and project contractor to resolve any conflicts with 
utilities that occur during construction that were not identified and coordinated during design. 

9. Staking Information.  All applicable coordinate control points and related project staking 
information shall be furnished on a map on the plans, as well on CD-ROM, as a text file, along 
with the project PDF’s.  This coordinate information will be used by the CITY for construction 
staking purposes. 

10. Shop Drawings. All shop drawings submitted by the contractor for the PROJECT shall be 
reviewed and, when acceptable, approved for construction by the ENGINEER for the project. 

11. Public Meeting. The ENGINEER shall meet with effected property owners, along with City staff, 
at a pre-construction Public Information Meeting, as arranged by the City, to explain project 
design, including such issues as construction phasing and traffic control. 

12. New Right-of-Way Monumentation.  The ENGINEER shall complete permanent monumentation 
of all new right-of-way, and complete and submit all necessary legal documentation for same. 

13. Permits. The ENGINEER shall prepare any and all necessary permits for this project, such as the 
preparation of applications for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (404) permits, Division of Water 
Resources permit, Kansas Department of Wildlife and Parks permit and Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment permit.  Also if requested by the CITY, obtain construction approval 
from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and assist the CITY in coordinating the archaeological 
review of the PROJECT. The ENGINEER shall be responsible for the cost of all permit fees 
that are required to complete the PROJECT.  The cost shall be included in the design fee 
submitted by the ENGINEER.    

14. Project Milestones. The ENGINEER agrees to complete and deliver field notes, preliminary and 
final plans, specifications and estimates to the CITY within the time allotted for the PROJECTS 
as stipulated below; EXCEPT that the ENGINEER shall not be responsible or held liable for 
delays occasioned by the actions or inactions of the City or agencies, or for other unavoidable 
delays beyond the control of the ENGINEER.  
(a) Field check plans of the project for distribution to utilities by June 7, 2013. 
(b) Completion of all work required by this agreement (including submittal of final approved 

plans, field notes, and related project documents by July 3, 2013. 

160



Attachment No. 1 to Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services 
 

Plan Submittal 
 
Water projects plans shall be submitted with (1) set of mylar plans; and a CD of the .dwgs and .pdfs. This 
includes projects that have the water plans incorporated into that project, for which the cover sheet should 
also be included.   
 
Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Paving plans shall be submitted in a .dwg and .pdf format on a CD. 
 
In addition, two (2) sets of 11”x17” plans will be submitted at the time of final .pdf submittal for ALL 
projects, regardless of the type.   

 
 
 
Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
 
For any project disturbing one acre of ground or more, the design Consultant must prepare a Notice of 
Intent and a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and submit them to the KDHE for approval.  
Complete copies of the approved NOI and SWP3 must be provided to the City, prior to bidding.  One 
hard copy should be provided to the project engineer upon approval, one electronic copy should be 
included with your transmittal of PDF plan files, and one additional electronic copy should be sent to the 
attention of Mark Hall at the following address: 

 
City of Wichita 
Storm Water Division 
455 N. Main 8th Floor 
Wichita, KS 67202 

 
THIS INCLUDES ALL PROJECTS DISTURBING ONE ACRE OR MORE – I.E. NEW 
DEVELOPMENT, ARTERIAL STREETS, DIRT STREETS, BIKE PATHS, SEWER MAINS, ETC. 

 
The City of Wichita will, under no circumstance, bid any project without first receiving copies of the 
KDHE approved NOI and SWP3. 

  
The design of all City of Wichita construction projects must include the development of a site-specific 
erosion control plan.  The site-specific erosion control plan must be included in the project plans.  Every 
component and requirement of the erosion control plan must be separately and accurately accounted as a 
measured quantity bid item in the engineer’s estimate. 

 
Please note that careful consideration must be given to the transition of BMP maintenance responsibilities 
throughout the course of multi-phased projects.  All intended responsibilities must be clearly 
demonstrated by the bid items.  For example, if it is intended that the contractor of a subsequent waterline 
project be responsible for the maintenance of silt fence installed with a preceding sanitary sewer project, a 
measured quantity bid item must be submitted for x-lf of silt fence maintenance. 
 
The City’s current BMP standard detail sheets shall be included in all plans.  These five sheets must be 
included in every plan set developed for the City of Wichita, regardless of project size. 

161



Attachment No. 2 to Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services 
K-96K 

 
Utility Location Verification Non-CIP Project 

 
Projected Bid Date: 

 
UTILITY: _________    Checked by_________ on ________ 

 

Utility Location: 
 None in Project Limits     In Project Limits, No Relocation Necessary 

 Utility will need to relocate     Other (please describe) 
             
Briefly Describe Type and Location of Facilities within Project: 
__________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Estimate Time for Relocation:   < 3 months  3-6 months  6-9 months  > 9 months 
 
Weather Sensitive:  Yes   No If  yes, please explain: __________________________________ 
 
Utility Plan Review:                  

 Correct as Shown   Corrections needed   Attachments provided for Consultant 
             
Corrections necessary on plan sheets:  
________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________  

Additional Information requested from Consultant: _______________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________         
 
Please email this form on or before                           to:                                         
 
 
 
If relocation is necessary:   
 
Estimated clear date:______________________________ 
 
Completed by ____________________(utility representative) on ___________(date) 
 
 
Upon completion of relocation: 
 
Relocation complete on:______________________________ 
 
Completed by ____________________(utility representative) on ___________(date) 
 

 Project Name 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

  
 

162



 Agenda Item No. II-6b. 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement for Design Services for an Area Being Platted as Southfork  
   Commercial Addition (District III) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the agreement. 
 
Background:    On May 15, 2012, the City Council approved petitions for paving, a water distribution 
system, sanitary sewer service, and storm water drainage to serve a new commercial development south 
of 47th Street South and west of Hydraulic.  On April 23, 2013, the City Council approved revised 
petitions with increased budgets for each of these projects. 
 
Analysis:  The proposed agreement between the City and Poe & Associates provides for design of the 
improvements.  In accordance with Administrative Regulation 1.10, staff recommends that Poe & 
Associates be hired for this work, as this firm provided the preliminary engineering services for the 
platting of the development and can expedite plan preparation. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Payment to Poe & Associates will be on a lump sum basis of $245,950, and 
will be paid by special assessments, reimbursed through tax increment financing (TIF), approved by the 
City Council on April 17, 2012. 
  
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the agreement as to form. 

Recommendation/Action: It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreement and authorize 
the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Agreement.  

  

163



AGREEMENT  
 

for 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

between 
 

THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 

and 
 

POE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

for 
 

SOUTHFORK COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made this ________________ day of 
_____________________________________, 2013, by and between the CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS, party of the first part, hereinafter called the “CITY” and POE & ASSOCIATES, INC., party of 
the second part, hereinafter called the “ENGINEER”. 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY intends to construct; 
 
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM NO. 448 90558 serving Unplatted Tract “A”, Southfork 
Commercial Addition (south of 47th Street South, west of Hydraulic) (Project No. 448-90558). 
 
LATERAL 37, MAIN 2, SOUTHWEST INTERCEPTOR SEWER serving Unplatted Tract 
“A”, Southfork Commercial Addition (south of 47th Street South, west of Hydraulic) (Project No. 
468-84825). 
 
STORM WATER DRAIN NO. 385 serving Unplatted Tract “A”, Southfork Commercial 
Addition (south of 47th Street South, west of Hydraulic) (Project No. 468-84826). 
 
WASHINGTON STREET from the south line of 47th Street South to a cul-de-sac, ending at a 
point 1200’ south of the south line of 47th Street South, Southfork Commercial Addition (south 
of 47th Street South, west of Hydraulic) (Project No. 472-85050). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 
 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The ENGINEER shall furnish professional services as required for designing improvements in 
Newmarket V Addition and perform the PROJECT tasks outlined in Exhibit “A”. 
 

II. IN ADDITION, THE ENGINEER AGREES 
A. To provide the various technical and professional services, equipment, material and 

transportation to perform the tasks as outlined in (Exhibit A). 
B. To attend meetings with the City and other local, state and federal agencies as necessitated by 

the SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
C. To make available during regular office hours, all calculations, sketches and drawings such as 

the CITY may wish to examine periodically during performance of this agreement. 
D. To save and hold CITY harmless against all suits, claims, damages and losses for injuries to 

persons or property arising from or caused by errors, omissions or negligent acts of 

164



ENGINEER, its agents, servants, employees, or subcontractors occurring in the performance 
of its services under this contract. 

E. To maintain books, documents, papers, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to 
costs incurred by ENGINEER and, where relevant to method of payment, to make such 
material available to the CITY. 

F. To comply with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the 
work, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and to comply with the CITY’S 
Affirmative Action Program as set forth in Exhibit “B” which is attached hereto and adopted 
by reference as though fully set forth herein. 

G. To accept compensation for the work herein described in such amounts and at such periods as 
provided in Article IV and that such compensation shall be satisfactory and sufficient 
payment for all work performed, equipment or materials used and services rendered in 
connection with such work. 

H. To complete the services to be performed by ENGINEER within the time allotted for the 
PROJECT in accordance with Exhibit A; EXCEPT that the ENGINEER shall not be 
responsible or held liable for delays occasioned by the actions or inactions of the CITY or 
other agencies, or for other unavoidable delays beyond control of the ENGINEER. 

I. Covenants and represents to be responsible for the professional and technical accuracies and 
the coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, plans and/or other work or material 
furnished by the ENGINEER under this agreement.  ENGINEER further agrees, covenants 
and represents, that all designs, drawings, specifications, plans, and other work or material 
furnished by ENGINEER, its agents, employees and subcontractors, under this agreement, 
including any additions, alterations or amendments thereof, shall be free from negligent 
errors or omissions. 

J. ENGINEER shall procure and maintain such insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from 
damages resulting from the negligent acts of the ENGINEER, its agents, officers, employees 
and subcontractors in the performance of the professional services rendered under this 
agreement. Such policy of insurance shall be in an amount not less than $500,000.00 subject 
to a deductible of $10,000.00.  In addition, a Workman’s Compensation and Employer’s 
Liability Policy shall be procured and maintained.  This policy shall include an “all state” 
endorsement.   Said insurance policy shall also cover claims for injury, disease or death of 
employees arising out of and in the course of their employment, which, for any reason, may 
not fall within the provisions of the Workman’s Compensation Law.  The liability limit shall 
be not less than: 

 
Workman’s Compensation – Statutory 

Employer’s Liability - $500,000 each occurrence. 
 

Further, a comprehensive general liability policy shall be procured and maintained by the 
ENGINEER that shall be written in a comprehensive form and shall protect ENGINEER 
against all claims arising from injuries to persons (other than ENGINEER’S employees) or 
damage to property of the CITY or others arising out of any negligent act or omission of 
ENGINEER, its agents, officers, employees or subcontractors in the performance of the 
professional services under this agreement.  The liability limit shall not be less than 
$500,000.00 per occurrence for bodily injury, death and property damage.  Satisfactory 
Certificates of Insurance shall be filed with the CITY prior to the time ENGINEER starts any 
work under this agreement.  In addition, insurance policies applicable hereto shall contain a 
provision that provides that the CITY shall be given thirty (30) days written notice by the 
insurance company before such policy is substantially changed or canceled. 

K. To designate a Project Manager for the coordination of the work that this agreement requires 
to be performed.  The ENGINEER agrees to advise the CITY, in writing, of the person(s) 
designated as Project Manager not later than five (5) days following issuance of the notice to 
proceed on the work required by this agreement.  The ENGINEER shall also advise the CITY 
of any changes in the person designated Project Manager.  Written notification shall be 
provided to the CITY for any changes exceeding one week in length of time. 

 

165



III. THE CITY AGREES: 
A. To furnish all available data pertaining to the PROJECT now in the CITY’S files at no cost to 

the ENGINEER.  Confidential materials so furnished will be kept confidential by the 
ENGINEER. 

B. To provide standards as required for the PROJECT; however, reproduction costs are the 
responsibility of the ENGINEER, except as specified in Exhibit A. 

C. To pay the ENGINEER for his services in accordance with the requirements of this 
agreement. 

D. To provide the right-of-entry for ENGINEER’S personnel in performing field surveys and 
inspections. 

E. To designate a Project Manager for the coordination of the work that this agreement requires 
to be performed.  The CITY agrees to advise, the ENGINEER, in writing, of the person(s) 
designated as Project Manager with the issuance of the notice to proceed on the work 
required by this agreement.  The CITY shall also advise the ENGINEER of any changes in 
the person(s) designated Project Manager.  Written notification shall be provided to the 
ENGINEER for any changes exceeding one week in length of time. 

F. To examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other 
documents presented by ENGINEER in a timely fashion. 

 
IV. PAYMENT PROVISIONS  

A. Payment to the ENGINEER for the performance of the professional services required by this 
agreement shall be made on the basis of the lump sum fee amount specified below: 

 
                                             Project No. 448 90558       $  13,750.00 

         Project No. 468 84825       $  16,700.00 

         Project No. 462 84826       $147,500.00 

         Project No. 472 85050       $   68,000.00   

                          TOTAL             $ 245,950.00 

 
B. When requested by the CITY, the ENGINEER will enter into a Supplemental Agreement for 

additional services related to the PROJECT such as, but not limited to: 
1. Consultant or witness for the CITY in any litigation, administrative hearing, or other legal 

proceedings related to the PROJECT. 
2. Additional design services not covered by the scope of this agreement. 
3. Construction staking, material testing, inspection and administration related to the 

PROJECT. 
4. A major change in the scope of services for the PROJECT. 
If additional work should be necessary, the ENGINEER will be given written notice by the 
CITY along with a request for an estimate of the increase necessary in the not-to-exceed fee 
for performance of such additions.  No additional work shall be performed nor shall 
additional compensation be paid except on the basis of a Supplemental Agreement duly 
entered into by the parties. 
 

V. THE PARTIES HERETO MUTUALLY AGREE: 
A. That the right is reserved to the CITY to terminate this agreement at any time, upon written 

notice, in the event the PROJECT is to be abandoned or indefinitely postponed, or because of 
the ENGINEER’S inability to proceed with the work. 

B. That the field notes and other pertinent drawings and documents pertaining to the PROJECT 
shall become the property of the CITY upon completion or termination of the ENGINEER’S 
services in accordance with this agreement; and there shall be no restriction or limitation on 
their further use by the CITY.  Provided, however, that CITY shall hold ENGINEER 
harmless from any and all claims, damages or causes of action which arise out of such further 
use when such further use is not in connection with the PROJECT. 

166



C. That the services to be performed by the ENGINEER under the terms of this agreement are 
personal and cannot be assigned, sublet or transferred without specific consent of the CITY. 

D. In the event of unavoidable delays in the progress of the work contemplated by this 
agreement, reasonable extensions in the time allotted for the work will be granted by the 
CITY, provided, however, that the ENGINEER shall request extensions, in writing, giving 
the reasons therefor. 

E. It is further agreed that this agreement and all contracts entered into under the provisions of 
this agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

F. Neither the CITY’S review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the work or 
services required to be performed by the ENGINEER under this agreement shall be construed 
to operate as a waiver of any right under this agreement or any cause of action arising out of 
the performance of this agreement.  

G. The rights and remedies of the CITY provided for under this agreement are in addition to any 
other rights and remedies provided by law. 

H. It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this contract, that it is not intended by 
any of the provisions of any part of this contract to create the public or any member thereof a 
third party beneficiary hereunder, or to authorize anyone not a party to this contract to 
maintain a suit for damages pursuant to the terms or provisions of this contract. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the ENGINEER have executed this agreement as of the 

date first written above. 
 

             BY ACTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

                      
_______________________________________ 

              Carl Brewer, Mayor        
 
SEAL: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Gary Rebenstorf, Director of Law 

 
     POE & ASSOCIATES, INC.. 

 
 
                       ___________________________________________ 

         (Name & Title) 
         James M. Ubert, P.E., Sr. Vice President  

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Carol R. Barnes, Assistant Secretary                                    

167



EXHIBIT “A” 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Southfork Commercial Addition 

(south of 47th Street South, west of Hydraulic) 
 
 

The ENGINEER shall furnish engineering services as required for the development of plans, 
supplemental specifications and estimates of the quantities of work for the PROJECT in the format and 
detail required by the City Engineer for the City of Wichita.  Engineering plans shall be prepared per 
Attachment No. 1 to Exhibit “A”. 

 
In connection with the services to be provided, the ENGINEER shall: 
 

A. PHASE I – PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
When authorized by the CITY, proceed with development of Plans for the PROJECT based on the 
preliminary design concepts approved by the CITY. 
1. Field Surveys.  Provide engineering and technical personnel and equipment to obtain survey data 

as required for the engineering design.  Utility companies shall be requested to flag or otherwise 
locate their facilities within the PROJECT limits prior to the ENGINEER conducting the field 
survey for the PROJECT.  Utility information shall be clearly noted and identified on the plans. 

2. Storm Water Pollution Prevention. On projects that disturb one acre or more, the ENGINEER 
will prepare a storm water pollution prevention plan, prepare the necessary permit application(s) 
and include any provisions or requirements in the project plans and special provisions. The storm 
water pollution prevention plan shall also include submittal of a NOI prior to bidding; site-
specific erosion control plan; and standard BMP detail sheets per Attachment No. 1 to Exhibit 
“A”. 

3. Soils and Foundation Investigations.  The CITY may authorize the ENGINEER to direct an 
approved Testing Laboratory to perform subsurface borings and soils investigations for the 
PROJECT, which shall be reported in the format and detail required by the City Engineer for the 
City of Wichita.  The Testing Laboratory shall be responsible for the accuracy and competence of 
their work.  The ENGINEER’S contract with the Testing Laboratory shall provide that the 
Testing Laboratory is responsible to the City for the accuracy and competence of their work.  The 
cost of soils and boring investigations shall be passed directly to the City of Wichita.  

4. Review Preliminary Design Concepts.  Submit preliminary design concepts for review with the 
City Engineer or his designated representative prior to progressing to detail aspects of the work 
unless waived by the City Engineer. 

5. Drainage Study.  When applicable, conduct a detailed study to explore alternative design 
concepts concerning drainage for the project.  Present the findings in writing identifying 
recommendations to the CITY, including preliminary cost estimates, prior to development of final 
check plans.  Such written findings and recommendations must be in a format which is self 
explanatory and readily understood by persons with average backgrounds for the technology 
involved. 

6. Plans & Specifications. Prepare engineering plans, plan quantities and supplemental 
specifications as required.  Engineering plans will include incidental drainage where required and 
permanent traffic signing.  The PROJECT’S plans and proposed special provisions shall address 
the requirements included in the City’s Administrative Regulations 6.5, “Cleanup, Restoration or 
Replacement Following Construction.”  Also, final plans, field notes and other pertinent project 
mapping records are to be submitted per Attachment No. 2 to Exhibit “A”.  The files are to be 
AutoCAD drawing files or DXF/DXB files.  Layering, text fonts, etc. are to be reviewed and 
approved during the preliminary concept development phase of the design work.  Text fonts other 
than standard AutoCAD files are to be included with drawing files.  In addition to supplying the 
electronic files of the AutoCAD drawing files of the final plans, ENGINEER will also need to 
supply electronic files of the drawings in PDF format. 

7. Property Acquisition. Prepare right-of-way/easement tract maps and descriptions as required in 
clearly drawn detail and with sufficient reference to certificate of title descriptions.  ENGINEER 
will perform all necessary survey work associated with marking the additional right-of-way 

168



easements.  This shall include the setting monuments of new corners for any additional right-of-
way and a one time marking of the right-of-way for utility relocations. 

8. Utility Coordination. Identify all potential utility conflicts and provide preliminary field check 
plans showing the problem locations, posted to the City’s FTP site.  Plans will clearly identify 
specific utility company facilities by color and by name (i.e. not just “gas” or “fiber optic”). 
The ENIGNEER shall include a conflict list for each utility, also posted to the FTP site. 
Attachment No. 3 to Exhibit “A” is a utility verification form that shall be completed and 
submitted by the Engineer as compiled from the utilities at each milestone date and as 
directed by the City. ENGINEER shall meet with utility company representatives to review 
plans and utility verification forms; information will be complied into a summary report, and 
maintained and updated by ENGINEER as necessary to present a cohesive and reflective status of 
utilities.  ENGINEER shall coordinate resolution of utility conflicts prior to project letting or, if 
approved by the City Engineer, identify on plans conflicts to be resolved during construction.  
ENGINEER shall meet with involved utility company/ies and project contractor to resolve any 
conflicts with utilities that occur during construction that were not identified and coordinated 
during design. 

9. Staking Information.  All applicable coordinate control points and related project staking 
information shall be furnished on a map on the plans, as well on CD-ROM, as a text file, along 
with the project PDF’s.  This coordinate information will be used by the CITY for construction 
staking purposes. 

10. Shop Drawings. All shop drawings submitted by the contractor for the PROJECT shall be 
reviewed and, when acceptable, approved for construction by the ENGINEER for the project. 

11. Public Meeting. The ENGINEER shall meet with effected property owners, along with City staff, 
at a pre-construction Public Information Meeting, as arranged by the City, to explain project 
design, including such issues as construction phasing and traffic control. 

12. New Right-of-Way Monumentation.  The ENGINEER shall complete permanent monumentation 
of all new right-of-way, and complete and submit all necessary legal documentation for same. 

13. Permits. The ENGINEER shall prepare any and all necessary permits for this project, such as the 
preparation of applications for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (404) permits, Division of Water 
Resources permit, Kansas Department of Wildlife and Parks permit and Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment permit.  Also if requested by the CITY, obtain construction approval 
from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and assist the CITY in coordinating the archaeological 
review of the PROJECT. The ENGINEER shall be responsible for the cost of all permit fees 
that are required to complete the PROJECT.  The cost shall be included in the design fee 
submitted by the ENGINEER.    

14. Project Milestones. The ENGINEER agrees to complete and deliver field notes, preliminary and 
final plans, specifications and estimates to the CITY within the time allotted for the PROJECTS 
as stipulated below; EXCEPT that the ENGINEER shall not be responsible or held liable for 
delays occasioned by the actions or inactions of the City or agencies, or for other unavoidable 
delays beyond the control of the ENGINEER.  
(a) Field check plans of the project for distribution to utilities by __________. 
(b) Completion of all work required by this agreement (including submittal of final approved 
plans, field notes, and related project documents by ____________. 

169



Attachment No. 1 to Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services 
 

Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
 
For any project disturbing one acre of ground or more, the design Consultant must prepare a Notice of 
Intent and a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and submit them to the KDHE for approval.  
Complete copies of the approved NOI and SWP3 must be provided to the City, prior to bidding.  One 
hard copy should be provided to the project engineer upon approval, one electronic copy should be 
included with your transmittal of PDF plan files, and one additional electronic copy should be sent to the 
attention of Mark Hall at the following address: 

 
City of Wichita 
Storm Water  
455 N. Main 8th Floor 
Wichita, KS 67202 

 
THIS INCLUDES ALL PROJECTS DISTURBING ONE ACRE OR MORE – I.E. NEW 
DEVELOPMENT, ARTERIAL STREETS, DIRT STREETS, BIKE PATHS, SEWER MAINS, ETC. 

 
The City of Wichita will, under no circumstance, bid any project without first receiving copies of the 
KDHE approved NOI and SWP3. 

  
The design of all City of Wichita construction projects must include the development of a site-specific 
erosion control plan.  The site-specific erosion control plan must be included in the project plans.  Every 
component and requirement of the erosion control plan must be separately and accurately accounted as a 
measured quantity bid item in the engineer’s estimate. 

 
Please note that careful consideration must be given to the transition of BMP maintenance responsibilities 
throughout the course of multi-phased projects.  All intended responsibilities must be clearly 
demonstrated by the bid items.  For example, if it is intended that the contractor of a subsequent waterline 
project be responsible for the maintenance of silt fence installed with a preceding sanitary sewer project, a 
measured quantity bid item must be submitted for x-lf of silt fence maintenance. 
 
The City’s current BMP standard detail sheets shall be included in all plans.  These five sheets must be 
included in every plan set developed for the City of Wichita, regardless of project size. 

170



Attachment No. 2 to Exhibit “A”-Scope of Services 
 
 

Required Plan Coordinate Information 
 

Arterial Street Projects & Infill (Existing Neighborhoods) 
 

I. Sanitary Sewer 
Provide a standard bubble map, as part of the plans, showing locations of numbered points, and a table 
with point number, northing and easting coordinates, description, and BL station for each point, for the 
following: 

• all possible control as established or attained during preliminary survey, including but not limited 
to-section corners, property irons, intersection center-center irons, other set monuments 

• center of manholes 
 

II. WATERLINE 
Provide a standard bubble map, as part of the plans, showing locations of numbered points, and a table 
with point number, northing and easting coordinates, description, and BL station for each point, for the 
following: 

• all possible control as established or attained during preliminary survey, including but not limited 
to-section corners, property irons, intersection center-center irons, other set monuments; any 
necessary points for establishing BL, including P.I.’s in BL 

• beginning and ends of pipe 
• all P.I.’s/deflections (horizontal and vertical) 
• FH’s, tees, bends, air release 

 
III. STORM SEWER 

Provide a standard bubble map, as part of the plans, showing locations of numbered points, and a table 
with point number, northing and easting coordinates, description, and BL station for each point, for the 
following: 

• all possible control as established or attained during preliminary survey, including but not limited 
to-section corners, property irons, intersection center-center irons, other set monuments; any 
necessary points for establishing BL, including P.I.’s in BL 

• center, inside face of curb inlets-type 1 and Type 1A; center, at high edge of curb inlets-type 2; 
CL of street, normal to inlet coordinate 

• for skewed inlets typically in intersection radii, or not paralles to baseline-center, inside face of 
inlet; 15ft/4m offset in each direction, to center of inlet, along inside face line extended 

• end of end section, at CL of pipe 
• center, end of pipe at outside face of headwall; if headwall not perpendicular to pipe, each corner 

of headwall at outside face 
• center of all drop inlets, manholes, and other structures 
• center of RCBC at each end (outside face of hubgurard); if box rotated, each corner, outside face 

 
IV. PAVING 

Provide a standard bubble map, as part of the plans, showing locations of numbered points, and a table 
with point number, northing and easting coordinates, description, and BL station for each point, for the 
following: 

• all possible control as established or attained during preliminary survey, including but not limited 
to-section corners, property irons, intersection center-center irons, other set monuments; any 
necessary points for establishing BL, including P.I.’s in BL 

• center of signal poles, service and junction boxes, controller, etc.; ends and P.I.’s for retaining 
walls, at back of walls 

 
THE SAME COORDINATE SYSTEM SHALL BE USED FOR ALL SEPARATE PHASES OF A 
LARGER INFILL OR ARTERIAL STREET PROJECT. 

171



In addition to the required coordinate information, the following shall be included in all plans, at a 
minimum, as needed for construction staking on all City projects. 

• Include a copy of plat(s) on all plans, as relevant and approved by the Design Engineer 
• Benchmarks-minimum of two City standards, four total desirable; as close to project as possible, 

even if TBM set with preliminary survey 
• All control irons/identified property irons shall be shown on plans, with BL stationing and offset 
• Show deflection angles in BL, and/or bearing/azimuth of BL sections 
• Arterial project side streets-provide BL station at CL of intersection of the two streets, on the BL; 

BL station and offset to CL of side street at removal limits; include deflection angle from BL to 
CL of side street 

• Existing FL/pavement grades shown at all match points 
• Top of curb grades and stationing at all ends-of-return and horizontal/vertical P.I.’s, not just even 

stationing 
• CL top of pavement grades for arterial streets 
• BL station and offset at all R/W changes; include R/W corners at all intersections, evein if no 

change in R/W 
• Clearly show existing grades at R/W and beyond; identify removal limits beyond R/W (for grade 

purposes) with BL station and offset, or dimension from R/W 
• Show offset distance between BL and proposed street CL when not the same; establish clear 

relationship between the two 
• BL station and offset to center of signal poles, service and junction boxes, controllers,etc. 
• BL station and offset to back of retaining walls, at ends of walls and all P.I.’s 
• Concrete pavement-provide detailed joint pattern, dimensions, and elevations for all valley 

gutters, intersections, and mainline pavement; should be separate plan sheet(s) with clear and 
project-specific details 

• Storm Sewer-BL station and offset for all curb inlets, drop inlets, manholes, and other structures 
(to the coordinate point locations detailed in previous sheets); same for SS and WL-pertinent 
facilities should be referenced to BL station and offset 

• Sanitary Sewer-show deflection angles between MH’s 
• Curve Tables-should include bends, tees, valves, FH’s ect. for waterlines; ends-of-return, P.I.’s 

etc. for paving  
•   Should be able to accurately scale off of plans 

 

172



• Attachment No. 3 to Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services 
K-96K 

 
Utility Location Verification Non-CIP Project 

 
Projected Bid Date: 

 
UTILITY: _________    Checked by_________ on ________ 

 

Utility Location: 
 None in Project Limits     In Project Limits, No Relocation Necessary 

 Utility will need to relocate     Other (please describe) 
             
Briefly Describe Type and Location of Facilities within Project: 
__________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Estimate Time for Relocation:   < 3 months  3-6 months  6-9 months  > 9 months 
 
Weather Sensitive:  Yes   No If  yes, please explain: __________________________________ 
 
Utility Plan Review:                  

 Correct as Shown   Corrections needed   Attachments provided for Consultant 
             
Corrections necessary on plan sheets:  
________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________  

Additional Information requested from Consultant: _______________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________         
 
Please email this form on or before                           to:                                         
 
 
 
If relocation is necessary:   
 
Estimated clear date:______________________________ 
 
Completed by ____________________(utility representative) on ___________(date) 
 
 
Upon completion of relocation: 
 
Relocation complete on:______________________________ 
 
Completed by ____________________(utility representative) on ___________(date) 
 

 Project Name 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

  
 

173



Agenda Item No. II-7a. 
 

CITY OF WICHITA 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Partial Acquisition of 2812 and 2816 North Amidon for the Amidon, 21st Street 

North to 29th Street North Improvement Project (District VI) 
  
INITIATED BY: Office of Property Management 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the acquisition. 

 
Background:  On March 20, 2012, the City Council approved the design concept to improve Amidon 
Street between 21st Street North and 29th Street North.  The project will require a partial acquisition of 30 
properties together with the full taking of two additional properties.  The tracts within the project 
corridor consist of commercial and residential.  The proposed road improvement project includes 
widening Amidon to provide a continuous center turn lane, and the intersections at 21st Street, 25th Street 
and 29th Street will be reconstructed.  The proposed partial acquisition of 2812 and 2816 North Amidon 
consists of 1,583 square feet for road right-of-way together with a 150 square foot temporary easement.  
The taking is a ten foot wide strip of land adjacent to Amidon.  The residential improvements are not 
impacted by the proposed project.  The temporary easement during construction will allow for proper 
grading at the driveways.  A mature tree and some privacy fencing will be impacted by the project. 
 
Analysis:  The proposed acquisition was valued at $1,900, or $1,100 ($0.70 per square foot) for the 
right-of-way, $150 for the temporary easement, and $650 for the loss of the mature tree and fencing.  The 
seller agreed to accept the appraised offer. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The funding source for the project is General Obligation Bonds.  A budget 
of $2,400 is requested.  This includes $1,900 for the acquisition and $500 for title work, closing costs 
and other administrative fees.   
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the real estate agreement as to form.  
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council 1) approve the real estate 
agreement; 2) approve the budget; and 3) authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Real estate agreement, tract map and aerial map. 

174



175



176



177



178



179



180



Agenda Item No. II-7b 
 

CITY OF WICHITA 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Acquisition of 1732 West 29th Street for the Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th 

Street North Improvement Project (District VI) 
  
INITIATED BY: Office of Property Management 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the acquisition. 

 
Background:  On March 20, 2012, the City Council approved the design concept to improve Amidon 
Street between 21st Street North and 29th Street North.  The project will require a partial acquisition of 
thirty properties together with the full taking of two additional properties.  The tracts within the project 
corridor consist of commercial and residential.  The proposed road improvement project includes 
widening Amidon to provide a continuous center turn lane, and the intersections at 21st Street, 25th Street 
and 29th Street will be reconstructed.  The proposed road improvements at 1732 West 29th result is a full 
acquisition.  The residential improvements at 1732 West 29th Street are to be acquired and the 
owner/occupant relocated.  The site remnant will be utilized as green space.   
 
Analysis:  The proposed acquisition was valued at $118,000.  The seller agreed to accept the appraised 
offer.  The seller is also eligible for relocation and reestablishment benefits not to exceed 27,800. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The funding source for the project is General Obligation Bonds.  A budget 
of $146,300 is requested.  This includes $118,000 for the acquisition, $5,300 for moving, $22,500 for 
reestablishment, and $500 for title work, closing costs and other administrative fees.   
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the real estate agreement as to form.  
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council 1) approve the real estate 
agreement; 2) approve the budget; and 3) authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments:  Real estate agreement, tract map and aerial map. 

181



182



183



184



185



186



 

 

         Agenda Item No. II-9 
       

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 June 18, 2013 
    
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Partial Redemption of Industrial Revenue Bonds (Greater Wichita YMCA) 

(District VI) 
   
INITIATED BY: Office of Urban Development 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the Resolution authorizing the call for redemption.  
 
Background:  On April 12, 2011, the City Council approved the issuance Industrial Revenue Bonds 
(“IRBs”) to the Greater Wichita YMCA for an amount not to exceed $23,000,000.  The bond proceeds 
were used to construct, and equip a new Central Branch facility to replace the facility located at 402 
North Market in downtown Wichita.  The YMCA is requesting City Council approval of an early call of a 
portion of the bonds. 
 
Analysis:  Section 302 of the Bond Indenture provides that the Issuer may elect to redeem Bonds subject 
to optional redemption upon receipt of a written request of the Company.  The Company gave written 
notice on April 17, 2013 to the Trustee directing the Trustee to call the Bonds.  The City also received 
notice on April 17, 2013 from the Tenant of a request to call a portion of the bonds and of the company’s 
intention to redeem $6,000,000 on June 30, 2013. 
 
The Greater Wichita YMCA has received cash donations which will be used to redeem a portion of the 
principal balance of the bonds.  The early redemption of the bonds was anticipated at the time of issuance 
and will allow the YMCA to consider funding new projects. 
 
Financial Considerations:  There is no financial impact to the City resulting from the proposed 
redemption.  The Greater Wichita YMCA agrees to continue to pay the City's $2,500 annual IRB 
administrative fee for the term of the bonds. 
 
Legal Considerations: The Law Department has reviewed and approved the resolution as to form. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt the Resolution authorizing 
an early redemption of a portion of the Series 2011 Bonds. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 

187



RESOLUTION NO.  13-106               
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, TO 
CALL A PORTION OF CERTAIN INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS,  SERIES I, 2011 (THE 

GREATER WICHITA YMCA PROJECT).   
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Wichita, Kansas (the “City” or “Issuer”) 
heretofore passed Ordinance No. 48-981 of the City of Wichita, Kansas, authorizing the issuance of its 
Industrial Revenue Bonds, Series I, 2011 (Greater Wichita YMCA Project), and the execution of a 
certain Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”), dated as of April 1, 2011, in connection therewith; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, The Greater Wichita YMCA has requested the City of Wichita to approve a call for 
early redemption of $6,000,000 principal amount of the Series I, 2011 Bonds, for payment on June 30, 
2013, pursuant to Section 302 of the Bond Indenture; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the funds for the redemption will be provided from a certain Letter of Credit 
Reimbursement Agreement  (the “Letter of Credit”) between The Young Men’s Christian Association of 
Wichita and Bank of American, N.A. (the “Bank”), which required forty-five days notice to the Bank 
prior to the date of a redemption to be funded from the Letter of Credit; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, The Greater Wichita YMCA has given notice to the Bank and provided redemption 
instructions to the Bond Trustee, by letter of April 17, 2013; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, because the Series I, 2011 Bonds are special obligations of the City of Wichita, the 
terms of the Indenture require the City’s consent in order for the call to proceed as scheduled. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS:  
 
 Section 1.  The City hereby consents to the proposed call and redemption, and ratifies the April 
17, 2013 notice to the Bank and instructions to the Bond Trustee issued by The Greater Wichita YMCA, 
calling for the early redemption and payment of $6,000,000 in principal amount of the Series I, 2011 
Bonds on June 30, 2013. 
 
         Section 2.  Any and all fees and expenses in connection with the redemption of the Bonds will be 
provided from the Letter of Credit or funds of the Young Men’s Christian Association of Wichita.  
Nothing herein contained shall obligate the City in any manner in connection with the cost of the 
redemption of the Bonds. 
 
        Section 3.  The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to take such further 
actions not inconsistent herewith as may be necessary to carry out the purposes contemplated by this 
Resolution. 
 
        Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its adoption by the 
governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas. 
 
 
       ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, this 18th day of June, 2013.  
 

188



                                                     CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
        
                                                    By___________________________ 
                                                        Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law 

189



     Agenda Report No. II-10 
 

 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
           
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT:   General Obligation Temporary Note Sale 
 
INITIATED BY:  Finance Department 
 
AGENDA:   Consent 
 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution. 
 
Background: The City is planning to offer for sale one series of General Obligation Renewal Temporary 
Notes (Series 258) in an approximate amount of $160 million. The public sale of the notes is scheduled 
for 10:00 a.m. Central Daylight Time on July 16, 2013, at which time bids will be received and the City 
Council will award the sale of the notes to the bidder whose proposed interest rate results in the lowest 
overall cost to the City.  
 
On June 15, 2010, the City Council adopted rate increases for the Water Utilities and approved an option 
to proceed with the full Phase II Aquifer Storage Recovery (ASR) project based on the 30 MGD system. 
This option assumes a combination of general obligation and/or revenue bond financing for funding the 
remainder of the ASR project.  A resolution was approved by the City Council on July 13, 2010 to 
establish the advisability of the ASR project and authorize the issuance of general obligation bonds under 
K.S.A. 13-1024c and City of Wichita Charter Ordinance No. 156.  General Obligation Improvement 
Temporary Notes in the principal amount of $140 million were issued on September 15, 2010 and were 
renewed on August 16, 2011 with an additional new money component of $20 million, for a total of $160 
million, to provide interim financing for Phase II of the ASR project. 
 
Analysis:  The proceeds from the sale of the Series 258 Renewal Temporary Notes will be used to 
provide interim financing for improvements related to Phase II of the ASR project of Public Works & 
Utilities.  
 
Financial Considerations:  The Series 258 Renewal Temporary Notes will mature on October 15, 2014 
and may be called for redemption and payment prior to maturity on and after April 15, 2014.  The 
temporary notes will be retired using the proceeds of permanent financing bonds, renewal notes and/or 
from current revenues of the City available for such purpose.  
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved, as to form, the Resolution authorizing the 
sale of the notes and directing the distribution of the Notice of Sale (prepared by the City’s Bond 
Counsel). 
  
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended the City Council adopt the resolution: 1) authorizing the 
general obligation renewal temporary note sale; 2) approving the distribution to prospective bidders of 
the Preliminary Official Statement, subject to such minor revisions as may be determined necessary by 
the Mayor or the Director of Finance; 3) finding that such Preliminary Official Statement is in a form 

190



Page Two 
June 18, 2013 
General Obligation Temporary Note Sale 
 
“deemed final” for the purpose of the Securities Exchange Commission’s Rule 15c2-12(b)(l), subject to 
revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Statement; 4) authorizing distribution of the  
Notice of Sale; and 5) authorizing City staff, in consultation with Bond Counsel to take such further 
action reasonably required to implement this Resolution.    
 
Attachments:    Resolution 
     Official Notice of Sale 

191



JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS (06-04-13) 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
06/04/2013 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 13-107 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION RENEWAL TEMPORARY NOTES, SERIES 258, OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City of Wichita, Kansas (the 
“City”), has heretofore, pursuant to Resolution No. 10-186, authorized the construction, reconstruction, 
alterations, repairs, improvements, extensions and enlargements to the City’s water utilities to include, but 
not be limited specifically to, the Equus Beds Recharge Project, Phase II [W-549] (the “Project”) at an 
estimated cost of not to exceed $200,000,000 and authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds to 
pay such costs, plus interest on borrowed money and financing costs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body is authorized by law to issue general obligation bonds to pay 
the costs of the Project pursuant to K.S.A. 13-1024c, as amended by Charter Ordinance No. 156 of the 
City (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has heretofore issued, its General  Obligation Improvement Temporary 
Notes, Series 240, in the principal amount of $20,000,000 (the “Series 240 Notes”) to provide interim 
financing for a portion of the costs of the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has also heretofore issued, its General Obligation Renewal and 
Improvement Temporary Notes, Series 248, in the principal amount of $160,000,000 (the “Series 258 
Notes”) to retire the Series 240 Notes and provide additional interim financing for a portion of the costs of 
the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all aspects of the Project will not be completed prior to the maturity date of the 
Series 248 Notes on August 15, 2013, and it is necessary for the City to provide funds to retire the 
Series 248 Notes and interest thereon by the issuance of additional temporary notes of the City. 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Director of Finance and other City staff, in conjunction with Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
(“Bond Counsel”) and the Law Department are hereby authorized to offer at competitive public sale the 
City’s General Obligation Renewal Temporary Notes, Series 258 (the “Notes”) as described in the Notice 
of Note Sale, which is hereby approved in substantially the form presented to the Governing Body this 
date. 
 
 Section 2.  The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Notes, is hereby approved in 
substantially the form presented to the Governing Body this date, with such changes or additions as the 
Mayor or Director of Finance shall deem necessary and appropriate, and such officials and other 
representatives of the City are hereby authorized to use such document in connection with the public sale 
of the Notes. 
 
 Section 3.  The Director of Finance, in conjunction with Bond Counsel, is hereby authorized and 
directed to give notice of said note sale by distributing copies of the Notice of Note Sale and Preliminary 

192



JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS (06-04-13) 
2 

Official Statement to prospective purchasers of the Notes.  Proposals for the purchase of the Notes shall 
be submitted upon the terms and conditions set forth in said Notice of Note Sale, and shall be delivered to 
the Governing Body at its meeting to be held on such date, at which meeting the Governing Body shall 
review such bids and shall award the sale of the Notes or reject all proposals. 
 
 Section 4.  For the purpose of enabling the purchaser of the Notes (the “Purchaser”) to comply 
with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the Mayor 
and Director of Finance or appropriate officers of the City are hereby authorized:  (a) to approve the form 
of said Preliminary Official Statement, and to execute the “Certificate Deeming Preliminary Official 
Statement Final” in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A as approval of the Preliminary 
Official Statement, such official's signature thereon being conclusive evidence of such official's and the 
City's approval thereof; (b) covenant to provide continuous secondary market disclosure by annually 
transmitting certain financial information and operating data and other information necessary to comply 
with the Rule to certain national repositories and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, as 
applicable; and (c) take such other actions or execute such other documents as such officers in their 
reasonable judgment deem necessary; to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirement of the Rule.  
The City agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of Notes or 
within sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requests payment from any customer of the 
Purchaser, whichever is earlier, sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to 
comply with the requirements of the Rule and with the requirements of Rule G-32 of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
 Section 5.  The Mayor, Director of Finance, Clerk and the other officers and representatives of 
the City and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to take such other action as may be 
necessary to carry out the sale of the Notes.  Such officials are also directed and authorized to make 
provision for payment of the Series 248 Notes from proceeds of the Notes and other available funds. 
 
 Section 6.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

193



 

JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS 
(Signature page to Sale Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Wichita, Kansas, on June 18, 2013. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)              

Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      

Gary E. Rebenstorf, Director of Law 
 
 

194



 

JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS 
(Signature page to Sale Resolution) 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
06/04/2013 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
CERTIFICATE DEEMING 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT FINAL 
 
 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
To:  
  
 
 Re: $160,000,000* City of Wichita, Kansas, General Obligation Renewal Temporary Notes, 

Series 258 
 
 
 The undersigned are the duly authorized and acting Mayor and Director of Finance of the City of 
Wichita, Kansas (the “City”), and are authorized to deliver this Certificate to the addressee (the 
“Purchaser”) on behalf of the City.  The City has heretofore caused to be delivered to the Purchaser copies 
of the Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) relating to the above-
referenced notes (the “Notes”). 
 
 For the purpose of enabling the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the City hereby deems the information 
regarding the City contained in the Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date, except for the 
omission of such information as is permitted by the Rule, such as offering prices, interest rates, selling 
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal per maturity, delivery dates, ratings, identity of the 
underwriters and other terms of the Notes depending on such matters. 
 
      CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 
 
 
 
      By:         
        Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
 
 
      By:         
       Shawn Henning, Director of Finance 
 
 

195



Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
06/04/2013 

 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 

 
OFFICIAL NOTICE OF NOTE SALE 

 
$160,000,000* 

 
GENERAL OBLIGATION RENEWAL TEMPORARY NOTES 

SERIES 258 
 

(GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTES PAYABLE FROM UNLIMITED AD VALOREM TAXES) 
 
 Bids.  Electronic bids for the purchase of the above-referenced notes (the “Notes”) of the City of 
Wichita, Kansas (the “City”) herein described will be received by the Director of Finance of the City via 
PARITY® until 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Time (the “Submittal Hour”), on 
 

TUESDAY, JULY 16, 2013 
 
(the “Sale Date”).  All bids will be publicly evaluated at said time and place and the award of the Notes to 
the successful bidder (the “Successful Bidder”) will be acted upon by the City Council (the “Governing 
Body of the City as soon thereafter as may be practical at its meeting to be held on the Sale Date in the 
Council Chamber at City Hall.  No oral, auction, facsimile or other written bids will be considered and no 
bid for less than the entire principal amount of the Notes will be considered.  Capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined in this Notice of Note Sale (the “Notice”) shall have the meanings set forth in the 
hereinafter referenced Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Notes. 
 
 Terms of the Notes.  The Notes will consist of fully registered notes in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (the “Authorized Denomination”).  The Notes will be dated 
August 15, 2013 (the “Dated Date”), and will become due on October 15, 2014.  The Notes will bear 
interest from the Dated Date at rates to be determined when the Notes are sold as hereinafter provided, 
which interest will be payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15 in each year, beginning on April 
15, 2014 (the “Interest Payment Dates”). 
 
 *Adjustment of Issue Size.  The City reserves the right to adjust the total principal amount of the 
Notes, depending on the purchase price bid by the Successful Bidder, amounts necessary to pay for 
interest on the Notes to the initial Interest Payment Date and amounts necessary to finance the Project (as 
hereinafter defined).  The Successful Bidder may not withdraw its bid or change the interest rates bid as a 
result of any changes made to the principal amount of the Notes as described herein.  If there is an 
adjustment in the final aggregate principal amount of the Notes as described above, the City will notify 
the Successful Bidder by means of telephone or facsimile transmission, subsequently confirmed in 
writing, no later than 12:00 p.m., central daylight time, on the Sale Date.  The actual purchase price for 
the Notes shall be calculated by applying the percentage of par value bid by the Successful Bidder against 
the final aggregate principal amount of the Notes, as adjusted. 
 
 Place of Payment.  The principal of and interest on the Notes will be payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America by check or draft of the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas 
(the “Paying Agent” and “Note Registrar”).  The principal of each Note will be payable at maturity or 
earlier redemption to the owners thereof whose names are on the registration books (the “Note Register”) 

196



of the Note Registrar (the “Registered Owner”) upon presentation and surrender at the principal office of 
the Paying Agent.  Interest on each Note will be payable to the Registered Owner of such Note as of the 
fifteenth day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment 
Date (the “Record Date”):  (a) mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner as 
shown on the Note Register or at such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such 
Registered Owner; or (b) in the case of an interest payment to Cede & Co., by wire transfer to such 
Registered Owner upon written notice given to the Paying Agent by such Registered Owner, not less than 
15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the wire transfer address to which such 
Registered Owner wishes to have such wire directed. 
 
 Note Registration.  The Notes will be registered pursuant to a plan of registration approved by 
the City and the Attorney General of the State of Kansas.  The City will pay for the fees of the Note 
Registrar for registration and transfer of the Notes and will also pay for printing a reasonable supply of 
registered note blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other 
than fees of the Note Registrar, will be the responsibility of the Registered Owners. 
 
 Book-Entry-Only System.  The Notes shall be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
the nominee of DTC and no beneficial owner will receive certificates representing their interests in the 
Notes.  During the term of the Notes, so long as the book-entry-only system is continued, the City will 
make payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to DTC or its nominee as the 
Registered Owner of the Notes, DTC will make book-entry-only transfers among its participants and 
receive and transmit payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to is participants 
who shall be responsible for transmitting payments to beneficial owners of the Notes in accordance with 
agreements between such participants and the beneficial owners.  The City will not be responsible for 
maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting 
through such participants.  In the event that:  (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities 
depository for the Notes, or (b) the City determines that continuation of the book-entry-only form of 
evidence and transfer of ownership of the Notes would adversely affect the interests of the beneficial 
owners of the Notes, the City will discontinue the book-entry-only form of registration with DTC.  If the 
City fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the City will cause to be 
authenticated and delivered to the beneficial owners replacement Notes in the form of fully registered 
certificates.  Reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement for further information regarding the 
book-entry-only system of registration of the Notes and DTC. 
 
 Redemption of Notes Prior to Maturity. 
 
 General.  Whenever the City is to select Notes for the purpose of redemption, it will, in the case 
of Notes in denominations greater than the minimum Authorized Denomination, if less than all of the 
Notes then outstanding are to be called for redemption, treat each minimum Authorized Denomination of 
face value of each such fully registered Note as though it were a separate Note in the minimum 
Authorized Denomination. 
 
 Optional Redemption.  At the option of the City, the Notes will be subject to redemption and 
payment prior to maturity on April 15, 2014, and thereafter, as a whole or in part (selection of the amount 
of Notes to be redeemed to be determined by the City in such equitable manner as it may determine) at 
any time, at the redemption price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 
 
 Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  Unless waived by any owner of Notes to be 
redeemed, if the City shall call any Notes for redemption and payment prior to the maturity thereof, the 
City shall give written notice of its intention to call and pay said Notes to the Note Registrar and the 

197



Successful Bidder.  In addition, the City shall cause the Note Registrar to give written notice of 
redemption to the registered owners of said Notes.  Each of said written notices shall be deposited in 
United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.  All notices of 
redemption shall state the date of redemption, the redemption price, the Notes to be redeemed, the place 
of surrender of Notes so called for redemption and a statement of the effect of the redemption.  The City 
shall also give such additional notice as may be required by Kansas law or regulation of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission in effect as of the date of such notice.  If any Note be called for redemption and 
payment as aforesaid, all interest on such Note shall cease from and after the date for which such call is 
made, provided funds are available for its payment at the price hereinbefore specified. 
 
 Authority, Purpose and Security.  The Notes are being issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123, 
K.S.A. 13-1024c, as amended by Charter Ordinance No. 156 of the City, as amended, and a resolution 
adopted by the governing body of the City (the “Note Resolution”) for the purpose of retiring the City’s 
General Obligation Renewal and Improvement Temporary Notes, Series 248, which were issued, in part, 
to provide interim financing for a portion of the costs of certain improvements to the City’s water utility 
(the “Project”) and for payment of additional Project costs.  The Notes shall be general obligations of the 
City payable as to both principal and interest from the proceeds of general obligation bonds of the City, 
and if not so paid, from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount 
upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City.  The full 
faith, credit and resources of the City are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal and 
interest on the Notes as the same become due. 
 
 Submission of Bids.  Electronic bids via PARITY® must be submitted in accordance with its 
Rules of Participation, as well as the provisions of this Notice.  If provisions of this Notice conflict with 
those of PARITY®, this Notice shall control.  Bids must be received prior to the Submittal Hour on the 
Sale Date accompanied by the Deposit (as hereinafter defined), which shall be submitted separately.  The 
City shall not be responsible for any failure, misdirection or error in the means of transmission selected by 
any bidder. 
 
 PARITY®.  Information about the electronic bidding services of PARITY® may be obtained from 
Ipreo at 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York  10018, Phone No. (212) 849-5023. 
 
 Conditions of Bids.  Proposals will be received on the Notes bearing such rate or rates of interest 
as may be specified by the bidders, subject to the following conditions:  (a) the same rate shall apply to all 
Notes; (b) no interest rate may exceed a rate equal to the daily yield for the 10-year Treasury Bond 
published by THE BOND BUYER, in New York, New York, on the Monday next preceding the day on 
which the Notes are sold, plus 6%; and (c) no supplemental interest payments will be considered.  No bid 
shall be for less than 100% of the principal amount of the Notes will be considered.  Each bid shall 
specify the total interest cost (expressed in dollars) during the term of the Notes on the basis of such bid, 
and the average annual net interest rate (expressed as a percentage) on the basis of such bid.  Each bidder 
shall certify to the City the correctness of the information contained on the Official Bid Form; the City 
will be entitled to rely on such certification.  Each bidder agrees that, if it is awarded the Notes, it will 
provide the certification as to initial offering prices described under the caption “Certification as to 
Offering Price” in this Notice. 
 
 Good Faith Deposit.  Each bid shall be accompanied by a good faith deposit (the Deposit”) in an 
amount of $3,200,000*, as stated on the initial page of this Notice, payable to the order of the City to 
secure the City from any loss resulting from the failure of the Successful Bidder to comply with the terms 
of its bid.  The Deposit, which must be received by the City prior to 9:30 a.m. Central Daylight Time on 
the Sale Date, must be in the form of:   (a) a certified or cashier's check drawn on a bank located in the 
United States of America, payable to the order of the City; (b) a Financial Surety Bond (as described 

198



below) payable to the order of the City; or (3) a wire of Federal Reserve funds (as described below), 
immediately available for use by the City.  If a bid is accepted, the Deposit, or the proceeds thereof, will 
be held by the City until the Successful Bidder has complied with all of the terms and conditions of this 
Notice at which time the amount of said Deposit shall be returned to the Successful Bidder or deducted 
from the purchase price at the option of the City.  If a bid is accepted, but the City fails to deliver the 
Notes to the Successful Bidder in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Notice, said Deposit, 
or the proceeds thereof, will be returned to the Successful Bidder.  If a bid is accepted but the Successful 
Bidder defaults in the performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Notice, the proceeds of such 
Deposit will be retained by the City as and for liquidated damages.  No interest on any Deposit shall be 
paid by the City.   
 

Deposit Submission Details.  
 

 (a) Certified or Cashier's Check.   Certified or cashier’s checks must be delivered to 
the Debt Coordinator at the address set forth on the last page of this Notice. 
 
 (b) Financial Surety Bond.  Any financial surety bond (the “Surety Bond”) must be 
issued by an insurance or surety company rated “AA” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a 
division of McGraw Hill Financial Inc., or “Aa” by Moody's Investors Service and licensed to 
issue such a Surety Bond in the State of Kansas, and shall identify each bidder whose Deposit is 
guaranteed by such Surety Bond.  Notice of the issuance of such Surety Bond shall be given by 
the issuer thereof via email transmission to the Director of Finance at the address set forth on the 
last page of this Notice.  If the sale of the Notes is awarded to a bidder utilizing a Surety Bond, 
the Successful Bidder is required to submit to the City a cashier's or certified check or wire 
transfer of immediately available federal funds to such financial institution requested by the City, 
not later than 2:00 p.m., Central Daylight Time on the next business day following the Sale Date.  
If such funds are not received by such time, the Surety Bond may be drawn on by the City to 
satisfy the Deposit requirement.   
 
 (c) Wire Transfer.  Any wire transfer shall be submitted to a financial institution 
designated by the City, wire transfer instructions may be obtained from the Debt Coordinator at 
the addresses set forth on the last page of this Notice.  Each wire transfer Deposit must reference 
“City of Wichita, Kansas, Good Faith Deposit, General Obligation Renewal Temporary Notes, 
Series 258.  Contemporaneously with the submission of a wire transfer Deposit, such bidder shall 
send an email to the Director of Finance or Debt Coordinator at the email address set forth on the 
last page of this Notice, including the following information:  (i) notification that a wire transfer 
has been made; (ii) the amount of the wire transfer; (iii) the wire transfer federal reference 
number; (vi) the name of the bidder for which the wire transfer is to be credited as a Deposit, (vi) 
if the name of the bidder as shown on PARITY does not match the name shown as the beneficiary 
on the wire instructions, the email will also state that the bidder is identified by the beneficiary’s 
name on the wire instructions; and (iv) return wire transfer instructions in the event such bid is 
unsuccessful. 
 
Deposit Return Details.  Good Faith checks submitted by unsuccessful bidders will be returned 

promptly via United States first class mail; wire transfer Deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders will 
not be accepted or shall be returned in the same manner received not later than the next business day 
following the Sale Date; the City reserves the right to withhold reasonable charges for any fees or 
expenses incurred in returning a wire transfer Deposit. 

 
 Basis of Award.  The award of the Notes will be made on the basis of the lowest net interest cost 
(expressed in dollars), which will be determined by subtracting the amount of the premium bid, if any, 

199



from the total interest cost to the Issuer.  The City will compute the net interest cost based on such bids.  If 
there is any discrepancy between the net interest cost specified and the interest rates specified, the 
specified net interest cost shall govern and the interest rates specified in the bid shall be adjusted 
accordingly.  If two or more proper bids providing for identical amounts for the lowest net interest cost 
are received, the Governing Body will determine which bid, if any, will be accepted, and its determination 
is final. 
 
 The City reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids and to waive any irregularities in a 
submitted bid.  Any disputes arising hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Kansas, and 
any party submitting a bid agrees to be subject to jurisdiction and venue of the federal and state courts 
within Kansas with regard to such dispute.  Any bid received after the Submittal Hour on the Sale Date 
will be rejected or returned to the bidder. 
 
 Rating.  The City’s outstanding general obligation bonds are rated “Aa1” by Moody’s Investors 
Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and “AA+” by Standard & Poor’s, a division of McGraw Hill Financial Inc 
(“S&P”).  The City’s general obligation notes are rated “MIG 1” by Moody’s and “SP-1+” by S&P.  The 
City has applied to both Moody’s and S&P for ratings on the Notes described herein.  Additional 
information regarding such application and ratings are further described in the Preliminary Official 
Statement, hereinafter described.  Any explanations of the significance of such ratings (as well as any 
positive or negative outlooks thereon or potential changes to any rating in the near future) should be 
obtained from Moody’s and S&P. 
 
 Bond Insurance.  The City has not applied for any policy of municipal bond insurance with 
respect to the Notes, and will not pay the premium in connection with any policy of municipal bond 
insurance desired by the Successful Bidder.  In the event a bidder desires to purchase and pay all costs 
associated with the issuance of a policy of municipal bond insurance in connection with the Notes, such 
indication and the name of the desired insurer must be set forth on the bidder's Official Bid Form and the 
bid must be accompanied by a commitment from the selected insurer specifying all shall specify all terms 
and conditions to which the City will be required to agree in connection with the issuance of such 
insurance policy.  The City specifically reserves the right to reject any bid specifying municipal bond 
insurance, even though such bid may result in the lowest net interest cost to the Issuer. 
 
 CUSIP Numbers.  The CUSIP Service Bureau will be requested to assign CUSIP identification 
numbers to the Notes, and such numbers shall be printed on the Notes; however, neither the failure to 
assign any such number to or print any such number on any Note, nor any error with respect thereto, shall 
constitute cause for the failure or refusal by the Successful Bidder to accept delivery of and to make 
payment for the Notes in accordance with the terms of this Notice and of its bid.  All expenses in relation 
to the printing of the CUSIP numbers and the expenses of the CUSIP Service Bureau for the assignment 
thereof shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid for by the City. 

 
 Delivery and Payment.  The City will pay for printing the Notes and will deliver the Notes 
properly prepared, executed and registered without cost on or about AUGUST 15, 2013, at DTC for the 
account of the Successful Bidder.  The Successful Bidder will be furnished with a certified transcript of 
the proceedings in CD-Rom format evidencing the authorization and issuance of the Notes and the usual 
closing documents, including a certificate that there is no litigation pending or threatened at the time of 
delivery of the Notes affecting their validity and a certificate regarding the completeness and accuracy of 
the Official Statement.  Payment for the Notes shall be made in federal reserve funds, immediately 
available for use by the City.  The City will deliver one Note of each maturity registered in the nominee 
name of DTC. 
 

200



 Reoffering Prices.  To provide the City with information necessary for compliance with Section 
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the Successful Bidder will be 
required to complete, execute and deliver to the City prior to the delivery of the Notes, a written 
certification (the “Issue Price Certificate”) containing the following:  (a) the initial offering price and 
interest rate for the Notes; (b) that all of the Notes were offered to the public in a bona fide public offering 
at the initial offering prices on the Sale Date; and (c) on the Sale Date the Successful Bidder reasonably 
expected that at least 10% of the Notes would be sold to the “public” at prices not higher than the initial 
offering prices.  For purposes of the preceding sentence “public” means persons other than bond houses, 
brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers.  
However, such Issue Price Certificate may indicate that the Successful Bidder has purchased the Notes for 
its own account in a capacity other than as an underwriter or wholesaler, and currently has no intent to 
reoffer the Notes for sale the public.  Subsequent to the Submittal Hour, such initial offering prices to 
the public shall be provided to the City not more than 20 minutes after requested by the City. 
 
 At the request of the City, the Successful Bidder will provide information explaining the factual 
basis for the Successful Bidder’s Issue Price Certificate.  This agreement by the Successful Bidder to 
provide such information will continue to apply after the Closing Time if:  (a) the City requests the 
information in connection with an audit or inquiry by the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) or (b) the information is required to be retained by the 
City pursuant to future regulation or similar guidance from the IRS, the SEC or other federal or state 
regulatory authority. 
 
 Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  The Governing Body of the City has 
authorized and directed the preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement dated June 18, 2013, “deemed 
final” by the City except for the omission of certain information as provided in Securities and Exchange 
Commission Rule 15c2-12, copies of which may be obtained by contacting the Department of Finance at 
the address set forth on the last page of this Notice or by visiting www.onlinemuni.com.  Authorization is 
hereby given to redistribute this Notice and the Preliminary Official Statement, but this entire Notice and 
the entire Preliminary Official Statement, and not portions thereof, must be redistributed.  Upon the sale 
of the Notes, the City will prepare the final Official Statement and will furnish the Successful Bidder, 
without cost, within seven business days of the acceptance of the Successful Bidder's proposal, with a 
sufficient number of copies thereof, which may be in electronic format, in order to comply with the 
requirements of Rule 15c2-12(3) and (4) of the Securities and Exchange Commission and Rule G-32 of 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (collectively the “Rules”).  The City's acceptance, including 
electronic acceptance through PARITY®, of the Successful Bidder's proposal for the purchase of the 
Notes in accordance with this Notice shall constitute a contract between the City and the Successful 
Bidder for purposes of the Rules.  The City designates the senior managing underwriter of any syndicate 
of the Successful Bidder as agent for purposes of distributing copies of the final Official Statement to 
each participating underwriter.  Any bidder submitting a bid for the purchase of the Notes agrees thereby 
that if such bid is accepted:  (a) it shall accept such designation, and (b) it shall enter into a contractual 
relationship with all participating underwriters of the Notes for purposes of assuring the receipt by each 
such participating underwriter of the final Official Statement.  Additional copies may be ordered by the 
Successful Bidder at its expense.   
 
 Continuing Disclosure.  The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has promulgated 
amendments to its Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) requiring continuous secondary market disclosure for 
certain issues.  In the Note Resolution, the City has covenanted to enter into an undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") for the benefit of the holders of the Notes to send to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board (the "MSRB") through the Electronic Municipal Market Access facility, or other applicable entity 
as required or permitted under the Rule, certain financial information and operating data annually and to 
provide notice to the MSRB of certain events, pursuant to the requirements of the Rule.  For further 

201

http://www.onlinemuni.com/


information regarding the Undertaking, reference is made to the caption “CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE” in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
 
 Assessed Valuation and Indebtedness.  Information regarding the assessed valuation of the 
taxable tangible property within the City and the amount of general obligation indebtedness of the City as 
of the date of delivery of the Notes is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
 
 Legal Opinion.  The Notes will be sold subject to the approving legal opinion of GILMORE & 
BELL, P.C., WICHITA, KANSAS, Bond Counsel, which opinion will be furnished and paid for by the 
City, will be printed on the Notes, if the Notes are printed, and will be delivered to the Successful Bidder 
when the Notes are delivered.  Said opinion will also include the opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the 
interest on the Notes being excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and exempt 
from income taxation by the State of Kansas.  Reference is made to the Preliminary Official Statement for 
further discussion of federal and Kansas income tax matters relating to the interest on the Notes. 
 
 Additional Information.  Additional information regarding the Notes, the delivery of the Deposit 
and notification regarding the same may be obtained from the Department of Finance, 12th Floor, City 
Hall, 455 North Main, Wichta, Kansas  67202-1679, or by contacting: 
 
  Ms. Shawn Henning    Ms. Catherine Gilley 
  Director of Finance    Debt Coordinator 
  Phone:  (316) 268-4300    Phone:  (316) 268-4143 
  Fax:  (316) 858-7520    Fax:  (316) 858-7520 
  Email:  shenning@wichita.gov   cgilley@wichita.gov. 
 
 

BY ORDER OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, ON 
JUNE 18, 2013. 

 
 

By:  /s/ Carl Brewer  
        Carl Brewer, Mayor 
(Seal) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:   /s/ Karen Sublett, City Clerk  

Karen Sublett, City Clerk 
 
 
 

202

mailto:shenning@wichita.gov
mailto:cgilley@wichita.gov


 

JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS (05-29-13) 
 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C. 
05/29/2013 

 
EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS 

HELD ON JUNE 18, 2013 
 
 The governing body met in regular session at the usual meeting place in the City, at 9:00 a.m., the 
following members being present and participating, to-wit: 
 
 
 
 Absent:   
 
 The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

(Other Proceedings) 
 
 The matter of providing for the offering for sale of General Obligation Renewal Temporary 
Notes, Series 258, came on for consideration and was discussed. 
 
 Councilmember ________________ presented and moved the adoption of a Resolution entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OFFERING FOR SALE OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION RENEWAL TEMPORARY NOTES, SERIES 258, OF THE CITY 
OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 

 
 Councilmember ________________ seconded the motion to adopt the Resolution.  Thereupon, 
the Resolution was read and considered, and, the question being put to a roll call vote, the vote thereon 
was as follows: 
 
 Aye:  _______________________________________________________________________. 
 
 Nay:  _______________________________________________________________________. 
 
 The Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted; the Clerk designating the same Resolution 
No. 13-____. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

(Other Proceedings) 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

203



 

JLN\600809.073\SALEDOCS (05-29-13) 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that 
the official minutes of such proceedings are on file in my office. 
 
 
(SEAL)              
          Clerk 
 
 

204



 Agenda Item No. II-11 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: Application for Street Resurfacing Project for Kellogg, between 111th and 119th 

Streets West (District IV) 
                                          
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the application. 
 
Background:  The Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) provides funding for a street 
resurfacing (KLINK) program for cities which have highway connecting links within their city limits.  
The KLINK program is intended for resurfacing improvements on the connecting links, which are 
maintained by the cities. 
 
KDOT has advised the City of Wichita that KLINK Fiscal Year 2015 funds in the amount of $200,000 
are available.  The program requires recipient cities to provide matching funding. 
 
Analysis:  KLINK funding is available for the resurfacing of eastbound (EB) Kellogg (US-54) and partial 
resurfacing of westbound (WB) Kellogg (US-54), between points east of 111th Street West and east of 
119th Street West.  In order to avoid exponentially higher maintenance costs in the future, it is 
recommended that KDOT funds be leveraged, and preservative actions be taken, as part of the City’s 
Contracted Maintenance Program for 2015. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The estimated project cost is $413,900, with $213,900 paid by the City and 
$200,000 paid by KDOT.  Funding for the City’s share is included in the 2011-2020 Adopted Capital 
Improvement Program as Street Rehabilitation. The funding source is General Obligation bonds. 
   
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the application as to form.  
 
Recommendation/Action:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the application and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachment:  Map and application. 
                      
 

205



206



207



208



209



210



211



Agenda Item No. II-12. 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

 June 18, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council   
 
SUBJECT: Improvements to West Kellogg from 111th to 143rd Streets West (District IV) 
 
INITIATED BY: Department of Public Works & Utilities 
 
AGENDA: Consent 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the agreements. 
 
Background:  On August 28, 2012, the City Council approved a revised budget for design, right-of-way, 
and construction for the expansion of West Kellogg between 111th and 143rd Streets West.  The proposed 
improvements require the relocation of utilities owned by AT&T.  The utilities are located in private 
easements on 151st Street West, north of Kellogg. 
   
Analysis:   Agreements with AT&T have been prepared authorizing the work and establishing the basis 
for reimbursement by the City.  All work associated with the relocation will be completed by AT&T. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The estimated relocation cost for the remote terminal cabinet is $39,437, and 
the estimated cost for the video ready access device cabinet is $163,234.  Payment of the full estimated 
cost for each location is due in advance, and funding is available in the existing approved budget.  The 
agreements provide that any additional cost beyond these estimates, if needed, will be agreed upon by 
both parties and brought back to the City Council for approval. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the agreements as to form. 
 
Recommendation/Action:   It is recommended that the City Council approve the agreements and 
authorize the necessary signatures. 
 
Attachments: Agreements. 

212



  
 
 

CWOTS #:  109K13 

 
 Page   1 of   4 
                   

 
 

 

APPLICATION and LETTER OF AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOM WORK 
 
 
05/20/2013   CWOTS Number:      109K13 

Customer Billing Telephone Number       

 

 

BILL TO: CITY OF WICHITA                               455 N MAIN 7
TH

 FL                          WICHITA, KS 67202 

 

WORK SITE LOCATION:                           1509 WHEAT LN  

DESCRIPTION OF CUSTOM WORK:       PLACE NEW RT CABINET, SHELVES, PLUGS, AND ASSOCIATED 

SPLICING AND TURN  UP. (IF ANY UNFORSEEN SITUATION WOULD ARISE WHICH CONSTITUTES 

SUBSTANTIAL ADDITIONAL MONEY TO COMPLETE THIS PROJECT, WORK WILL BE STOPPED UNTIL 

ADDITIONAL PAYMENT IS MADE.) 

 

  

ESTIMATED LABOR:  $23063.47; ESTIMATED MATERIALS:  $133800.00;  

ESTIMATED OVERHEAD EXPENSE:  $6370.23; 

TARIFF/LICENSE AGREEMENT EXPENSE: $      

COST OF MONEY EXPENSE: $      

 

CHARGE FOR CUSTOM WORK:  ESTIMATED COST: $ 163233.70  
                                                                          (Actual charges may exceed this estimated cost.) 

                                                                     
Applicant requests that Southwestern Bell Telephone Company d/b/a AT&T Kansas, (hereafter “SWBT”) act as its 
agent in performing the above-described custom work on Applicant’s behalf.  Applicant agrees to pay the 
charge(s) for such work.   The work is to be done on an “Actual Cost” basis, all charge(s) will be computed in 
accordance with Southwestern Bell Corporation’s ordinary accounting practices under the Uniform System of 
Accounts for Class A telephone companies and will include allocated costs for labor, engineering, materials, 
transportation, motor vehicles, tool and supply expenses and sundry billings from sub-contractors and suppliers for 
work and materials related to the job.  The Applicant affirms that the cost estimate furnished by the Telephone 
Company has been considered only as an estimate of approximate costs and that the actual costs incurred by the 
Telephone Company in doing the work at the particular time and location might be higher.  Said estimated cost is 
subject to change due to any number of factors including, but not limited to, changing conditions in the field, 
weather delays, or changes in the scope of the work. 
 
CHANGE ORDERS 
Should concealed conditions exist, including conditions that may exist below the surface of the ground, or if 
conditions exist that could not have been anticipated by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company at the time of this 
agreement, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company,  will be entitled to additional funds and/or additional time to 
complete the work.  Southwestern Bell Telephone Company will request such additional funding and/or additional 
time through a request for a change order. 
 
Should Applicant or its agents, servants, or employees order or seek changes in the scope of the work, 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company is entitled to seek from Applicant, its agents, servants, or employees, 
additional funds as necessary to perform the work, and additional time, as necessary to complete the work.  Said 
request for additional funds and/or additional time will be through change order. 
 
All change orders will be in writing. 
 
All change orders will be submitted and accepted by Applicant, its agents, servants or employees, before 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, proceeds to execute the work or, if work has been initiated on the project, 
continues with executing the work except in an emergency endangering life or property.

213



    
  
  

 
     
 

                                                                                                                           CWOTS #:    109K13 
                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            Page   2 of 4                                                                                                                     
 
Applicant, its agents, servants or employees, are deemed to have accepted the terms of any change order by 
signing where indicated on the change order. 
 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company’s request for a change order be deemed or 
used as evidence of delay on the project.   Nor will any change order issued in this project be used to charge 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company with responsibility for any alleged delay on the project. 
 

 
NO DAMAGE FOR DELAY 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company be held liable to Applicant, Applicant’s 
agents, employees or contractors, for any alleged delay on the project that forms the basis for this custom work 
order. 

 
TIME TO COMPLETE 

 
Any representation by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, its agents, servants or employees that the project, 
or any additional work authorized by change order, will be complete by a certain date or certain time period is 
strictly an estimate and not binding on Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, its agents, servants, or employees.  
All estimated completion dates are subject to changing conditions in the field, changes in the scope of the work, 
relocation of existing utilities not within Southwestern Bell Telephone Company’s control, Acts of God, weather 
delays, labor disputes, vendor/contractor disputes, and other conditions or circumstances that Southwestern Bell 
Telephone Company, its agents, servants, or employees, could not reasonably anticipate at the time of the 
estimate.     
 
PAYMENT 
Applicant agrees to make an advance payment of $ 163233.70 prior to commencement of the work. 
Applicable charges for Custom Work will be billed on a special bill separate from the bill that Applicant receives for 
telephone service.   
 
Applicant, its agents, servants, or employees agree to make payment on change orders within thirty (30) days of 
the date of signature on the change order.  Failure to make payment within the designated thirty (30) day time 
period will operate to cancel the change order and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, will cease all work 
activity on the project until payment is made.   
 
When the Parties agree to Interval Billing *, the balance of the Contract Price or Actual Cost (as applicable) will be 
made in monthly payments.  If the Actual Cost made varies from the Estimated Cost, then a correcting adjustment 
will be made in the last payment.  If the parties cannot agree to Interval Billing, Applicant will make an advanced 
payment as indicated above.  

  * Applicable to orders over $25,000 and work will take 6 or more months to complete.  

 
CANCELLATION 
 
If the Applicant cancels the work prior to completion, Applicant must notify Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, in writing of said cancellation.   
 
If Applicant elects to cancel the work prior to completion, Applicant agrees to pay Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company for the costs it has incurred in starting performance under the contract.    If Applicant has made an 
advance payment, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company will deduct its costs and expenses incurred as of the 
date of Applicant’s notice of cancellation from the amount of the advance payment.  Any amount remaining will be 
refunded to Applicant.   

214



 
 

  
  

 
 
 

                                                                                                                              CWOTS#:109K13 
                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                               Page   3 of   4  
 
 
 
ESTIMATED PRICE QUOTE  
The above estimated price is guaranteed for 60 days from 05/20/2013.    If the charges are     not  
not accepted within 60 days the order will be cancelled and a new order will need to be placed.  The second 
estimate may be higher than the estimated price set out above. 

    
 
STOP WORK ORDER 
 
In the event that Applicant issues a stop work order, or places the project “on hold”, at any point during the 
progress of the work, said stop work order or request to “hold” work must be issued in writing and must be 

delivered via certified mail, return receipt requested to Denna Kelley, 500 E. 8th Street, Room 614, Kansas City, 

Mo. 64106.   If Applicant issues a stop work order, or a request to “hold” work, the contract price quoted herein will 
remain valid until sixty (60) days from the date of the stop work or “hold” work order.  At the expiration of the sixty 
(60) days, the contract price quoted herein will expire and a new contract price will be determined and provided, in 
writing, to Applicant.  The new contract price may be higher than the contract price quoted in this custom work 
order.   
 
If, after issuing a stop work, or “hold” work order, Applicant elects to cancel the contract, Applicant must inform 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, in writing of the cancellation.  Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, 
will deduct any expenses incurred in performing the work from Applicant’s advance payment and refund any 
remaining funds to Applicant. 
 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, be responsible to Applicant for any 
alleged damages or additional expenses incurred by Applicant as a result of a stop work order or an order 
to “hold” work on the project. 
 
 
CHOICE OF LAW AND ARBITRATION  

 
Kansas law governs the application of this agreement and all terms contained therein. 
 

 
INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

 

Applicant, its agents, servants, and employees hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Company,  and its employees, agents and contractors, from and against any 

and all claims, costs, expenses, judgments or actions for damage to property or injury or death to 

persons, and/or arising from or relating to the work that is the subject of this agreement, to the extent any 

such claims are caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Applicant, its agents, servants, or 

employees. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

215



CWOTS # : 109K13 
Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 
 
 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
The parties agree that the terms set forth herein constitute the entire agreement and there are no other 
agreements regarding the project that is the subject of this agreement between the parties. 
 
MODIFICATION & NOTICE 
Any modification to this agreement must be made in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
Any party to this agreement may provide the other party with notice of any fact or condition by providing such 
information in writing and serving said writing via certified mail, return receipt requested. 
 
 
 

CWOTS Record #:  109K13 

 

 

 

 

ACCEPTED FOR CUSTOMER:  ACCEPTED FOR SOUTHWESTERN BELL 

TELEPHONE COMPANY: 

 

 

 
            Authorized Signature:                                                             Authorized Signature:         

 
 
Printed Name:                                                                         Printed Name:                  Denna Kelley 
 
 

 Title:                                                            Title:                Manager-Custom Work Orders 
 
                                                                                         
Company:                                                                   Company:                       AT&T 
 
 
Date:                                                                                          Date:          
 

 
 

 

216



 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

CWOTS#:  109K13 
  
 

 

05/20/2013  
 
          

Dear Ms Leslie Hicks 
 

This letter is in regards to your request for AT&T to perform custom work for you.  Enclosed 
please find an Application and Letter of Agreement for Custom Work.  This application 
describes the custom work you have requested, along with the associated charges for us to 

perform the work.  We require an advance payment for the full amount, along with the 

application signed with an original ink signature. 
 

Before we can proceed on your behalf with the work request, both the application with the 

original ink signature and the advance payment must be received by our office.  Our 
mailing address for these documents is listed below: 
 

                AT&T 

                                    Attn: Litha Randolph 

    500 E. 8
th

 Street  Room 614 

 Kansas City, MO  64106 

 

 

 Please send check or money order made payable to AT&T. 
 
If you have questions, or if you decide not to proceed with this work, please call our office at, 

1-866-457-0777 or 816-275-4826. Please refer to the record number (109K13) to assist us in 
locating your file.     

 
 

  
Sincerely, 
 
Denna Kelley 
Manager-Custom Work Orders 
AT&T 
 

217



  
 
 

CWOTS #:  110K13 

 
 Page   1 of   4 
                   

 
 

 

APPLICATION and LETTER OF AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOM WORK 
 
 
05/14/2013   CWOTS Number:      110K13 

Customer Billing Telephone Number       

 

 

BILL TO: CITY OF WICHITA              455 N MAIN 7TH FL ENGINEERING              WICHITA, KS  67202     

 

WORK SITE LOCATION:                           1509 S. FIVEWOOD CT  

DESCRIPTION OF CUSTOM WORK:       PLACE NEW VRAD CABINET, SHELVES, PLUGS, AND ASSOCIATED 

SPLICING, AND TURN UP (IF ANY UNFORSEEN SITUATION WOULD ARISE WHICH CONSTITUTES 

SUBSTANTIAL ADDITIONAL MONEY TO COMPLETE THIS PROJECT, WORK WILL BE STOPPED UNTIL 

ADDITIONAL PAYMENT IS MADE.) 

 

  

ESTIMATED LABOR:  $7618.18; ESTIMATED MATERIALS:  $28490.00;  

ESTIMATED OVERHEAD EXPENSE:  $3329.21; 

TARIFF/LICENSE AGREEMENT EXPENSE: $      

COST OF MONEY EXPENSE: $      

 

CHARGE FOR CUSTOM WORK:  ESTIMATED COST: $ 39437.39  
                                                                          (Actual charges may exceed this estimated cost.) 

                                                                     
Applicant requests that Southwestern Bell Telephone Company d/b/a AT&T Kansas, (hereafter “SWBT”) act as its 
agent in performing the above-described custom work on Applicant’s behalf.  Applicant agrees to pay the 
charge(s) for such work.   The work is to be done on an “Actual Cost” basis, all charge(s) will be computed in 
accordance with Southwestern Bell Corporation’s ordinary accounting practices under the Uniform System of 
Accounts for Class A telephone companies and will include allocated costs for labor, engineering, materials, 
transportation, motor vehicles, tool and supply expenses and sundry billings from sub-contractors and suppliers for 
work and materials related to the job.  The Applicant affirms that the cost estimate furnished by the Telephone 
Company has been considered only as an estimate of approximate costs and that the actual costs incurred by the 
Telephone Company in doing the work at the particular time and location might be higher.  Said estimated cost is 
subject to change due to any number of factors including, but not limited to, changing conditions in the field, 
weather delays, or changes in the scope of the work. 
 
CHANGE ORDERS 
Should concealed conditions exist, including conditions that may exist below the surface of the ground, or if 
conditions exist that could not have been anticipated by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company at the time of this 
agreement, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company,  will be entitled to additional funds and/or additional time to 
complete the work.  Southwestern Bell Telephone Company will request such additional funding and/or additional 
time through a request for a change order. 
 
Should Applicant or its agents, servants, or employees order or seek changes in the scope of the work, 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company is entitled to seek from Applicant, its agents, servants, or employees, 
additional funds as necessary to perform the work, and additional time, as necessary to complete the work.  Said 
request for additional funds and/or additional time will be through change order. 
 
All change orders will be in writing. 
 
All change orders will be submitted and accepted by Applicant, its agents, servants or employees, before 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, proceeds to execute the work or, if work has been initiated on the project, 
continues with executing the work except in an emergency endangering life or property.

218



    
  
  

 
     
 

                                                                                                                           CWOTS #:    110K13 
                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                            Page   2 of 4                                                                                                                     
 
Applicant, its agents, servants or employees, are deemed to have accepted the terms of any change order by 
signing where indicated on the change order. 
 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company’s request for a change order be deemed or 
used as evidence of delay on the project.   Nor will any change order issued in this project be used to charge 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company with responsibility for any alleged delay on the project. 
 

 
NO DAMAGE FOR DELAY 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company be held liable to Applicant, Applicant’s 
agents, employees or contractors, for any alleged delay on the project that forms the basis for this custom work 
order. 

 
TIME TO COMPLETE 

 
Any representation by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, its agents, servants or employees that the project, 
or any additional work authorized by change order, will be complete by a certain date or certain time period is 
strictly an estimate and not binding on Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, its agents, servants, or employees.  
All estimated completion dates are subject to changing conditions in the field, changes in the scope of the work, 
relocation of existing utilities not within Southwestern Bell Telephone Company’s control, Acts of God, weather 
delays, labor disputes, vendor/contractor disputes, and other conditions or circumstances that Southwestern Bell 
Telephone Company, its agents, servants, or employees, could not reasonably anticipate at the time of the 
estimate.     
 
PAYMENT 
Applicant agrees to make an advance payment of $ 39437.39 prior to commencement of the work. 
Applicable charges for Custom Work will be billed on a special bill separate from the bill that Applicant receives for 
telephone service.   
 
Applicant, its agents, servants, or employees agree to make payment on change orders within thirty (30) days of 
the date of signature on the change order.  Failure to make payment within the designated thirty (30) day time 
period will operate to cancel the change order and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, will cease all work 
activity on the project until payment is made.   
 
When the Parties agree to Interval Billing *, the balance of the Contract Price or Actual Cost (as applicable) will be 
made in monthly payments.  If the Actual Cost made varies from the Estimated Cost, then a correcting adjustment 
will be made in the last payment.  If the parties cannot agree to Interval Billing, Applicant will make an advanced 
payment as indicated above.  

  * Applicable to orders over $25,000 and work will take 6 or more months to complete.  

 
CANCELLATION 
 
If the Applicant cancels the work prior to completion, Applicant must notify Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, in writing of said cancellation.   
 
If Applicant elects to cancel the work prior to completion, Applicant agrees to pay Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company for the costs it has incurred in starting performance under the contract.    If Applicant has made an 
advance payment, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company will deduct its costs and expenses incurred as of the 
date of Applicant’s notice of cancellation from the amount of the advance payment.  Any amount remaining will be 
refunded to Applicant.   

219



 
 

  
  

 
 
 

                                                                                                                              CWOTS#:110K13 
                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                               Page   3 of   4  
 
 
 
ESTIMATED PRICE QUOTE  
The above estimated price is guaranteed for 60 days from 05/14/2013.    If the charges are     not  
not accepted within 60 days the order will be cancelled and a new order will need to be placed.  The second 
estimate may be higher than the estimated price set out above. 

    
 
STOP WORK ORDER 
 
In the event that Applicant issues a stop work order, or places the project “on hold”, at any point during the 
progress of the work, said stop work order or request to “hold” work must be issued in writing and must be 

delivered via certified mail, return receipt requested to Denna Kelley, 500 E. 8th Street, Room 614, Kansas City, 

Mo. 64106.   If Applicant issues a stop work order, or a request to “hold” work, the contract price quoted herein will 
remain valid until sixty (60) days from the date of the stop work or “hold” work order.  At the expiration of the sixty 
(60) days, the contract price quoted herein will expire and a new contract price will be determined and provided, in 
writing, to Applicant.  The new contract price may be higher than the contract price quoted in this custom work 
order.   
 
If, after issuing a stop work, or “hold” work order, Applicant elects to cancel the contract, Applicant must inform 
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, in writing of the cancellation.  Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, 
will deduct any expenses incurred in performing the work from Applicant’s advance payment and refund any 
remaining funds to Applicant. 
 
Under no circumstances will Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, be responsible to Applicant for any 
alleged damages or additional expenses incurred by Applicant as a result of a stop work order or an order 
to “hold” work on the project. 
 
 
CHOICE OF LAW AND ARBITRATION  
 
Kansas law governs the application of this agreement and all terms contained therein. 
 

 
INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

 

Applicant, its agents, servants, and employees hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Company,  and its employees, agents and contractors, from and against any 

and all claims, costs, expenses, judgments or actions for damage to property or injury or death to 

persons, and/or arising from or relating to the work that is the subject of this agreement, to the extent any 

such claims are caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Applicant, its agents, servants, or 

employees. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

220



CWOTS # : 110K13 
Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 
 
 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
The parties agree that the terms set forth herein constitute the entire agreement and there are no other 
agreements regarding the project that is the subject of this agreement between the parties. 
 
MODIFICATION & NOTICE 
Any modification to this agreement must be made in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
Any party to this agreement may provide the other party with notice of any fact or condition by providing such 
information in writing and serving said writing via certified mail, return receipt requested. 
 
 
 

CWOTS Record #:  110K13 

 

 

 

 

ACCEPTED FOR CUSTOMER:  ACCEPTED FOR SOUTHWESTERN BELL 

TELEPHONE COMPANY: 

 

 

 
            Authorized Signature:                                                             Authorized Signature:         

 
 
Printed Name:                                                                         Printed Name:                  Denna Kelley 
 
 

 Title:                                                            Title:                Manager-Custom Work Orders 
 
                                                                                         
Company:                                                                   Company:                       AT&T 
 
 
Date:                                                                                          Date:          
 

 
 

 

221



 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

CWOTS#:  110K13 
  
 

 

05/14/2013  
 
          

Dear Ms. Leslie HIcks 
 

This letter is in regards to your request for AT&T to perform custom work for you.  Enclosed 
please find an Application and Letter of Agreement for Custom Work.  This application 
describes the custom work you have requested, along with the associated charges for us to 

perform the work.  We require an advance payment for the full amount, along with the 

application signed with an original ink signature. 
 

Before we can proceed on your behalf with the work request, both the application with the 

original ink signature and the advance payment must be received by our office.  Our 
mailing address for these documents is listed below: 
 

                AT&T 

                                    Attn: Litha Randolph 

    500 E. 8
th

 Street  Room 614 

 Kansas City, MO  64106 

 

 

 Please send check or money order made payable to AT&T. 
 
If you have questions, or if you decide not to proceed with this work, please call our office at, 

1-866-457-0777 or 816-275-4826. Please refer to the record number (110K13) to assist us in 
locating your file.     

 
 

  
Sincerely, 
 
Denna Kelley 
Manager-Custom Work Orders 
AT&T 
 

222



Agenda Item No.  II-13 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  Creation of Chapter 18.14 of the Code of the City of Wichita, relating to parking lot 

striping standards and enforcement (All Districts) 
 
INITIATED BY: Law 
 
AGENDA:  Consent 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt the ordinance. 
 
Background:  In November, 2005, the City of Wichita entered into a settlement agreement to resolve alleged 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) violations at specific City facilities.  In that settlement agreement, the City 
voluntarily embarked upon a large-scale review and modification of all City facilities and programs to ensure ADA 
compliance.  One of the provisions in the settlement agreement required the City to promote private adherence to 
state laws and City ordinances requiring accessible parking in parking lots open to the public. 
 
To develop the parking lot striping ordinance, input was sought from the major stakeholders, including the Wichita 
/ Sedgwick County Access Advisory Board (WSCAAB), the Wichita Chamber of Commerce, the Wichita Area 
Builders Association, and entities performing striping.  With the help of the Wichita Chamber of Commerce, the 
proposed ordinance was redrafted to focus on the licensing aspect of parking lot striping. 
 
Analysis:  The proposed ordinance establishes a licensing and enforcement system applicable to persons and 
businesses catering to the public when they modify the construction or layout of parking spaces they make available 
to the public.  The design standards already found in existing ordinances would apply only to new construction or 
to changes made to existing facilities; repairing of potholes and similar maintenance would not trigger enforcement 
action.  This ordinance does not increase the requirements or scope of existing ordinances or Federal law, other 
than the existing requirement requiring the “universal” accessible parking stall.   
 
The proposed ordinance does not set up permit or inspection processes; it would be complaint-driven enforcement 
through the ADA Coordinator.  If the ordinance design standards are violated, the persons responsible could choose 
to remedy the non-compliance and have a confirmation inspection or to be prosecuted in municipal court.  
 
The proposed ordinance would license the performance of parking lot striping for those engaged in that business, 
require the successful completion of an examination on the proper ADA standards for parking configuration, and 
require the posting of a bond.  Law Department staff has prepared an illustrated, self-study manual for remedial 
learning as needed and multiple forms of the test to be administered.  Tests would be administered by the City 
Engineer’s Office, which already hosts other testing.  
 
On December 4, 2012, the City Council adopted Ordinance 49-396, making such changes in the Building Code.  
On December 11, 2012, the City Council adopted Ordinance 49-404, which inadvertently deleted the enacted but 
un-codified Ordinance 49-396.  No substantive changes have been made to the original ordinance approved by the 
City Council. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The financial effect of this ordinance would be negligible.  The intended purpose is to 
obtain compliance and appropriate construction.  Remediation and education would be favored over prosecution.  
This enforcement scheme is preferable to the alternative of licensing and civil enforcement by the Board of Code 
Standards. 
 
 

223



Legal Considerations:  The Law Department and the City’s ADA Coordinator have proposed this code revision 
and the City Engineer’s office has reviewed and approved the same.  The proposed new chapter would work in 
conjunction with existing enforcement programs.  The proposal has the support of the Wichita-Sedgwick County 
Access Advisory Board.  It complies with the requirements of the 2005 Settlement Agreement. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:   It is recommended that the City Council approve creation of new Chapter 18.14 of 
the City Code and place the ordinance on first reading.    
 
Attachment: Ordinance. 
 

224



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-524 
 

AN ORDINANCE CREATING CHAPTER 18.14 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, PERTAINING TO PARKING LOT STRIPING 
STANDARDS AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, 
KANSAS: 

 
SECTION 1.  Section 18.14.010 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.010. Parking lot striping defined. 

Parking lot striping, within the meaning of this Chapter, is the use of any material on the 

lot surface to install, alter, repair, or modify the layout and arrangement of parking stalls within a 

parking lot.  Parking lot striping also includes any work done if such work alters signage or other 

aspect of existing accessible parking to be in violation of statute, ordinance, or code requirement.  

The regulations of this Chapter apply to any parking lot, whether on public or private property, if 

the parking lot is available for use by, or rent to, the general public. 

 

SECTION 2.  Section 18.14.020 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.020. Responsibilities.  

(a) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted to require modification of any existing parking lot 

beyond parking lot striping as defined in this Chapter. 

(b) Because no building permit is required, nothing in this Section shall be interpreted to require 

improvements to the accessible path of travel or the parking surface. 

(c) For any new construction, reconstruction, resurfacing, resealing, mill-and-overlay, or 

restriping of any existing parking lot, accessible parking spaces shall be 132 inches wide 

minimum and shall have an adjacent access aisle 60 inches wide minimum; provided, 

however, that where such striping is not readily achievable as defined in 28 CFR § 36.104, 

the ADA Coordinator may grant a waiver in writing to allow the striping to provide for an 

accessible parking space 96 inches wide minimum with an adjacent access aisle 96 inches 

wide minimum or other equivalent facilitation. 

225



2 

(d) Accessible parking spaces that complied with the 1991 ADAAG Standards and Sec. 

18.14.020 effective July 1, 2008, are not required to be restriped in order to comply with Sec. 

18.14.020(a), unless parking lot striping is performed on the lot. 

(e) All accessible parking signage shall consist of, at a minimum, signage compliant with the 

Federal “Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices,” such as the R7-8 “Reserved Parking” 

sign.  Such sign shall be at least 12 inches wide and 18 inches tall.  Such sign shall contain 

the international symbol of accessibility in blue on white and shall contain wording as to 

designate the stall as reserved for accessible parking. 

(f) Parking lot striping shall be consistent with the Federal Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 

Devices, except that striping of parking stalls may be either white or yellow, whichever 

provides better contrast.  The international symbol of accessibility may, when striped on the 

parking lot stall, be either white or yellow.  

(g) Accessible parking spaces shall be located on the shortest possible accessible route of travel 

from adjacent parking to an accessible building entrance.  In parking facilities that do not 

serve a particular building, accessible parking spaces shall be located on the shortest 

accessible route to an accessible pedestrian entrance to the parking facility.  Where buildings 

have multiple accessible entrances with adjacent parking, accessible parking spaces shall be 

dispersed and located near all accessible entrances.  In no case shall the provisions of Section 

208 of the Department of Justice’s current ADA Standards for Accessible Design, 28 CFR 

35.151, be reduced or eliminated. 

(h) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted to permit striping of accessible parking spaces 

less stringent than that provided for in current ADA Standards for Accessible Design and 28 

CFR Parts 35 and 36 or to reduce any obligation of the owner, renter, general contractor, 

subcontractor, or any other agent under any other applicable law, rule, or ordinance. 

 

SECTION 3.  Section 18.14.030 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.030. Striping contractor’s license—when required. 

Any person or entity, whether as principal, agent, or employee, engaged in the business 

of striping a parking lot in the City of Wichita shall be required to obtain a striping contractor’s 

226



3 

license from the City Engineer’s Office.  When striping is performed by or under the direct 

supervision of a property owner or renter, or such owner’s or renter’s agent, such individual shall 

be deemed to be a licensed striping contractor for the purposes of striping such property.   

This Section shall apply after September 1, 2013. 

 

SECTION 4.  Section 18.14.040 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.040. Qualifications of applicant to be shown—bond required. 

(a) Before any striping contractor’s license is issued, the applicant therefore shall have filed 

with the City Engineer’s Office a surety bond in the amount of five thousand dollars 

which shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney.  The condition of such bond 

shall be that the principal therein shall comply with all ordinances of the City relating to 

and regulating the striping of parking lots, and hold and save the City harmless from any 

and all damage to persons or property resulting from or growing out of any action or 

inaction by the principal therein. 

(b) Prior to application, the person applying for the license shall pass a comprehensive exam 

covering ADA standards for accessible parking developed by the City Engineer’s Office 

and the ADA Coordinator. 

(c) No striping contractor’s license or renewal thereof shall be granted to: 

1. Any person who is not a citizen of the United States or in possession of a valid 

United States Permanent Residence Card, or an entity, if it does not have such 

a qualified person as a member or controlling shareholder;  

2. Any person who has his license revoked for cause under the provisions of the 

City’s Building Code or Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code; 

3. Any person who is not at least eighteen years of age; 

4. Any person, who at the time of application for renewal of any license issued 

hereunder, would not be eligible for such license upon a first application; 

5. Any person or entity who is unable to provide documentation that the 

applicant has satisfactorily completed the licensing exam for ADA Standards 

for accessible parking; 

227



4 

6. Any person who has failed to comply with a remediation agreement under 

Section 18.14.090. 

(d) No bond shall be required if the striping is performed by or under the direct supervision 

of the property owner or renter or such property’s owner’s or renter’s agent. 

SECTION 5.  Section 18.14.050 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.050. Application; fee. 

(a) All persons shall make application for a striping contractor’s license with the City 

Engineer’s Office.  The application for such license will be made on forms provided by 

the City Engineer’s Office and shall be in writing and contain, at a minimum, the 

following information: 

1. The full name and place of residence of the applicant.  If the applicant is a sole 

proprietor, partnership, or limited liability company, the application shall give the 

full name, including all previous names and aliases, and the places of residence of 

the applicant, including each partner or member.  If the applicant is a corporation, 

the applicant shall give the name and addresses of each stockholder possessing 

twenty percent or more of the stock of the corporation; 

2. The name and address under which the applicant intends to conduct his/her 

business; 

3. Proof the applicant has filed a bond with the City Engineer’s Office as required in 

Section 18.14.040(a); 

4. A copy of the applicant’s workers compensation insurance policy or proof of 

waiver with statutorily required coverage; 

5. Documentation that the applicant, all employees of the applicant or other persons 

who intend to participate in parking lot striping for the applicant’s service have 

satisfactorily met all the requirements of Section 18.14.040. 

(b) A striping contractor’s license shall be issued for one year.  The fee shall be one hundred 

dollars, paid at the time of application.  No fee shall be required if the striping is 

performed by or under the direct supervision of the property owner or renter. 

228



5 

(c) The City Engineer’s Office shall develop any additional rules and regulations necessary 

for the issuance or annual renewal of striping contractors’ licenses. 

 
SECTION 6.  Section 18.14.060 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.060. Suspension and subsequent revocation of license—Notice of hearing. 

(a) Upon five business days’ written notice served by first-class mail or personal delivery to 

the person holding a striping contractor’s license, or to the striping contractor’s agent at 

the site of the striping, the City Engineer or the City Engineer’s designee shall have the 

authority to suspend such license for a period not to exceed ninety days, for any 

violation of the provisions of this Chapter. 

(b) The City Engineer may suspend a license on the following conditions: 

1. A willful, deliberate, or continual disregard and violation of any provision of the 

Wichita City Code, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Zoning Code, or failure to 

comply with any lawful order of the ADA Coordinator or the City Engineer; 

2. Misrepresentations of a material fact submitted to the City of Wichita during the 

application process in obtaining a license; 

3. Failure to pay the annual license fee; 

4. Failure to maintain the eligibility requirements for a license; 

5. Failure to maintain a current valid mailing address with the City Engineer’s 

Office. 

(c) Unless remedied within thirty days, a suspended license shall be revoked.  The City 

Engineer shall give separate notice of such revocation.  No new license shall be issued to 

such licensee, or to any person acting for or on his or her behalf, for a period of at least 

three years after revocation. 

(d) The licensee may appeal such an order of suspension or revocation in writing to the City 

Council within thirty days from the date of such order.  An appeal taken from an order 

of suspension or revocation shall not suspend the order of revocation or suspension 

during the pendency of such appeal.  Any appeal from a decision of the City Council 

shall be heard pursuant to K.S.A. 60-2101(d). 

229



6 

(e) No striping work shall be performed by any licensed striping contractor who has 

received notice of suspension or revocation. 

 

SECTION 7.  Section 18.14.070 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read as 

follows: 

18.14.070. Requirements to stripe; striping without a license. 

(a) The property owner, renter, general contractor, subcontractor, and any other agent 

striping a parking lot or causing such striping to be performed shall require any parking 

lot striping work to be performed by a striping contractor licensed under this Chapter. 

(b) When striping begins, the striping contractor shall post a conspicuous notice at the 

location to be striped, to remain conspicuous for no less than seven days after striping is 

completed.  The notice shall be in a form prescribed by the ADA Coordinator and shall 

contain, at a minimum, the striping contractor’s name and license number or, if the 

striping contractor is the property owner or renter, the notice shall contain that entity’s 

contact information.  Alternatively, the striping contractor may submit a list of lots 

striped to the City’s ADA Coordinator within seven days containing such information 

required in the above notice. 

(c) It is unlawful for any person to perform parking lot striping in the City without being a 

licensed striping contractor or to fail to place a conspicuous notice under 18.14.070(b). 

 

SECTION 8.  Section 18.14.080 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby created to 

read as follows: 

18.14.080. Enforcement.  

Any person may file a complaint alleging new parking lot striping does not conform to 

either the provisions of Section 18.14.020 or the current ADA Standards for Accessible Design 

with the City’s ADA Coordinator; such complaint need not be in writing.  The City’s ADA 

Coordinator shall then investigate, and if probable cause exists to support the complaint, issue a 

citation and notice to appear pursuant to Section 18.14.100 or enter into a remediation agreement 

pursuant to Section 18.14.090. 

 

230



7 

SECTION 9.  Section 18.14.090 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby created to 

read as follows: 

18.14.090. Remediation.  

(a) The City’s ADA Coordinator may enter into a remediation agreement with the person or 

entity responsible for performing or causing to be performed non-compliant striping.  

Such agreement will require the curing of any parking lot striping defects and make 

arrangements for an inspection to assure compliance, all at such responsible party’s 

expense.  Such agreement may further require the responsible party to complete an 

educational program administered by the ADA Coordinator or the Coordinator’s agent. 

(b) It is unlawful to fail to follow such remediation agreement. 

(c) Prosecution for failure to follow a remediation agreement shall be prosecuted without 

regard to any remediation action previously taken. 

 

SECTION 10.  Section 18.14.100 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, is hereby created 

to read as follows: 

18.14.100. Service of notice to appear. 

The City’s ADA Coordinator shall, at all times, be empowered to enforce the provisions 

of this Chapter and other accessible parking ordinances.  Such authority shall include the 

enforcement authority to issue citations for violations of this Chapter and for violations of 

Section 11.52.020(25).  Citations and notices to appear issued under this Section shall: 

(a) Particularize the violation alleged to exist or to have been committed or state a 

remediation agreement has been breached; 

(b) Be addressed to and served upon the striping contractor or, when striping has not been 

performed by a striping contractor, the property owner, or renter.  A striping contractor 

may be served at the address provided on the most recent contractor license application 

on file with the City of Wichita.  The property owner may be served at the property 

owner’s mailing address on record with Sedgwick County.  A renter may be served at the 

address serviced by the lot striped. 

 

  

231



8 

SECTION 11.  Section 18.14.110 of the Code of the City of Wichita, is hereby created to read 

as follows: 

18.14.110. Penalty. 

Any person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall, upon conviction, be 

punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars or by imprisonment for not more than 

thirty days or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

 

PASSED by the governing body of the City of Wichita, Kansas this 25th day of June, 2013. 

 

            
       ________________________________ 

      Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 
Karen Sublett, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf 
Director of Law 
 
 

 

 

232



Second Reading Ordinances for June 18, 2013 (first read on June 11, 2013) 

 

A. Camping on Public Property Prohibited (5.20.010) and Defecating in Public Prohibited 
(5.68.165) Ordinances. 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-515  

An ordinance creating new Chapter 5.20 of the code of the City of Wichita, Kansas, pertaining to 
the prohibition of camping on public property without a permit, and the penalties therefor. 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-516  

An ordinance creating the City of Wichita, Kansas, creating Section 5.68.165 of the code of the 
City of Wichita, Kansas, pertaining to  the prohibition against defecating upon public property or 
upon private property in view of others.   

 

B. ZON2013-08 and CUP2013-09 - City zone change from GO General Office (“GO”) to LC 
Limited Commercial (“LC”) and amendment of DP-260 to create Parcels 9a and 9b, 
generally located west of Webb Road and south of 21st Street North.  (District II) 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-517 

An ordinance changing the zoning classifications or districts of certain lands located in the City 
of Wichita, Kansas, under the authority granted by the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning 
Code, Section V-C, as adopted by section 28.04.010, as amended. 

 

 

C. PUD2013-00001 – Create PUD #40, the Sunset Planned Unit Development, on property 
zoned LC Limited Commercial (“LC”) and B Multi-family (“B”), generally located south of 
Harry and east of Lulu, 1407 East Harry.  (District I) 

ORDINANCE NO. 49-518 

An ordinance changing the zoning classifications or districts of certain lands located in the City 
of Wichita, Kansas, under the authority granted by the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning 
Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 28.04.010, as amended. 

 

 

 

233



D. SUB2013-00012 -- Plat of Portofino Addition located on the north side of Central, on the 
west side of 127th Street East. (District II) 

                  ORDINANCE NO. 49-519 

An ordinance changing the zoning classifications or districts of certain lands located in the City 
of Wichita, Kansas, under the authority granted by the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning 
Code, Section V-C, as adopted by Section 28.04.010, as amended. 

234



         Agenda Report No.  II-15 

 
City of Wichita 

City Council Meeting 
June 18, 2013 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: DED2013-00011 Dedication of Utility Easement, DED2013-00012 Dedication of 

Street Right-of-way and DED2013-00013 Dedication of Drainage Easement located 
north of 21st Street North, west of Seneca (extended)  (District VI) 

 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA ACTION:  Planning (Consent) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Accept the Dedications. 
 

 
 

Background:  The Dedications are associated with Lot Split Case No. LSP2013-00008 (Guthrie’s Addition) 
and were requested by the City’s Public Works and Utilities Department.  
 
Analysis:  The Dedication DED2013-00011 is for sewer improvements.  The Dedication DED2013-00012 is 
for street right-of-way along Garland Avenue.  The Dedication DED2013-00013 is for drainage purposes.   
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the Dedications.  
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the Dedications as to form and the 
Dedications will be recorded with the Register of Deeds. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council accept the Dedications.  
 
Attachments:   Dedication of Utility Easement.  
   Dedication of Street Right-of-way.  
   Dedication of Drainage Easement.  

235



236

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



237

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



238

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY

kwilson
Typewritten Text



         Agenda Report No.  II-16 

 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 
 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: DED2013-00015 Dedication of Utility Easement located south of 13th Street, west of 

Maize Road.  (District V) 
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA ACTION:  Planning (Consent) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Accept the Dedication. 
 

 
 
Background:  The Dedication is associated with Lot Split Case No. LSP2013-09 (Huntington Park 
Addition).  
 
Analysis:  The Dedication DED2013-00015 is for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and repairing 
utilities. 
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the Dedication.  
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has approved the Dedication as to form and the document 
will be recorded with the Register of Deeds. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council accept the Dedication.  
 
Attachment:  Utility Easement. 

  

239



240

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



241



         Agenda Report No.  II-17 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: SUB2012-00042 -- Plat of Presbyterian Manor Addition located on the northwest 

corner of 13th Street North and Zoo Boulevard (District VI) 
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Consent) 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approve the plat.   
 
MAPC Recommendation:  Approve the plat.  (11-0)   
 

 
 
Background:  The site, consisting of one lot on 15.41 acres, is located within Wichita.  A zone change 
(ZON2012-00027) has been approved from SF-5 Single-family Residential to B Multi-family Residential.  
The City of Wichita has an ownership interest in the property.  
 
Analysis:  The applicant has submitted 100 percent Petitions and a Certificate of Petitions for relocation 
of water and sewer lines.   The applicant has submitted a Drive Approach Closure Certificate regarding 
the driveways required to be closed by access controls, which are being dedicated by the plat.  The site is 
within the noise impact area of Wichita Mid-Continent Airport; therefore the applicant has submitted an 
Avigational Easement and Restrictive Covenant to assure that adequate construction methods will be used 
to minimize the effects of noise pollution.    
 
The plat has been reviewed and approved by the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission subject to 
conditions.    
 
Publication of the Ordinance should be withheld until the plat is recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the plat. 

242



 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Certificate of Petitions, 
Driveway Closure Certificate, Avigational Easement, Restrictive Covenant and Resolution as to form and 
the documents will be recorded with the Register of Deeds.  
 
The Law Department has reviewed and approved the Ordinance as to form. 
 
Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the documents and plat, 
authorize the necessary signatures for approval and ownership of the plat and place the Ordinance on first 
reading.  
 
Attachments: Drive Approach Closure Certificate. 
 Avigational Easement. 
 Restrictive Covenant. 
 Ordinance. 

243



244

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



245



246

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



247



248

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



249



250

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



251



 (OCA150004)   
 

Published in The Wichita Eagle on June 28, 2013 
 

                  ORDINANCE NO. 49-525 
 
AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS OR DISTRICTS OF CERTAIN 
LANDS LOCATED IN THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY GRANTED 
BY THE WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY UNIFIED ZONING CODE, SECTION V-C, AS 
ADOPTED BY SECTION 28.04.010, AS AMENDED. 
 

             BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY 
          OF THE CITY OF WICHITA, KANSAS. 

 
 SECTION 1.  That having received a recommendation from the Planning Commission, and 
proper notice having been given and hearing held as provided by law and under authority and subject to 
the provisions of The Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code, Section V-C, as adopted by 
Section 28.04.010, as amended, the zoning classification or districts of the lands legally described hereby 
are changed as follows:  

                     Case No. ZON2012-00027 
 

Zone change request from SF-5 Single-family Residential to B Multi-Family Residential on property described 
as:  
 

Presbyterian Manor Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 
 

Generally located on the northwest corner of 13th Street North and Zoo Boulevard.  
 
 SECTION 2.  That upon the taking effect of this Ordinance, the above zoning changes shall be 
entered and shown on the "Official Zoning Map" previously adopted by reference, and said official zoning 
map is hereby reincorporated as a part of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code as amended. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its adoption 
and publication in the official City paper.   
 
 ADOPTED this 25th day of June, 2013. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
           
 
 
______________________                                                   __________________________ 
 Karen Sublett, City Clerk                                       Carl Brewer, Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Gary E. Rebenstorf, Director of Law 

252



         Agenda Item No.  II-18 
 

City of Wichita 
City Council Meeting 

June 18, 2013 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council  
 
SUBJECT: SUB2013-00009 -- Plat of Maki Addition located on the southeast corner of 53rd 

Street North and 143rd Street East  
 
INITIATED BY: Metropolitan Area Planning Department 
 
AGENDA:  Planning (Consent) 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approve the plat.   
 
MAPC Recommendation:  Approve the plat.  (9-0)   
 

 
 
Background:  The site, consisting of two lots on 10 acres, is located in the County within three miles of 
Wichita’s boundary and is zoned RR Rural Residential. 
 
Analysis:  The site has been approved by the Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department 
for the use of on-site sanitary sewer facilities.  As requested by the City of Wichita Public Works and 
Utilities Department, the applicant has provided a No Protest Agreement for future sewer service.  

 
The plat has been reviewed and approved by the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission subject to 
conditions.    
 
Financial Considerations:  There are no financial considerations associated with the plat. 
 
Legal Considerations:  The Law Department has reviewed and approved the No Protest Agreement as to 
form and the document will be recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

253



Recommendations/Actions:  It is recommended that the City Council approve the document and plat, 
and authorize the necessary signatures.   
 
Attachments: No Protest Agreement. 

254



255

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



256



257

kwilson
Typewritten Text

kwilson
Typewritten Text
COPY



258


	Agenda
	III-1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Health Care Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds, Larksfield Place. (District II)
(Deferred June 11, 2013)
	Agenda Report No III-1
	Supporting Documents
	Ordinance No. 49-514

	IV-1. Public Hearing and Issuance of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Bombardier Learjet. (Districts IV and V)
	Agenda Report No. IV-1
	Ordinance No. 49-520

	IV-2. Designation of WSU Special Tax Levy to Payment of Sedgwick County Public Building Commission Bonds.  (District I)
	Agenda Report No. IV-2
	Ordinance No. 49-521

	IV-3. Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.010 Relating to the Unlawful Possession of Weapons.
	Agenda Report No. IV-3
	Delineated Ordinance 
	Ordinance No. 49-522

	IV-4.Ordinance Amending Section 5.88.020 Relating to the Discharge of a Firearm.
	Agenda Report No. IV-4
	Delineated Ordinance 
	Ordinance No. 49-523

	IV-5. Resolution exempting Certain Public Buildings and Facilities from the Provisions of Senate Substitute for House Bill 2052 (2013).
	Agenda Report No. IV-5
	Resolution No. 13-108

	IV-6. Ordinances amending Sections 1.06.010 and 1.06.060 regarding Domestic Violence Offenses and passing a Charter Ordinance amending Charter Ordinances 164, 168, 202, and 218 regarding Municipal Court Procedures.
	Agenda Report No. IV-6
	Ordinance No. 49-526
	Delineated Ordinance
	Charter Ordinance No. 220
	Delineated Ordinance

	IV-7. Chisholm Creek Park South. (District I)
	Agenda Report No. IV-7
	Resolution No. 13-105
	Declaration of Intent 2011 Chisholm Creek Park South

	IV-8. Chisholm Creek Park South Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Grant. (District I)

	Agenda Report No. IV-8

	IV-9. HUD Consolidated Plan/Fifth Program Year Action Plan, 2013-2014, Amended.
	Agenda Report No. IV-9
	Support Document-2013-2014 Annual Plan Amended
	Allocation Spreadsheet

	II-1. Report of Board of Bids and Contracts dated June 17, 2013.
	Agenda Report No. II-1

	II-4. Preliminary Estimates.
	Agenda Report No. II-4

	II-5a. Amendment to Agreement for Kellogg, 151st Street West to Mid-Continent. (District IV)

	Agenda Report No. II-5a

	II-5b. Contract for Floating Stage on Arkansas River. (District I)
	Agenda Report No. II-5b
	Contract

	II-6a. Agreement for Design Services for NewMarket Office V Addition. (District V)
	Agenda Report No. II-6a and Agreement

	II-6b. Agreement for Design Services for an Area Being Platted as Southfork Commercial Addition. (District III)

	Agenda Report No. II-6b  and Agreement

	II-7a. Partial Acquisition of 2812 and 2816 North Amidon for the Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th Street North Improvement Project.   (District VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-7a
	Supporting Documents

	II-7b. Acquisition of 1732 West 29th Street for the Amidon, 21st Street North to 29th Street North Improvement Project. (District VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-7b
	Supporting Documents

	II-9. Partial Redemption of Industrial Revenue Bonds, Greater Wichita YMCA. (District VI)
	Agenda Report No.  II-9
	Resolution No. 13-106

	II-10. General Obligation Temporary Note Sale.
	Agenda Report No. II-10
	Resolution No. 13-107
	Notice of Sale
	Excerpt of Minutes and Certificate

	II-11. Application for Street Resurfacing Project for Kellogg, Between 111th and 119th Streets West. (District IV)
	Agenda Report No. II-11
	Map and Application

	II-12. Improvements to West Kellogg from 111th to 143rd Streets West. (District IV)
	Agenda Report No. II-12
	Agreement 1
	Agreement 2

	II-13. Creation of Chapter 18.14 of the Code of the City of Wichita, Relating to Parking Lot Striping Standards and Enforcement.
	Agenda Report No. II-13
	Ordinance No. 49-524

	II-14. Second Reading Ordinances.
	Agenda Report No. II-14

	II-15. *DED2013-00011 Dedication of Utility Easement, DED2013-00012 Dedication of Street Right-of-way and DED2013-00013 Dedication of Drainage Easement located north of 21st Street North, west of Seneca (extended).  (District VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-15
	Supporting Documents

	II-16. *DED2013-00015 Dedication of Utility Easement Located South of 13th Street, West of Maize Road.  (District V)
	Agenda Report No. II-16
	Supporting Documents

	II-17. *SUB2012-00042 -- Plat of Presbyterian Manor Addition Located on the Northwest Corner of 13th Street North and Zoo Boulevard.   (District VI)
	Agenda Report No. II-17
	Supporting Documents
	Ordinance No. 49-525

	II-18. *SUB2013-00009 -- Plat of Maki Addition Located on the Southeast Corner of 53rd Street North and 143rd Street East. (County)
	Agenda Report No. II-18
	Supporting Documents


